Town of Plymouth, Vermont
Select Board - Regular Meeting
Monday, May 1, 2023 @ 6:00 PM

Town Office Meeting Room

Agenda

Topic: Plymouth Select Board
Time: May 1, 2023 06:00 PM Eastern Time (US and Canada)

Join Zoom Meeting
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/822710856387pwd=NIUNMWFxYVVkYOp3OTJINXF0ZHIydz09

Meeting ID: 822 7108 5638
Passcode: 910284

One tap mobile
+16469313860,,82271085638#,,,,¥910284# US
+19294362866,,82271085638#,,,,¥910284# US (New York)

Dial by your location
+1 646 931 3860 US
+1 929 436 2866 US (New York)

1.

Call to Order and Introduction of Those Present:

Consideration of Any Changes, Additions or Removals to Agenda:

Approve Meeting Minutes:

a. October 28, 2022 Special Meeting Minutes

b. November 21, 2022 Regular Meeting Minutes
December 5, 2022 Special Meeting Minutes
April 3, 2023 Regular Meeting Minutes

April 17, 2023 Regular Meeting Minutes

o oo

Re-Appoint 911 Address Coordinator:

Short-Term-Rental Administrator Appointment:;

Review Revised Short-Term Rental Ordinance & Registration Form:




7. Liquor License Renewals:

8. Adoption of Broadband Plan:

9. Review and Possibly Approve Bids for Town of Plymouth Re-Appraisal - 2026 Grand List:

10. School Choice Discussion (1 hour):

11. Sheriff Contract:

12. Mail and Warrants:

13. Other Business:

14. Possible Executive Session:

15. Adjourn:




Selectboard Special Meeting minutes 10.28.22
Jay, Keith and Rick Present
Jay called the meeting to order at 2:30 pm

Discussion of the budget. Reviewed line items including: Sheriff and Palmer’s grant proposal and
appropriations. Discussed Fire Department request for funds for truck and how to warn an article for
the voters, and important to have Fire Chief represent at Town Meeting.

Rick motioned, Keith seconded, all were in favor of the budget.

Brief discussion of next Tax sale and a small number are behind. Elaine is reaching out to them.
Touched on phone system and wondered where we were at.

Steve Radonis popped in and gave a short-term rental update.

Keith motioned to adjourn and Jay seconded.

Keith Cappellini

Rick Kaminski

Jay Kulman




SELECT BOARD MEETING
November 21 @ 6:00 PM

Town of Plymouth Municipal Building

The meeting was called to order at 6:02 PM by board chairperson Jay Kullman.
In attendance were selectmen Keith Cappellini, Rick Kaminski, and Jay Kuilman.
Introduction of all attending went around the room.

First on the agenda was the signing of the LHMP (Local Hazard Mitigation Plan) prepared by the Two
Rivers-Ottauquechee Regional Commission and the Town of Plymouth. The motion was made by Rick
Kaminski and second by Keith Cappellini.

Keith discussed the next steps to be taking with the retail cannabis approval. Back ground checks are
required by the state for any cannabis application submitted. A motion was made by Rick second by
Keith: That the applicant requesting the sale of retail cannabis in the Town of Plymouth, will provide
evidence of the back ground check utilize by the State of Vermont. The annual fee for the license to sell
cannabis will coincide with annual liquor license fee already established by the State. A site visit by the
zoning board and interested parties will take place prior the scheduled meeting at 6:00pm December 6,
2022,

Carol Goodwin got up to discuss the weatherization/bond issue as reported in the Vermont Journal with
some clarifications that needed to be updated. Jay Kullman read the results of the votes as tallied from
the November 8" election, with both 1a and 1b getting “YES” of the majority votes. He also shared his
conversation with the bond attorney who said that read a go with the Town and the proceed with the
Bond. Margo Marrone inquired on the confusion of how the article was written on the ballot and her
conversations with other town residents. Additional residents spoke of their concerns; the results of the
votes, again the wording of the article, the cost to the Town of not being able to pay the Bond off early,
cost of materials rising, and what we can afford to begin the project without utilizing the bond funds
until maybe this spring when we have a clearer picture on how much we will need to complete the
project. After a lengthy discussion, a motion was made by Jay second by Rick to take a revote in
January.

The final audit for the 2021 year has been completed for review. After reviewing Jay made the motion,
Rick to second, to sign as approved.

Listers have requested to digitized the current program with an initial cost of $3,000-$5000 for set-up
fee, with an additional annual fee. Mike Coleman was there to share the benefits of the program and
accessibility to all who can access the program and retrieve lister cards on properties without the need
to come to the Town Office.

The Town Clerk position is open, and a question was brought to the board about it being elected or
appointed and the length of the term. The option of elected vs appointed will be researched and
brought to the voters at the March town meeting. An advertisement will be placed in the local
newspapers looking for candidates to apply.




The Fire Department is looking to purchase a lap top. Jay made a motion with Rick to second, to allow
the Fire Department to utilize the extra lap top purchased for the Listers during Covid that is no longer
being used on a fulltime basis.

Bi-weekly payroll was brought up and will be discussed to get input from the current employees. There
will be a 24-hour warned meeting so all can attend.

The Board went in to executive session at 7:15 to discuss the pending law suit.

At 7:38 the Board returned: Rick made the motion with Jay to second, the signing of the Reservation of
Rights.

The Board continued with approval of previous Select Board minutes.

Motion to adjourn by Jay second by Rick.

Respectfully submitted,

Beth Graves-Lombard
Town Clerk




SPECIAL SELECT BOARD MEETING
December 5, 2022 @ 6:00 PM
Town of Plymouth Municipal Building

The meeting was called to order at 6:01 by Chair Jay Kullman
Introduction of all in attendance in addition to the select board.

Jay opened the meeting with the discussion of the advertisement for the town clerk position. The
question was raised about changing the position to an appointed vs elected. Many spoke on the
benefits of having it appointed and availability of looking into qualified applicants with the security of
knowing their position would not be voted out in a three-year term. Rick suggested we research a little
further with the league for additional confirmation. Also, to be included in that research was the
question of does the position still need to be held by a resident of the Town,

A special staff meeting will take place on Tuesday, December 13' at 2:00pm. They are looking to discuss
a weekly vs bi-weekly payroll, a new phone system, and a reassessment with the listers to include their
request of a new program.

Jay brought a preliminary budget review. He discussed the highlights of the current year proposals of
what is left from this year’s expenses. The review included a lay out of years 2021-22/ 2022-23/ 2023-
24. Rick will work with Larry on the Highway expenses. A notice of revenue from the sheriff's
department was down in addition to their expenses as well. We now contract with the sheriffs on an
hourly and mileage basis vs the previous contracted hours. More budget to be discussed at the next
meeting when the board can review Jay’s entire preliminary paperwork.

It was brought to the attention of those at the meeting, that the Fire Department may need some
assistance in fund raising for new equipment and/or a truck. Each year the Town appropriates money to
the department to spend as they see fit to maintain updated equipment and supplies. Although they
are a part of the Town they are not under the municipality of the Town of Plymouth, but their own
entity.

Rick brought up for discussion that this is a good time to trade in the frontend loader. Larry and Rick
worked with the Town’s current vender that does the routine maintenance work, and said we could get
a good trade in value and a newer updated machine. They also researched another vendor “Volvo”, and
their pricing and quotes were higher than the current vendor “Komatsu”. Larry’s crew is happy with the
current vendor and would like to stay with them. The Town sets aside funds each year for equipment,
and this would be at no additional cost. Motion was made by Rick, second by Jay to allow the trade in
on the frontend loader.

Elaine asked if we could close an account at Heritage Credit Union and transfer the funds to the general
ledger account. The funds were set aside for garage maintenance, and there is no need to have ata
separate institution. Motion made by Jay to close with Keith to second.

Jay talked with the Bond Attorney, about the discussion of a revote with some concerned voters not
pleased with the way the article was written on the November 8 election. Although the vote passed,
the selectboard agreed to a revote on January 17, 2023. It was discussed to how the Bond will be




rewritten, and the language to be used for the warning. Jay will continue to work with the bond
attorney to make sure all procedures are followed correctly. In addition to the Bond revote, the Town
Clerk and Town Treasurer positions will be voted on to see if the Town of Plymouth voters want to
change those positions to appointed vs elected.

It was brought up about the Air B&B enforcement and how is the Town doing it to collect those in
violation. Currently there is no process in place. Another resident suggested looking at rental websites
to see whose property is listed, and then follow-up in the clerk’s office to see if they have complied. A
notice should be sent to the homeowner, with a referral to the new procedures and a time frame to
comply.

The phone system had issues again last week with no lines to the Fire Department. Where the main box
is held now, in the town garage, the dampness is damaging the wires. It was talked about moving the
central box into the cleaners closet to be more temperature regulated. Again.... It was mentioned the
renovations can’t happen fast enough! They will discuss the phone issues at the December 13 staff
meeting.

There was inquiry on the town fee for a cannabis license. Keith responded with it’s still a work in
process.

The board then moved to complete the meeting with completing mail and warrants.
Rick will be excused from the next selectboard meeting.

Meeting adjourned at 7:08.

Respectfully submitted,
Beth Graves-Lombard
Town Clerk




TOWN OF PLYMOUTH
Selectboard Minutes
April 3, 2023

Jay Kullman called the meeting to order at 6:00 P.M.

Board members in attendance were Jay Kullman, Rick Kaminski, and Keith Cappellini

Audience members in attendance were David Olster, Al Poirier, Bruce Pauley, Karen Evans, Margo
Marrone, Carol Goodwin, and Craig O’Briskie.

Changes to the agenda were stated:
1. Postpone discussion of contracting with CAl Technology to update tax map data, as discussed at
the March 13, 2023 meeting.
2. Add presentation of the Local Emergency Plan
3. Update on Short Term Rental ongoing discussions
4. Update on school board representative participation at Selectboard meetings.

Keith hoped to have a response from the school board representatives to keep the public apprised of
what is happening in school board meetings. Their meetings are on Monday nights at 6:30. They have
participated via Zoom before their meeting begins. The town would like at least a monthly update.

Rick Kaminski said he met with Tom Battista of the Sheriff's department one month ago. The contract is
still under review and has not been signed. Keith mentioned a bill before the state legislature regarding
a series of possible reforms to the county sheriff system.

Regarding the Town Employee Personnel Policy Revisions, Jay motioned they approve the policy with no
changes other than the medical benefits section. Rick Kaminski seconded the motion, all were in favor.

Jay announced the appointment of Angela Kissell to the position of Town Clerk. Angela will begin work
on April 17, 2023,

Rick Kaminski stated the final reserve account balances to be used for the building renovation project:

ARPA Funds: $130,000
Office Equipment Reserve: $30,000
Building Maintenance Reserve: $160,000
General Fund: $630,000
TOTAL: $950,000

Jay Kullman motioned to approve the fund transfers into the Renovation Construction Expense Account,
Rick Kaminski seconded the motion. All were in favor,

Rick stated we need a current building appraisal for the USDA funding application. A certified
commercial appraisal will cost $2750.00. Rick Kaminski made a motion to approve the expenditure,
Keith Cappellini seconded the motion. All were in favor.

Carol Goodwin asked if the bond funding was still an option to finance the renovation project. The
board responded that it Is still on the table and they are also looking at interim financing.

Al Polrier presented to the board the Local Emergency Management Plan for approval. The plan will be
filed electronically and attached to the minutes,




Al asked to purchase a pall of dehydrated food to store in the Community Center. He stated our
regional Red Cross shelter is located in Hartford, Rick made a motion to purchase the dehydrated food
for the shelter, Jay seconded the motion. All were in favor,

Regarding the low compliance with the town’s Short Term Rental Ordinance, Rick stated there will be 2
mailings going out, one as a general notice, the second to address violations. Drafts of the notices are in
the hands of the attorney. Those notices will come back to the Select Board for a public meeting to
discuss the changes.

Rick stated the Community Center has requested black out curtains for the windows, so movies can be
shown on a regular basis on Sunday afternoons. Lauren Skaskiw asked for $500.00 to purchase the
curtains. Al Poirler asked if they will be fire retardant. Rick will follow up on that. He made a motion to
purchase the curtains for the Center. Keith Cappellini seconded the motion. All were in favor.

The audience asked for an update on cell tower coverage for the town. On March 7, 2023 we had a call
from SCA Communications, owner of the cell phone tower on Grand View Lodge Rd. Verizon Wireless is
ready to utilize that tower,

Keith Cappellini made a motion to approve the minutes of the March 20, 2023 meeting. Rick Kaminski
seconded the motion, All were in favor.

Rick Kaminski spoke about the VLCT workers compensation audit. He stated the board will develop a
policy for all sub — contractors in order to comply with VLCT Insurance requirements. This policy will
require an amendment to the Policy and Procedure Handbook,

Karen Evans asked about farmers market vendors needing to provide proof of liability insurance, as they
do in neighboring towns. The board felt our small market at the Community Center was just getting
started. It might be too soon to make that a requirement.

Rick spoke to the condition of the Billings Bridge, on Billings Road at Hawk. He said the bridge
abutments are being undermined. Repair of that bridge is planned for 2024, and will require a fire
hydrant to be relocated, :

The meeting adjourned at 7:00 P.M.,

Respectfully submitted,

Elaine Pauley




Preliminary Minutes
Town of Plymouth, Vermont
Select Board - Regular Meeting

Monday, April 17,2023 at 6:00 PM

Board Members Present: Jay Kullman Rick Kaminski

Board Members Absent: Keith Cappellini

Staff Members Present: Angela Kissell Elaine Pauley

Michael Coleman

Others Present: Bruce Pauley Dave Olster Carol Goodwin
Margo Marrone Karen Evans Steve Radonis
Terry Bascom Willow Bascom Josh Rose
Paula Benson Okemo Valley TV

Call to Order:

a. Jay Kullman called the meeting to order at 6:02 pm followed by an introduction of
those present.

Changes to the Agenda:

a. Jay Kullman announced the following additions/changes to the Agenda:

aa. 911 Coordinator
bb.  Open Class IV Roads for ATVs on Green Up Day on May 6™ or May 13
cc. Independent Contractor Discussion

Welcome New Clerk and Swearing In:

a. Jay Kullman said we need to certify and swear in the new Town Clerk.
b. Angela Kissell was sworn in by Steve Radonis.

Annual Appointments and Discussion:

a. Jay Kullman wanted to discuss the Short-Term Rental (STR) Admin Appointments.

b. Rick Kaminski felt that the job is getting confusing with two (2) Administrators.

c. Rick Kaminski recommends with going with just one (1) Administrator going forward.
Rick has recommended that the Town go with Michael Scomillio.

d. Jay Kullman asked why?

WilPage




Rick Kaminski stated that there have been complaints from staff and that Steve Radonis
did not return files when Margo asked.

Steve Radonis said that Margo sent the request to the wrong email address and that he
still needed to complete information on the files.

Steve Radonis handed out a document for people to review.

Steve Radonis spoke of how the work load is unfair. If there is only 24 on the Short-
Term Rental List how could Mike Scomillio have done 13 if he has done 17.

Steve Radonis also asked why Mike Scomillio is not listed on the report as he has a
Short-Term Rental as well.

Steve Radonis said that he was going to resign anyway, but also said that Mike
Scomillio is not handling things the proper way. He said that Mike Scomillio is
approving things but not signing the necessary documents.

. Rick Kaminski said he knows Steve’s intentions are good.

Steve Radonis said that Mike is bias.

Rick Kaminski said that he was going to listen to Steve bash someone who isn’t there
to defend themselves.

Steve Radonis said he did more work than Mike and the fee split should be fair and
reflect that.

Rick Kaminski said that they will revisit the money that was previously paid.

Steve Radonis said that he takes a complaint as a compliment because that means he is
doing his job.

Jay Kullman thinks that more research needs to be done before the STR Appointment
is done.

Rick Kaminski agreed to table the STR Appointment.

Zoning Administrator Appointment:

aa. Jay Kullman made a Motion to Appoint Jim Allen as the Zoning Administrator.
Rick Kaminski seconded the Motion. The Motion carried.

Zoning Clerk Appointment:

bb. Jay Kullman made a Motion to Appoint Elaine Pauley as Zoning Clerk. Rick
Kaminski seconded the Motion. The Motion carried.

Zoning Board Administration:

cc. Jay Kullman made a Motion to Appoint Mike Coleman, Jay Kullman, Keith
Cappellini, Anne Brown, Bruce Pauley, Frank Vetere and Rick Martin as Zoning
Board Administration. Rick Kaminski seconded the Motion. The Motion carried.

911 Coordinator:

dd. Jay Kullman asked if the 911 Coordinator can be appointed.
ee. Michael Coleman said that he saw that Peter Fellows recommended him as the 911
Coordinator,

o 2|p a. gé




ff. Karen Evans asked, what does a 911 Coordinator do?

gg. Michael Coleman said Coordinates 911 addresses.

hh. Jay Kullman made a Motion to Appoint Michael Coleman as the 911 Coordinator.
Rick Kaminski seconded the Motion. The Motion carried.

Open Class IV Road for ATV Green-Up Day:

a.

b.

Jay Kullman said that Michael Coleman had a question on whether or not ATV could
be used on Class IV Roads on Green-Up Day?

Jay Kullman stated that we have a policy that permits ATVs on Class IV Roads, I just
don’t have it in front of me to confirm the dates.

Rick Kaminski said there was a one (1) year trial period and there weren’t any issues
therefore it should be okay.

Jay Kullman made a Motion to approve the use of ATVs on Class IV Roads for Green-
Up Day or May 6™ and/or May 13™. Rick Kaminski seconded the Motion. The Motion
carried.

Independent Contractor Discussion:

a. Jay Kullman said that Elaine Pauley found out information after a Workman’s
Compensation Audit. Jay asked Elaine to speak on it.

b. Elaine Pauley said that Auditors treat contractors as employees if they don’t have
workman’s compensation insurance therefore, we must have a Contract, Non-
Employee Work Agreement signed as well as the Town being listed as an additional
insured on Certificate of Insurance.

¢. Jay Kullman noted that the change in this process will help reduce the liability and risk
to the Town.

d. Elaine Pauley added that the Contract has a start and end date.

e. Jay Kullman said that these documents will be part of the process. Rick Kaminski
made a Motion to accept these documents. Jay Kullman seconded the Motion. The
Motion carried.

Sheriff Contract:
a. Jay Kullman said there isn’t anything new on the Sheriff Contract. It is in their hands

right now and just waiting to hear.

Other Business:

Josh Rose wanted to ask that school choice be thought about.

Karen Evans said that you’ll have to talk with the School Board. Karen also said that
she is a big school choice advocate. When it was originally voted on, she wasn’t sure
if people realized what they were voted on. Ludlow still has school choice as they did
not give it up.

Bruce Pauley asked if there was a good explanation at time of voting?

. Karen Evans said there was a brief explanation but it was very confusing.

Bruce Pauley encouraged someone to do research.

3|lPage




k.

[S—

Q2o

<pgdegron

N

bb.

CcC.

Margo Marrone recalls a “forceful” man coming from Woodstock and people got
wrapped up in him.

Jay Kullman asked if there is a down side to school choice?

Karen Evans said she wasn’t sure.

Carol Goodwin said there are other Towns that are part of a Supervisory Union and it
is her understanding that it is a long process to get out.

Karen Evans said that when the survey was done years ago many parents chose a school
close to where they work. Proctor was her choice.

Bruce Pauley said it bothers him that there is a couple School Board Members who
meet with other Towns. Woodstock says they need a new High School and the cost is
73.3 million. People are afraid to speak out as it appears they are against education
which we are not it is just the over spending.

Karen Evans doesn’t know what draws kids to certain schools over others.

Jay Kullman noted that Josh Rose is not looking to save money but looking for
education.

Josh Rose said it’s about the community aspect and our chlldren going to school with
their neighbors and building lasting friendships.

Jay Kullman said we can’t solve this tonight. There needs to be research and we need
to hear from the people.

Karen Evans said that the School Board needs to listen to the people.

Bruce Pauley mentioned that a presentation came to mind that was done a long time
ago with regard to the budget. He recalls the crowd getting silent when it was talked
about. Plymouth pays an overwhelming amount for a small Town.

Margo Marrone said that she can put something in the Plymouth Press.

Bruce Pauley suggested a Special Meeting on this?

Jay Kullman wants to hear from the parents.

Mike Coleman said the only job of the Select Board is to fund it.

Karen Evans said people need to go to the School Board.

Mike Coleman said the School Board approve and the Select Board give money.
Bruce Pauley stated that the ratio of personnel to child is increasing.

Karen Evans stated that there are more mandated positions other than just teachers plus
feeing all students now.

Elaine Pauley noted that school choice and feeding the children are two different things.

. Terry Bascom said that parents should be talking to parents. Josh Rose should start by

talking with other parents and see what their thoughts are.

Jay Kullman told Josh Rose that if he is interested in community outreach, he should
reserve time at the next meeting scheduled for Monday, May 1% at 6:00 pm.

Jay Kullman did comment that he knows Paula Benson was listening via Zoom and
expects something in the Standard.

dd. Rick Kaminski noted that Stickney Bridge had 1 concrete poured last week and there

€c.

ff.

will be two (2) more pourings this week. There is an anticipation that the work will be
completed by June 1 versus the initial deadline of July 1%,

Rick Kaminski also noted that Billings Bridge is two (2) years down the road. Looking
at the Grant for 2024 and work to be done in 2025.

Margo Marrone asked where is Billings Bridge?

gg. Rick Kaminski said it is the bridge past Hawk Entrance.

4|Page




hh. Bruce Pauley talked about bridges that are 50 years old and design flaws more than
infrastructure.

ii. Rick Kaminski added that the State has a Policy to inspect bridges annually.

jj. Carol Goodwin asked about the Sheriffs Contract.

kk. Rick Kaminski stated that it is in the hands of the Sheriff’s Department at the moment.

1. Carol Goodwin asked if they gave patrol times?

mm. Rick said if there in a neighboring town and we need help they will respond. They
will be staying within our budget. There are certain times, but he didn’t have it at the
moment.

Executive Session:

aa. Went into Executive Session at 7:02 pm.
bb. Came out of Executive Session at 7:18 pm.

Adjourn:

aa. Adjourn Meeting at 7:19 pm.

Respectfully submitted,

Angela Kissell
Town Clerk
Recording Secretary

1

Jay Kullman, Chairman Rick Kaminski

Keith Cappellini

751PagAe




SHORT TERM RENTAL ORDINANCE

Definitions and Agreements:
Dwelling Unit Capacity: When used as a Short-Term Rental, the Dwelling Umt Capacity shall be per

number of approved bedrooms. For example, a three - bedroom Dwelling Unit shall have a Dwelling Unit
Capacity of six persons (3 bedrooms x 2) when used as a Short-Term Rental.

A Dwelling Unit subject to a Vermont Land Use (Act 250) Permit shall be limited to the Dwelling Unit
Capacity stated on that permit and shall not be increased by an additional two units when used as a Short-
Term Rental.

Short-Term Rental: A furnished house, condominium, or other dwelling room or self-contained dwelling
unit rented to the transient, traveling, or vacationing public for a period of fewer than 30 consecutive days.
Number of bedrooms of the STR cannot exceed number of bedrooms stated on Listers Card.

NOTE: The Short-Term Rental of a Dwelling Unit in or of a Building qualifies the STR as a “public
building”, subject to the jurisdiction of the State of Vermont Division of Fire Safety pursuant to Title 20
V.S.A.§2730(a)(1)(D).

SHORT-TERM RENTAL OF DWELLING UNIT SUBMITTALS

1. The Short-Term Rental of a Dwelling Unit requires a Short-Term Rental Registration from the
Short-Term Rental Administrator. A person shall not commence the use of a Dwelling Unit as a
Short-Term Rental unless and until the Short-Term Rental Administrator issues the requisite Short-
Term Rental Registration.

2= An application for Short-Term Rental Registration shall be in compliance with the regulations as

set by the Town of Plymouth as follows for-a-Shert-Term Rental-with-an-eccupaney-of-8-orless

A. The State of Vermont Wastewater and Water Supply Permit for the property for Dwelling Units
constructed or occupied after June 30, 2007 and a local zoning or septic permit, if any, for
Dwelling Units constructed before July 1, 2007, or the Listers Property Card with the number
of bedrooms indicated, if a local zoning or septic permit does not exist for Dwelling Units
constructed before July 1, 2007.

A state of Vermont Land Use (Act 250) Permit if subject to Act 250 jurisdiction.

An inspection report with a eeeupaney Certificate of Occupancy approved from by the Public
Building Permit from the State of Vermont Division of Fire Safety.

The Posting of Contact Information required by Title 18 V.S.A. §4467.

Proof that the 11ab111ty insurance pohcy that covers the Dwelhng Unit exteﬂds—bedﬂy—mjuﬁkaﬂd

Qw

_mp

F. Local Property Manager’s name and contact information.

3. No registration of the Short-Term Rental of a Dwelling Unit shall be 1ssued or obtamed and
submitted to the Short-Term Rental Administrator for Dwelling Units
than-8-eceupants until the documents and permits set forth in subsection 2 above are addressed.




The STR permit expires on Novemberl each year, and must be renewed, with all fees paid, within
30 days of the renewal date.”

The maximum occupancy is determined by the lesser of the following:
A. The number of bedrooms as indicated by the Waste Water Permit.
B. The number of bedrooms as indicated by the State Fire Marshall’s Certificate of Occupancy.

The Use of a Dwelling Unit by a number of lessees, guests, or other persons in excess of the Short-
Term Rental Dwelling Unit Capacity shall constitute a violation by the Registration holder and/or
the person with whom the Registration holder contracted for the Short-Term Rental of the Dwelling
Unit.

The number of vehicles shall not exceed the number of bedrooms.

Trash shall be sorted according to state regulations. Homeowners are responsible for providing
containers for sorting and for the appropriate removal of all trash. Trash is to be stored in a secure
space that is screened from public view. If found to be out of compliance of the aforementioned
expectations, an immediate fine of $250.00 per occurrence will be assessed.

. If yeuhave the STR has outside lighting, it shall not interfere with neighboring properties.

. In order preserving to preserve the peaceful quiet of the community, guests are required to maintain
public decency in volume and behavior from ++ 10 PM. -7 A M.

. Any person who commences or continues to operate a Short-Term Rental property without the
required permit shall be deemed guilty of an infraction and may be fined up to $100.00 per day.

I acknowledge I have reviewed and agree to abide by the Town of Plymouth Short-Term Rental

Ordinance.
Signed: Date:
This STR application is approved for bedrooms.
STR Administrator: Date:

Notes:




Town of Plymouth Vermont
Short-Term Rental Unit Registration Form

Owners Name:

Owners Address:

Owners Phone: Home: Cell: Work:

Owners Email:

Short Term Rental Unit Information -

Physical Address of Short-Term Rental Unit:

Tax Map #: Lot #:

Maximum Number of Bedrooms in Short-Term Rental Unit;

Name of Local Property Manager (LPM) or Local Contact:

Physical Address of LPM:

Permits for Short-Term Rental Unit Application require a non-refundable fee of:
$200.00 for a one-bedroom unit
$100.00 for each additional bedroom
$40.00 Recording Fee

Note: Only the recording fee is required for “Owner Occupied Primary Residents

k]

Checks shall be made payable to the Town of Plymouth

Date Application Submitted: Check #:
CHECK LIST:
0 Appointment with state Fire Marshall for Certificate of Occupancy.
H—Orderandtnstall- knoxBex
(0 Confirm that your number of bedrooms advertised match the number of bedrooms on your
property Listers Card.

00 Sign and return completed application with Certificate of Insurance and payment,
0  Short-Term Rental Administrator, Frank Vetere will contact you for a final inspection,



The following information shall be provided with the Application Form by owner(s) of Short-Term Rental
dwelling unit(s), here-in-after referred to as STR, as part of the application and registration process. Proof
of ownership may be required if the person submitting the Short-Term Rental Unit Application is not the -
record title holder as indicated by the documentation maintained by the Town of Plymouth:

Copy of Certificate of Occupancy, issued by the State of Vermont Fire Marshall, must be included
with application. Do not submit STR application without Certificate of Occupancy.

1.

Physical address of the specific STR advertised, offered for use, or used for STR.

Contact information of property owner, including: name, mailing address and/or physical address,
telephone number, and email address.

Contact information for any person present or residing on the property and/or authorized to act on
the owner’s behalf, including: name, mailing address and/or physical address, telephone number
and email address.

If there is a written property management agreement or contract dealmg with the STR, please state
the name of the property manager and the date of the agreement.

If the STR does not apply to a single building, please indicate. For each STR in a building, please
identify the unit(s) and the 911 addresses assigned to the units (if separate from the building).
Please provide a sketch plan depicting the entire property where the STR is located.

Please show all proposed on-site parking spaces, including guest parking for the STR and parking
for the owners if they still reside in the building when the STR is occupied.

Please provide proof of homeowners’ liability and casualty insurance that must contain a STR
endorsement.

10 Please prov1de Inspectlon Repoft with occupancy approved from Velmont DlVlSlOH of Fire safety
11. Please provide a copy of any STR rules that you have required in connection with the STR.

Important contact phone numbers:

The Division of Fire Safety — Springfield Regional Office Phone: 8§02-216-0500
Web-Site: www.firesafety.vermont.gov

STR Coordinator: Margot Martell 802-672-5002 mmartell@plymouthvt.org
Available Mondays & Tuesdays 8-4, Wednesdays 8-12

STR Administrator: Frank Vetere 802-855-1682 fsvetere(@gmail.com

I acknowledge I have reviewed and agree to abide by the Town of Plymouth Short-Term Rental Unit

Ordinance.
Signed: Date:
Signed: Date:

Revised: 04/20/2023




Liquor Licenses — 2023

Echo Lake Inn
2 Dublin Road

1st Class Hotel - Application #26713
3% Class Hotel - Application #26712
Outside Consumption - Application #26711

Inn at Water’s Edge, LLC
45 Kingdom Road

1st Class Hotel - Application #15975
3" Class Hotel - Application #15977
Outside Consumption Application #15978




TOWN OF PLYMOUTH

BIRTHPLACE OF CALVIN COOLIDGE
30™PRESIDENT
OF THE UNITED STATES

68 Town Office Road
Plymouth, Vermont 05056
Tel. (802) 672-3655

Fax (802) 672-5466

The Town of Plymouth is served by two incumbent broadband providers, VTel of Springfield and
TDS Telecom of Ludlow. VTel provides fiber speeds in excess of 500mbps to most of the
town. TDS only covers a small portion of the south of town with max speeds between 75-100mbps
down.

Let it be resolved that on this 1% day in May 2023, the Town will work with TDS Telecom, the
State, and other providers to improve broadband services to their customers in the southern portion
of town. The Town also offers free outdoor WiFi at the Community Center and will investigate
upgrading the speeds to serve the folks in the south of town in the interim.

Jay Kullman

Rick Kaminski

Keith Cappellini




i

Proposal For

TOWN OF PLYMOUTH
2026 REAPPRAISAL

Submitted by

Appraisal Resource Group, Inc.
Essex Junction, Vermont




Table of Contents

Page

Proposal Contents 2
TransMittal Letter ...coomcmmmmmsnsimsesmsisii st s sens s nrmnss i massssessasansssnsnse 3
L@ O o oo =1 | ST PTR 4
Project SChEAUIE..........uii it e ettt e b e s sebbn e e sarbe e e e annnreesanes 5
Lo =T R - PP P P PPPR TR 7
ComMPanY COMACE... ... et e s s et e e e e e e s s nnr e e e e e e e naereres 8
Municipal Reappraisal Experience & ReferenCes.........coeivriicciinii i sce e 11
COMPANY PrOTIE 1o ee et 13
Advantages and SIreNGINS .......cooiiiiiiicii e e e e 14
Public Relations ProOgram ..........uuvieiie ettt e e r s e e e s e e et raeeeer e s s sninsrreeas 15
QUANEY ASSUIANCE. .. eiiiviiiiiireitee e e s e e e e e s st e e e s s s s s erccereasas s be e e e e asss et brensasesssenansrnreesnaanns 17
Appraisal MethodOIOGIES ....c.c.ivviiiriiiiiiicrer et ce e e s 20
Sales and Market ANGIYSIS ......ii i et e 21




APPRAISAL RESOURCE GROUP, INC
4 DOON WAY
ESSEX JUNCTION. VT 05452

April 20, 2023

Town of Plymouth
68 Town Office Road
Plymouth, VT 05056

Dear Listers & Town Officials:

We believe that we are the most qualified and cost effective company to perform your reappraisal
project. We have experience with the ProVal CAMA System and knowledge of Town'’s real estate.
We believe that we would be a prudent choice for the project.

We are pleased to submit this proposal to provide reappraisal project services to the Town of
Plymouth. The cost of all reappraisal services would be $119,500 (One Hundred Nineteen Thousand
Five Hundred Dollars). The proposal cost can be reduced for inspections performed by the
Listers.

We have extensive reappraisal experience in the state of Vermont. We have done reappraisal
work for the following towns; Barre Town, Eden, Proctor, Plymouth, Guilford, Killington, and
Williston. We are currently reappraising the towns of Pomfret, Guilford, and Weybridge We believe
that we can help you complete your reappraisal project in a professional and quality manner at an
economical cost.

Our firm has adopted a project strategy that has been highly successful in business and industry. It
is based on combining cross-trained professionals in the required disciplines with the most up-to-
date software and hardware to create a superior product.

We believe that the success of a revaluation project is not due to the size, age, or number of projects
of a company, but due to the project management, staff, relationship with the town, quality of the
CAMA System, and a good informative public relations program.

We are confident that our services can meet and exceed the expectations of the Town at an
economic cost. Our services will maintain the highest quality standards desired by the Town of
Thetford. Appraisal Resource Group, Inc. will appreciate the consideration of our proposal.

N

Russell E. Beaudoin
President




TOWN OF PLYMOUTH
COST PROPOSAL

NOTE: All tasks and costs are negotiable.
The detailed costs and timeline will be developed after consultation with the Listers
We can provide the town with a sample contract
No additional hardware or software is required
Remote internet access to the ProVal CAMA system is required

Approximately 1,202 parcels as outlined in theTown's RFP  $ 119,500

REAPPRAISAL PROJECT TASKS:

1. Reappraisal Project Management

2. Residential and Commercial Data Collection

3. CAMA System Management and Customization
ProVal CAMA system management and oversite
ProVal CAMA system database management

4, On-Site Training or Consulting
5. Comparable Sales Modeling
6. Valuation Analysis & Statistical Review

PROJECT TASK OPTIONS
1. Listers Residential Data Collection with photo Minus $ 35 per parcel
2. Data Mailers (property inventory reports) sent to property owners
Designed (the Town does printing, folding, stuffing, and mailing) $ 500

Submitted by:

Name of Company, Corporation Appraisal Resource Group, Inc.
Address 4 Doon Way

Essex Jct. Vermont 056452

Name of Authorized Signer . Russell E. Beaudoin, President
Date: April 20, 2023




REAPPRAISAL PROJECT SCHEDULE
We could begin our part of the Reappraisal Project in June 2025 to be completed for the 2026 Grand
List. ‘

A detailed project schedule of tasks and completion dates will be developed after consultation with the Listers
and prior to the start of the project.

The ProVal CAMA system has worked well for the town for over sixteen years. The Proval CAMA System gets
updates and enhancements every three months from Aumentum Technologies.




PUBLIC

RELATIONS

N

Y
PUBLIC
RELATIONS

START

4

DATA COLLECTION

Y

COMPUTER DATA ENTRY

REAPPRAISAL PROJECT FLOW CHART

NEIGHBORHOODS
DILINIATED

EDIT DATA

REVIEW RETURNS

A

y

SALES ANALYSIS

Y

CALIBRATE
VALUATION SYSTEM

Y.

Y

DATA MAILERS

PRODUCE
MARKET VALUES

PRODUCE TABLES

Y

FIELD REVIEW VALUES

REVIEW WITH ASSESSOR

Y.

APPRASIALS FOR
ALL PROPERTIES

Y

NOTICES TO
PROPERTY OWNERS

FINALIZE ASSESSMENTS

Y.

INFORMAL HEARINGS &
GRIEVANCES

Y

POST TO GRAND LIST

Y

- FINISH l




PROPOSED REAPPRAISAL PROJECT STAFF

NAME POSITION EXPER. PRIOR TOWNS
Russ Beaudoin Project Manager 30 Years Eden, VT
Commercial & Plymouth, VT
Residential Killington, VT
Appraiser Williston, VT
Guilford, VT
Proctor, VT
Barre Town, VT
Dan Beaudoin Residential Data 25 Years | Guilford, VT
Collector -
Photographer & Williston VT
Image Proctor, VT
Processing Data
Entry & Pomfret, VT
Sketching Weybridge, VT




COMPANY CONTACT

Russ Beaudoin, President
Appraisal Resource Group, Inc.

4 Doon Way
Essex Jct., VT 05452

Phone: 1-802-879-7822
1802 578-9419

e-mail: argivi@msn.com




RUSSELL E. BEAUDOIN
4 Doon Way
Essex Jct., Vermont 05452
(860) 742-9662 Business

APPRAISAL RESOURCE GROUP, INC., Coventry, Connecticut
Provider of mass-appraisal services, Supplier of Computer
Assisted Mass Appraisal (CAMA) and Assessment office systems.

President - Responsible for all aspects of sales and marketing, reappraisal
project management and consulting, mass residential and commercial real estate
appraising.

May 1994 to Present

CITY OF NORWALK, Connecticut

Reappraisal Project Manager; Responsible for all project functions including planning, staffing,
appraising, quality control, and system management for the 1993 CAMA Reappraisal. The City of
Norwalk has 28,500 real estate parcels.

October 1990 to June 1994

KVS INFORMATION SYSTEMS, INC., Williamsville, New York
Supplier of Computer Assisted Mass-Appraisal software and mass-appraisal services.

CAMA Application Specialist; Responsible for system database management, market analysis,
installation of land, cost, and market valuation tables, execution of valuation programs, statistical
analysis, and setting final values for 1990 CAMA Reappraisal of the Town of Manchester,
Connecticut.

Project Manager; Responsible for the 1989 CAMA Reappraisal of the Town of West Hartford,
Connecticut. Supervised all aspects of the project, including data collection, data entry and
processing, office operations, production and quality control, document production, and valuation of
22,000 real estate parcels. -
November 1987-December 1990
EDUCATION:
"MBA - Anna Maria College, Paxton, MA
BSIT - Central Connecticut State University, New Britain, CT
ASET- University of Hartford, West Hartford, CT




REAL ESTATE
APPRAISAL
COURSES:

Appraisal of Self Storage Facilities 2021

Valuation of Commercial Properties in a declining Market 2020
Connecticut Assessor’s continuing education, UCONN 2019
Income Approach to Valuation, IAAO 2016

Cell Tower Valuation, University of Connecticut, 2010

Hotel / Motel Valuation, University of Connecticut, IAAO, 2006
Mass Appraisal Course 300, Chichester, NH, IAAO, 2006
Marshall & Swift Commercial Valuation, Waterbury, VT 2003
Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practices (USPAP) 1994
Standards of Professional Practice, Tufts University, 1988
Real Estate Appraisal Principles, 1987, A.LR.E.A.

Residential Valuation, Tufts University, 1987, A.LR.E.A.

STATE OF
CONNECTICUT
CERTIFICATIONS:

Supervisor Reappraisal Certification
Commercial/lndustrial Value Estimation
Land/Residential Value Estimation
Personal Property Valuation

STATE OF VERMONT: Supervisor, Reappraisal Certification

REFERENCES:
Available upon request

10




PRIOR VERMONT REAPPRAISAL EXPERIENCE

TOWN OF EDEN, VT (1,100 Parcels)
2014 UPDATE REAPPRAISAL
SCOPE OF SERVICES: Reappraisal update ProVal CAMA System

CONTACT: Russ Beaudoin, Assessor
Tel (802) 635-2554

TOWN OF PLYMOUTH, VT (1,212 parcels)
2016 UPDATE REAPPRAISAL

SCOPE OF SERVICES: Consulting, Valuation modeling, CAMA software management
CONTACT: Listers
Tel (802) 672-5002

TOWN OF KILLINGTON, VT (3,108 parcels)
2011 CAMA REAPPRAISAL -

SCOPE OF SERVICES: Consulting, Valuation modeling, CAMA software management
CONTACT: Butch Findisen, Lister
Tel (802) 422-2248

TOWN OF POMFRET, VT (500 parcels)
2009 CAMA REAPPRAISAL

SCOPE OF SERVICES: Consulting, Valuation modeling, CAMA software management
CONTACT: Listers
Tel (802) 457-8180

TOWN OF WILLISTON, VT (4,000 parcels)
2008 CAMA REAPPRAISAL

SCOPE OF SERVICES: Consulting, Valuation modeling, CAMA software management
CONTACT: Bill Hinman, Assessor
Tel (802) 878-1091

TOWN OF WARDSBORO, VT (1,150 Parcels)
2019 CAMA REAPPRAISAL

SCOPE OF SERVICES: Consulting, Valuation modeling, CAMA software management
CONTACT: Listers
- Tel (802) 896-1001

TOWN OF PAWLET, VT (900 Parcels)
2017 CAMA REAPPRAISAL

SCOPE OF SERVICES: Consulting, Valuation modeling, CAMA software management
CONTACT: Listers
Tel (802) 325-3309

TOWN OF WILLISTON, VT (4,000 parcels)
2016 CAMA REAPPRAISAL

SCOPE OF SERVICES: Full physical REAPPRAISAL
CONTACT: Bill Hinman, Assessor
Tel (802) 878-1091

11




TOWN OF GUILFORD, VT (1,120 Parcels)
2017 CAMA REAPPRAISAL

SCOPE OF SERVICES: Full physical REAPPRAISAL
CONTACT: Lisa Barry, Lister
Tel (802) 254-6857

TOWN OF BARRE, VT (3,840 Parcels)
2021 CAMA REAPPRAISAL

SCOPE OF SERVICES: REAPPRAISAL PROJECT MANAGEMENT
CONTACT: Russ Beaudoin, Assessor
Tel (802) 479-2595

12




APPRAISAL RESOURCE GROUP, INC.

COMPANY PROFILE

We are an aggressive municipal services and consulting company specializing in "mass" real estate appraisal
systems and services. Appraisal Resource Group, Inc. was formed in 1994 primarily to provide municipal
assessment services and state-of-the-art office automation technology for municipal government. With the growing
public concern for improving government efficiency and controlling spending, it is essential that municipalities
consider innovative methods and tools for optimizing their operations. It is the goal of our company to develop,
market, and implement high-tech user-friendly solutions for municipal government. We are also committed to
providing experienced, educated, professional staffing for assessment offices and reappraisal projects.

Our firm is centered on a core group of educated professionals with many years of experience with municipal
Reappraisal, assessment functions, and Computer Aided Mass Appraisal (CAMA) systems. We have exceptional
credentials and references to support our superior standing in the municipal assessment field.

Unlike most Reappraisal companies, we do not have our own proprietary CAMA software system. Our firm believes
that the best software systems are designed by companies that are software specialists. Because of this approach,
we have gained extensive experience on a variety of CAMA systems from different software vendors. This unique
business strategy gives us the ability to work on any CAMA system and on any hardware platform presently in
use.

Our firm is committed to upgrading the present standards of quality and detail that are currently being used by our
competitors. Our services are characterized by attention to detail and accuracy of data collection and storage.
Increased detail and quality of data improves the valuation accuracy.

"We believe that our dedication to the use of state-of-the-art technology, experienced professionals, and new
methodologies, will make us a leader in the assessment and property valuation fields.

13




Appraisal Resource Group, Inc.

ADVANTAGES & STRENGTHS

Local Employee Owned and Operated Company
Familiar with the area real estate market
Available for follow-up assistance and training after the Reappraisal

Staff Credentials
Experienced, educated, professional appraisers
Extensive CAMA Reappraisal experience

Small Company
Fully bonded and insured
Financially strong and debt free
Low overhead

Project Management

Projects are computer designed, tracked and managed by a professional with an MBA Degree

"Project Team" Organization
Staffing is done using "Generalists" (personnel with superior education and cross- training to do all project
tasks). The appraisers do all their own data collection, data entry, computer sketching, and field review.

We have eliminated the use of data collectors, data entry clerks, and office clerks. The Project Team is
made up of the project manager, an administrative assistant, and the appraisers.

On-Site Work

All project work, including data entry, data management and processing, printing, and table installation is
done on-site.

14




PUBLIC RELATIONS PROGRAM

Public relations is an important aspect of a real property Reappraisal that can influence the outcome of a project. It is essential
that the public be informed as to the purpose, benefits and procedures of the Reappraisal program. Good public relations
require the joint effort of the Reappraisal firm and the town administration. It shouldn't be left solely to the reappraisal company.
The Town administration has an in-depth knowledge of the make-up and attitudes of the community. A good working
relationship between the town and the Reappraisal firm is the first step towards a successful Reappraisal.

Our firm will provide reasonable assistance to the Town in conducting a program of public information through the press and
other media, such as meeting with citizens, service clubs and property owner groups as a means of establishing understanding
and support for the Reappraisal program and sound assessment administration. We will supply visual aids and other media
at our disposal to this end. All public releases shall be approved by the Town prior to release. Individual presentations will be
directed to taxpayers, local officials, business and civic groups so that they may better understand the scope and objectives
of this project. The public relations program shall commence prior to the data collection effort and shall continue on a regular
basis for the duration of the Project.

The public relations program will remain flexible so that any type of public group can have information adjusted and modified
to satisfy their needs and promote their understanding of this Project. The public relations campaign will be approved by the
Town.

Good public relations can be initiated by the field appraisal staff as they come in contact with property owners. By employing
experienced, courteous, professional appraisers, the property owners will feel more confident that they will be assessed fairly.
If the field inspection staff takes a little extra time to communicate briefly with the property owners to satisfy their concerns and
resolve any misconceptions about the project, good will can be generated.

The following are key elements of our public relations program:

* Start-up notices
* Public speaking engagements
* Notices explaining Reappraisal and the assessment process
* Staff training on public relations
* Good working relationship with all town employees
* Professional appearance of the project staff
* Courteous behavior of the project staff
The following points will be addressed as often as reasonably possible:

. Significance of Property Taxes

. Necessity of the Project

. Purpose and Methods of the Project

. Equity

. Role of the Town

. Role of the Contractor

. Rale of the Assessor

. Necessity of Data Caollection/Inspections

. Caliber and Training of the Appraisers N
10. Need for Quality Real Estate Data

11. Importance of Cooperation of the Property Owners
12. Progress of the Project

Co~NoOO oW

15




We will submit a comprehensive public information program to be approved by the Town prior to the commencement of the
Project. The pragram will include, but not be limited to:

l. Prior to Property Inspections/Data Collection
A. Press releases
B. Mestings with local officials
C. Public meetings on the following topics:
1. The magnitude of the property tax as compared to other revenue sources
2. The laws concerning the property tax
3. The importance of Reappraisal;
Establishing market value
Maintaining market value
4. General outline of the Reappraisal Program;
Data collection and inspections
Valuation procedures
Review procedures
Informal Hearings
Taxpayer grievance procedures

1. During Data Collection/Inspection and Valuation
A. Press releases
B. Meetings with local officials
C. Public meetings
D. Assessor and Tax Collector training
E. Meetings with Civic Groups
F. Mailings to property owners

[1l. After Inspections/Data Collection and Valuation

A. Press releases
B. Assessment notices to property owners
C. Meetings with the following:

1. Local Officials

2. Civic Groups

3. Public Hearings

Our public relations program is an ongoing activity throughout all phases of the project. We have found that the most important
aspect of public relations is educating the property owners on Reappraisal and assessment. Many property owners are not
knowledgeable of how their property is assessed and taxed.

Specific public relations tasks are tailored to the interests and needs of the mummpallty The success of the program
can only be measured by the cooperation and response from the public.

16




QUALITY ASSURANCE

The primary factor in completing a quality Reappraisal Project is the caliber of the project staff. The greater the
level of education, training, motivation, and work ethic of the staff, the greater the quality of the reappraisal. Our
objective is to employ a small elite project team with these attributes.

We have also implemented a "neighborhood appraisal" work concept. At the beginning of the project each
residential neighborhood is delineated and assigned to one appraiser. The appraiser is responsible for doing all
inspections, data collection and entry, appointments, value tracking feedback, data mailer analysis, field review,
and all necessary changes or corrections to the parcels in his/her neighborhood. This concept with the addition of
good compensation produces moativation, job interest, professionalism, low turn-over, and most importantly,
consistency and quality.

Keep in mind that most Reappraisal firms use data collectors to do the property inspections. These data collectors
have minimal experience and training but are the only personnel that will view the property inside and out, front
and back. Using our approach, the inspector is the appraiser. He or she can inspect the house personally and
determine all the subjective factors such as construction grade, condition, functional utility and land influence.

We also employ the concept of "Total Quality Control" which essentially means "doing it right the first time". If there
is a task or operation that needs adjustment or correction, it is halted, corrected, and restarted, rather than allowed
to continue and reworked later.

All project work including data entry, computer sketching, data management and processing, printing, and
installation of tables is done on-site.

We also apply standard quality control functions manually and through the CAMA system as follows:

. Visual and audible data entry error warnings

. Data entry help screens

. Calculation warnings

. Edit error reporting

. Missing data reports

. Phone surveys

. Management sample checks

. Spot and sample inspection by Assessor or staff

N0 oA WN

17




CONSTRUCTION QUALITY GRADING
The level of quality or grade of construction of any type of building is based on its materials, workmanship, and
design. Construction grade classification techniques are employed in real estate appraisal and assessment to
place objectivity into the process of comparing and ultimately valuing the differences in building quality. Buildings
can be similar in type, size, and function but demand different prices due to the quality of construction.

We use a standard grading system with scaling factors from "Low" to "Excellent," that can be expanded to the
preferences of the assessor. Each grade level can be subdivided to any desired level of detail.

For example, "Average" grade construction can be expanded in a variety of ways (depending on what the assessor
is used to) as follows; AVG-, AVG, AVG+.

Each grade designation has a corresponding multiplier or index factor that the CAMA system applies to the building
value calculation formula.

Since construction grading techniques are somewhat subjective, it is important that grading only be done by
experienced appraisers all having the same training and using a reference manual. The key factor in grading is
consistency over all types of properties throughout the municipality.
The following quality control methods are used on our projects to maintain grading consistency:

¢ All appraisers are trained by the project designer

+ A pictured reference manual is used in training

¢ A single appraiser does all work in a delineated neighborhood

¢ Prior to beginning fieldwork, all streets in a neighborhood are preliminary graded by the project manager
and the assigned appraiser. An initial street range is assigned to set the general grade limits for each street.

+ Buildings are graded by the appraiser at the time of inspection

¢ Fine adjustments may be made during final field review.

18




RESIDENTIAL DWELLING QUALITY CRITERIA

Construction Design-Exterior Design-Interior Materials Workmanship
Grade
Low Quality Design is concerned with function not Design is concerned with function, Low cost. Minimal, low
L) Appearance. Plain and inexpensive. Not appearance. Plain and Substandard Quality
Simple box shape. Minimal roof slope or Inexpensive with little or no attentionto | or Only Workmanship
Overhang. Little or no fenestration. detail. 8' ceilings. Minimal closet space. | meeting
Minimum code
Requirements.
Fair Quality Design from stock plans with Design simple and rectilinear with Materials Below
(F) Ornamentation usually limited to the front Below average attention to detail. below average
Elevation. Simple rectangular shapes. Plain finish with few refinements. 8' Average, often | Workmanship
Roof typically gabled. Few doors or Ceilings. Minimal closet space. Mass
Windows. produced.
Average Quality Ample fenestration and some Interior appointments — cabinets, Mass Acceptable,
(A) Ornamentation on the front elevation. Daors, hardware and plumbing are produced Average
Rectangular or “L" shaped. Some Usually stock items. Adequate closet Materials Workmanship
Articulated corners or indentations. space. Some vaulted or cathedral Exceeding
increased roof complexity, slope and Ceilings. Minimum.
Overhang. Acceptable,
but
Not custom.
Good Quality Good fenestration with ornamental Usually well finished w/some wood Good quality Above
(G) Materials or other refinements. Roofs Paneling. Walk-in closets or large Standard average
Often have hips and valleys. Resembles Sliding door wardrobes. Ample linen& materials, Workmanship
Very Good with less interior detail storage closets. Often have Generally
Cathedral or vaulted ceilings Exceeding
Minimum
Very Good Frequently individually designed. Good Attention has been given to interior High quality Good quality
Quality Fenestration with some custom Refinements and detail. Raised panel Materials Workmanship
VG) Ornamentation. Irregular shapes and hardwood doors w/good quality
Angles with large eaves and overhangs Hardware, Spacious walk-in and large
Are common. linen storage closets. Cathedral or
vaulted ceilings are typical.
Excellent Usually individually designed and Gracious interior. Special attention High quality High quality
Quality Somewhat unique with considerable To both quantity and quality. Raised Materials, Workmanship
(E) Attention to detail. High quality panel hardwood doors wihigh quality finishes
Fenestration with custom ornamentation hardware. Spacious walk-in and large And
And trim. linen storage closets w/many built-in appointments
features. 10’ ceilings typical
Exceptional Individually designed with extensive Generally 6,000 to 8,400 SFLA. Materials vary | Highest
Quality I} Ornamentation or special design features. Extensive use of finest quality built-in From custom quality
(S2) Fenestration and roaof are custom design features. Master suite can have to Workmanship
And quality. Roof has many ridges and Multiple rooms, cathedral or vaulted Finest
Valleys, is steep and often has up to three foot | cellings, spacious walk-in, fully shelved
overhang. his & her closets.
Exceptional Individually designed with extensive Generally 8,400 to 10,000 SFLA. Materials vary | Highest
Quality IV Ornamentation or special design features. Extensive use of finest quality built-in From custom quality
(S4) Fenestration and roof are custom design features. Master suite can have to Workmanship
And quality. Roof has many ridges and Multiple rooms, cathedral or vaulted Finest
Valleys, is steep and often has up to three ceilings, spacious walk-in, fully shelved
Foot overhang. his & her closets. .
Exceptional Individually designed with extensive Generally greater than 10,000 SFLA. Materials vary | Highest
Quality VI Ornamentation or special design features. Extensive use of finest quality built-in From custom quality
(S6) Fenestration and roof are custom design features. Master suite can have multiple | to Workmanship
And quality. Roof has many ridges and rooms, cathedral or vaulted ceilings, Finest

Valleys, is steep and often has up to three foot

overhang.

spacious walk-in, fully shelved his & her
closets.

19




APPRAISAL METHODOLOGIES

All real estate will be appraised using a market adjusted Marshall & Swift® Cost Approach with market derived
depreciation supported by a Market Comparable or Income Approach wherever applicable. All valuation methods
and system modules have been updated to conform to current real estate appraisal and assessment practices.

The appraisal methodologies used for all real estate property types will conform to your contract specifications and

approval.

The following is a general list of property types and the methodologies that would be employed to value them:

PROPERTY TYPE

Vacant L.and

Improved Residential

Improved Commercial

Improved Industrial

Condominium

Exempt Improved

METHODOLOGY

Neighborhood land value tables calibrated from analysis of lot sales or from a land
residual technique on new construction sales.

Marshall & Swift market driven RCNLD supported by the market comparable
approach. Neighborhoods are delineated by zoning, physical boundaries, general
age of construction, and general value range.

Marshall & Swift market driven RCNLD supported by an income approach. Direct
capitalization and gross rent multiplier techniques will be employed.

Marshall & Swift market driven RCNLD supported by an income approach. The
direct capitalization technique would be used.

Market value supported by the market comparable approach. Each condominium
complex is defined as an individual valuation neighborhood.

Market driven RCNLD supported by the most applicable approach for the type of
property.

20




SALES AND MARKET ANALYSIS PROCEDURE

Our sales and market analysis begins as soon as the property data is entered into the CAMA system
and continues throughout the project to include sales information as late as April 2025. This is made
feasible by the instantaneous individual calculation feature and the batch calculation functions. These
calculation functions are used in conjunction with a variety of sales and market analysis procedures.

+ All system sales information is kept current. Transfers are entered into the CAMA system
as soon as they are available.

+ Atest value calculation is done as soon as the data and sketch are entered into the system and
whenever any data changes are made to the parcel record. The appraisers are responsible for this
preliminary "on-the-fly" value test and comparison to any recent sale on that parcel.

¢ Anindependent sales file is built as the sales are entered into the CAMA system.

+ Property data is entered neighborhood by neighborhood. Once data is entered, a proliferation of
reports and ratio studies can be done for assessment-to-sales, old assessment to new, dollars per
square foot, median assessment to median sale, land to building ratio, C.0.D. etc.

+ Field review is the final step in the sales and market analysis process. Each parcel is viewed and
referenced to recent sales of similar properties in that particular neighborhood. Feedback from this
step is used to apply final touches {o the valuation tables and formulas.

21




,t,o% New England Municipal Consultants, Ltd.
ﬂ ﬂﬁ Serving New England's Town Government

PROPOSAL FOR REAPPRAISAL OF
THE TOWN OF PLYMOUTH, VERMONT

FOR THE 2026 GRAND LIST

SUBMITTED BY
NEW ENGLAND MUNICIPAL CONSULTANTS

WILLIAM J KRAJESKI, PRESIDENT

APRIL 24, 2023




. NewEngland Municipal Consultants, Ltd
i ServingNew Engiand’s Gty Government

April 24, 2023

Plymouth Board of Listers
68 Post Office Road
Plymouth, VT 05056

Dear Listers:

Please accept this document as our response to the Town of Plymouth’s
Invitation to Bid for Townwide Reappraisal.

New England Municipal Consultants, Ltd (NEMC) is proposing one significant
variation to the proposal. ’

o NEMC is proposing a conversion of your existing CAMA system to Patriot
Properties’ AssessPro software.

Immediately following this letter of transmittal, New England Municipal
Consultants, Ltd (NEMC) has provided, as required, a proposal for the reappraisal of
the Town of Plymouth, Vermont. The enclosed bid includes the conversion of the
current assessment system to Patriot Properties, Inc.’s AssessPro CAMA system.
Patriot Properties’ is NEMC's Vermont business partner. AssessPro is installed in 33
cities and towns in Vermont including Montpelier, Barnard, Ludlow, Grafton,
Newfane, Rutland, and Manchester. We have recently been awarded contract in
Weston, Dover and Dorset. All of these clients converted from MicroSolve or ProVal
to the AssessPro system.

The proposed AssessPro CAMA (computer assisted mass appraisal)
software will provide the Town with a cost-effective method for valuation, reporting
and all future reappraisals. The software calculates cost, income and/or market
values. NEMC is proposing a modified, cost/market system for the Town backed up
primarily by market sales analysis and comparisons for residential property and the
income approach for commercial/industrial property. This valuation model is easily
constructed, accurate, presents a clear explanation to the property owner and is
easily maintained. It is a market based valuation model based on property sales .in
the community. NEMC will provide all training and is prepared to provide on-going
assistance in future years should the Town require service or assistance. A full
interface with NEMRC and VTPIE is provided as a portion of this bid.

P.O. Box 372
Lyndon Center, VT 05852
603 475-9991

bil@nemcvt.net

Ve vantoar . (e e &




® Page?2 April 19, 2023

This bid provides assessment software with all required user licenses,
installation of the same, and a complete re-listing and reappraisal of all property
along valuation defense services. -

The proposal offers an assessment date of April 1, 2026 and a Grand List
Abstract issuance date of June 4, 2026. | trust the information submitted meets with
your requirements and look forward to demonstrating the product and my abilities at
your convenience.

I'm sure the Board has some concerns about converting to a new CAMA
system and doing a reappraisal and conversion at the same time. This is the best
time to convert. You will have 2-3 years to learn the system before you go five’ in
June 2026. This system will be fully compatible with the new VTPIE software in a
seamless interface. Patriot Properties’ (AssessPro) relationship with Axiomatic
(VTPIE creator) is substantial and will provide for the best link possible; far exceeding
the current NEMRC/MicroSolve link. And most important, the tools you will have with
AssessPro will assist you in providing the public with fair assessments will far beyond
what you have now. | hope you will reconsider your decision and | am ready to
demonstrate the software at your convenience.

We have always felt that Plymouth was a great match for us in proximity,
client type and real property mix. We decided to submit a proposal in order to
express that interest. Thank you for considering New England Municipal Consultants
for this proposal.

Sincerely,

N

William J. Krajeski
President




Reappraisal Proposal - Town of Plymouth Town, Vermont

Introduction

New England Municipal Consultants, Ltd. (NEMC) is proposing a full reappraisal
of all real estate within the Town of Plymouth, Vermont (Town). NEMC'’s proposal
includes a complete conversion to the Patriot Properties AssessPro CAMA system.
All CAMA software, conversion and installation costs are included in this proposal.

This proposal provides for an assessment date of April 1, 2026; the 2026 Grand
List. *

*Due to high demand, NEMC will attempt to schedule the reappraisal for the
2026 Grand List. Timing is the issue as we are on a first awarded, first
scheduled basis. We can only guarantee 2027 at this time.)

NEMC will fully measure and list all property within the town of Plymouth over a
two-year period. All data will be entered into the AssessPro software. Complete
values will be calculated according to PVR guidelines and the relevant State of
Vermont statutes. NEMC will hold informal public appeals and will assist the Town
in all formal appeals to both the Assessor and the BCA. We will provide in depth
training in the software over the period of the contract.

A list of all recently completed reappraisals performed by NEMC is included with
the full client list found in the Attachments section of this proposal.

The Project Supervisor's resume is included in the Attachments section of this
proposal.

Project Completion Date

The effective date of the reappraisal shall be April 1, 2026, the 2026 Grand List
value date. The project will begin in the fall of 2024. The primary project will be
substantially completed by June 4, 2026. Substantial completion is described as
the Town's ability to mail grievance notices. NEMC is committed to assisting the
Assessor in the Grievance and BCA process to complete the 2026 cycle.

Cost Proposal

This proposal is for a complete reappraisal of all property as identified in the
Invitation to Bid for Townwide Reappraisal due on April 24, 2023 along with the
installation of the AssessPro CAMA software on the Town’s hardware. The Town
will be provided with the necessary licenses and training to perform a full range of
valuation and administrative functions.

Proposed Cost $120,500

Annual Support/License Fee $2,000




Reappraisal Proposal - Town of Plymouth Town, Vermont

NEMC's proposal is based on the parcel counts submitted by the Town as supplied
in the RFP. Should the parcel counts exceed 1,240 total accounts, an overage
charge of $75 per parcel shall be imposed at the completion of the contract.

NEMC will be amenable to structuring a contract over the project period that
assists the Town in spreading out costs.

Please note that this proposal does not include

e The vaiuétion 6f Aa‘hy"bersonal propefty. Uponrequest, NEMC will
provide a personal property valuation proposal separate from this
"proposal.

The annual support and license fee charges shall begin July 1, 2026. The annual
fee includes AssessPro licensing, access to Patriot Properties’ technical support
line and specific updates. A copy of the Customer Software Support and License
Agreement is attached to this proposal.

Prime Contractor

NEMC is the prime:contractor for the project and retains all responsibility for all
subcontractors, billing and the timely and correct completion of the contract. NEMC
will be using the following subcontractors in the performance of this project.

e Patriot Properties, Inc will be suppling the AssessPro software and its
installation along with the conversion of the existing Town NEMRC and
CAMA files.

At the Town’s choice, NEMC will act as a consultant in the future for assessment
related activities.

Contacts

NENC - William J. Krajeski, President
PO Box 372

Lyndon Center, VT 05852

Telephone — (603) 475-9991

Patriot Properties, Inc — Jeff Leone
27 Congress Street

Suite 1105

Salem, MA 01970

Telephone — (781) 586-9670




Reappraisal Proposal - Town of Plymouth Town, Vermont

Scope of Services

1.

The proposal includes a complete installation of AssessPro CAMA software
on the Town's hardware. NEMC, with Patriot Properties assistance, will
install the AssessPro CAMA system and provide the Town with the
necessary training to perform a full range of valuation and administrative
functions.

The proposal includes a complete conversion of all existing data required
to create the base database from the Town’s current CAMA system.

NEMC shall perform a complete reappraisal included the measuring and
listing of each structure. Each property owner will be individually notified of
an approximate date of visit by an appraiser. NEMC shall make two initial
attempts to inspect each property. After the second attempt a card will be
left with instructions for setting an appointment for inspection. A final letter

_or notice.will be sent to all non-inspected properties after January 1, 2026.

Photographs of all primary structures are included in the proposal.

NEMC will be responsible for the analysis and construction of all land and
building models required to create a cost, market and income approach
where desired or required. Generally, NEMC's primary approach is through
the. construction of a market adjusted cost model. This model is easily
understood by the Assessor and property owner and replicates market
conditions. Commercial and industrial property will be further backed up by
using the income approach.

All property will be fully reviewed by the Project Supervisor to place final
values,. .

NEMC will conduct informal public hearings independent of the grievance
process. With the Town’s assistance, notices will be prepared and mailed
to each property owner prior to the hearings. This process serves to reduce
the grievance load by 50-60% historically.

NEMGC will assist the Assessor and BCA in formal local appeals. NEMC will
provide up to 12 man-days in these processes. NEMC will assist the
Assessor in the creation of the formal grievance notice. The Town shall be
responsible for all document, envelope and mailing costs.

NEMGC agrees to provide services in compliance with PVA rules and
feégulations along withi‘any contractual items. ™ ="

NEMC will provide defense of value at the State level when requested by
the Town for an agreed to per diem rate.




Reappraisal Prdpbsal - Town of Plymoutﬁ Town, Vermont

10.The project will be supervised by William Krajeski. He is a PVA approved
supervisor currently supervising reappraisal projects. All NEMC employees
used in the Town will have PVA approved qualifications.

11.NEMC and the Town, during the progress of the work, shall use its best
efforts and that of its employees to promote full cooperation and amiable
relations with the taxpayers. All publicity and news releases will be cleared
with the Town. NEMC, upon request of the Town, will make available
speakers on occasion to acquaint groups with the nature and purpose of
the reappraisal. -

12.NEMC will provide ongoing training sufficient to allow the Lister's Office to

_ perform all duties required to maintain the assessment file. The Lister's are

strongly urged to become involved in the reappraisal process. Training is

‘best delivered in this format. Full, comprehensive manuals are provided as
an integrated part of the software. : Co :

13. Patriot Properties and NEMRC have a fully developed export/import
feature allowing for the rapid movement of data from AssessPro to the
Town's NEMRC tax billing system.

14. AssessPro is fully- compliant: with Vermont's Act 68 requirements and
current use. NEMC is well versed in the application of both processes.

15.NEMC agrees to provide all services referred to in the RFP as Scope of
Services.

Work Schedule

NEMC is prepared to begin the conversion of existing data after the 2024 Grand
List is completed (June 2024). We would expect property listing to begin in the fall
of 2024 and be completed by fall of 2025. Property review will be slated for March
of 2026. NEMC will look to mail preliminary notices of the values in May 2026 with
informal hearings in early June 2026. The values will be transferred to the VTPIE
system in time for the creation and mailing of formal Grievance Notices on or
before June 4, 2026.

Non-Collusive RFP Statement

Through this proposal, NEMC shall be deemed to have represented and
warranted: that the Proposal is not made in connection with any competing
Proposer submitting a separate proposal, and is in all respects fair and without
collusion or fraud.




Reappraisal Proposal - Town of Plymouth Town, Vermont

Professional Qualifications

William J. Krajeski, President of NEMC, will act as project supervisor. He has been
in the reappraisal business for over 40 years. As a municipal assessor and
company owner, he has participated in over 80 reappraisals. He has extensive
experience in the valuation of all types of property using all three major methods
of valuation. In particular, he is highly qualified to construct valuation models and
perform the attendant analysis required. Mr. Krajeski has defended valuations
before local, state and federal appeals boards and courts. In general, he has
complete knowledge of the assessment process from field listing, to review, to
valuation, to public awareness, to defense of value. Understanding the public
assessment procedure is his greatest asset. Mr. Krajeski also provides part-time
services to Patriot Properties primarily in the area of product development and
testing. He is currently certified as an Appraiser Supervisor for Vermont appraisal
services. His resume is attached.

Patriot Properties, Inc. was incorporated in May of 1985, founded by a group of
people with vast experience in the appraisal and reappraisal field. The founders
had several principles on which the new corporation was founded which separated
them from other companies. Aside from a dedication to timeliness and quality
work, the owners of the company all work directly on client projects. This
philosophy results in.more responsiveness to.client needs and closer association
between the client and corporate objectives. Patriot Properties, Inc. developed a
new state-of-the-art “CAMA” software system, which accurately fills the needs of
county and municipal clients. This CAMA system has evolved and been refined
over the past years.

In the .30 years since the founding, Patriot Properties,. Inc..has installed software
or provided services for over 250 counties or municipalities. Their track record in
development provides their greatest asset. The product is continually improved
and enhanced protecting their clients from software and hardware obsolescence.

Municipal Appraisals Currently Underway or Contracted

Vermont References/Contracts

NEMC currently has three 2023 projects underway in Montpelier, Manchester and
Burke, Vermont. NEMC has been selected for 2024-2026 reappraisals in
Randolph, Weston, Dorset, Newfane, Troy, Brighton, Salisbury, Barton, Lyndon
and Barre City; Vermont;-+- < --»vo oo s

P I

A complete list of all clients is included in the attachments section.




Reappraisal Proposal - Town of Plymouth Town, Vermont

Public Relations Program

New England Municipal Consultants will provide public information through an
initial mailing to all property owners. This process is a proven method for
introducing the program and NEMC employees. NEMGC will also provide
newspaper interviews, posting of information to the Town’s Internet provider and
any other media available and willing to provide a forum for information.

NEMC will provide a notice of new value and explanation to be mailed to each
taxpayer after initial approval of values by the appropriate Town board. NEMC will
then provide sufficient time for informal public hearings.

Quality Control and Testing Procedures

The primary approach to quality control is control of personnel on the ground. Only
one or two field appraisers will participate in the project. Each individual is highly
trained and experienced in the task. The project supervisor provides substantial
quality-control through the appointment phase. By personally inspecting property
already viewed personnel issues are handled immediately. NEMC will sit with the
Assessor and/or his representatives to establish proper listing techniques.

Field review of the full Town is the secondary quality control method. NEMC will
view each parcel and return any problems for re-listing.

The final result will rest with the analysis and application of parameters set through
analysis. Inconsistent value changes within the heighborhood generally point to
poor data either before or after collection. Ongoing analysis helps to find issues

early.

AssessPro provides numerous avenues for quality control procedures. Table
structure provides for only allowed entries. As an example, locations (street
names) must be selected from a list. This controls misspelling and non-existent
streets from being entered. The software also provides defaults, high entry
warnings and complete auditing lists. Security can control what fields an individual
is allowed to change, add or delete. At the projects’ completion, we will have
developed numerous related data tests. These tests are set to look for inconsistent
or unlikely data combinations.




Reappraisal Proposal - Town of Plymouth Town, Vermont

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSED METHODOLOGIES
FOR ASSESSING VALUES ON EACH CLASS OF
PROPERTY AND PROPOSED CAMA PRODUCT
OVERVIEW

©  Description of the Type of CAMA Software Used for the
Reappraisal and Resulting Data.

.| All Cost Methods are a strength of our Core CAMA software. Cost, Income,
Multiple Regression, Sales Comparison — all readily available where
applicable.

‘M Our Sketch program is native to our software — developed for AssessPro

" and in use for more than 30 years, sketching your buildings will immediately
upon save send the information to the Sub-Areas tab of your building form
and produce valuation. SketchPro currently sketching more than 8 million
parcels nationwide.

All VT reports and extracts have been developed for compliance by our
clients. We will create, with specifications, the reports and extracts that will
be unique to Vermont. Our system enables the client to create their own
extracts and reports as well.

.| We have modeling capabilities in a number of different areas including all
types of Real Estate, Income, Expense and Sales Comparison.

= AssessPro 5.0 (AP5)

AP5 is a table-driven system, allowing for the control and consistency the Town of
Plymouth would seek in making sure that their data entry follows the business logic
and rules that they have established. The descriptive and calculation tables are
where the Town of Plymouth will describe the choices that will be available to the
end users when they fill in their data entry forms. Patriot will convert all existing
tables as part of our implementation services. By describing these choices once,
and adding factoring and effect values during creation, we make sure that your
data entry has consistency across all parcels. It also enables quick and effortless
valuation and factor change, by going to the controlling descriptive or calculation
table and making an adjustment, all parcels that share that data point will be
updated during the next calculation.

AP5 has core system settings that enable us through the interface to make
customization changes that will be unique to The Town of Plymouth. These core




Reappraisal Proposal - Town of Plymouth Town, Vermont

system changes are always retained and reapplied during subsequent releases.
In addition to the core system modifications available, AP5 has a field management
form. In this form, the

Town of Plymouth can select fields from any of the dozens of data entry forms and
set default values, required variables, or minimum and maximum data validation
points. It also has the ability to modify the user interface by changing field names
and hiding unused fields.

AP5 uses a robust user security system to ensure that each user has the access
and rights that the Town of Plymouth management controls. In the AP5 security
system'Users are assigned to Roles. The “roles” are unique and they are where
the decision is made as to what permissions a user will have for each form and
action available in the AP5 system. For example, if you have 10 Field Appraisers
and you want them to all have the same “rights” in the system, you will create a
“role” that all 10 of them will be assigned. The role will define their permissions by
Form and Action.

APS5 is the first version of our software that has extensive multi-year functionality
and architecture with all assessment years in a single database. Data is
maintained as an insert and never deleted or updated, allowing for a complete
audit history to be maintained. AP5 keeps a complete audit trail of every change
in the system and presents those changes back to the user in multiple ways via
the Revisions form. AP5 never deletes a record, but instead flags a record as
deleted, so that the deletion can be rolled back. AP5 also records the "before" and
nafter" characteristics of every change to every parcel. Any changes are
considered valid for future years (unless otherwise specified) so there is no need
to merge or update other assessment years.

10




Reappraisal Proposal - Town of Plymouth Town, Vermont

Collapsible / Organized Menus — Real Estate

The shutter menu is flexibly designed to open and close at the
click of a mouse. This menu offers the user all the entry and
information forms that will be used to enter parcel information
in real estate and account information in tangible personal
property.

The power of the interface design is that each and every form
that is opened, Buildings, Exemptions and Owners are all
examples; will be set to the same parcel represented in the
Lookup Ribbon. The Account number is a unique identifier for
each parcel, assigned by the system upon parcel creation.
This field serves as the primary key for each parcel and all data
records conhect to the parcel via this primary key.

Any change in the parcel chosen in the Lookup ribbon, using
any of the parcel selection methods, will reset each open form.
The flexibility of the forms really enables each user to control
their own workspace. The forms that are active for a user when
closing the program will be preserved by the system’ and
reopen for that user when they login again. The program will
also remember the account the user was accessing and open
back up to that account. '

Additionally, the forms can be re-sequenced in the viewer or

even “dragged to a“separate monitor, “for “even 'more™’user B

control.

In addition to the easy to reach Data forms, the menu gives the :

user easy access to the Descriptive tables that control

. Real Estate

| account Detsil

| Activity

) Appeals
Buildings.

' Calc Hisbory

Comp: Sales

Condo Detail

Contacts

) District Tnguiry

7| pistricts

Documentlinks.

Exemptons.

Inc Actual

Inc Approach
Laind

Legal
Locations
Lookup Grid
Mabile Homes
My Images
My Tasks
MC-Reval Deteail
MNobes

Cther Assmnt

L Qiywners
S Permits

Exemption Applic...
| Exemption Deniatl. ..

Homestead Inve...

Other Assmntfst...

i Real Estate.

Descriptve Tables

e e T e B

e T

; Caleulation Tables

¢ Utilities

ZoProcesses

i

information input, the calculation tables that will control your valuations and the

utilities and processes that administrate the*application:

The workspace screen shown below demonstrates the ability of the user to load
All the RFP specified data forms listed as needed by the data entry, update and
maintenance elements for the CAMA. All the other items listed are either available
within these forms, or available via the maintenance of the Descriptive and
Calculations tables, or by using the built-in functionality of AssessPro.

11




Reappraisal Proposal - Town of Plymouth Town, Vermont

 Valalins IS(!‘

il A

| mnaa 1+ B

) e o o . o ;
é_{rw-:.- (LB SPet irimaten } E]uem,‘ Pehen {1 1) Flota f§ 4 £ |
i Pt ;95350 red teded g N - | se'd Axvemt: - i ; :
o poprty D K | Aumal¥ges s bk 18 L rees o ol | i
L uRtAest 9 b rpiedn; prpied s OURE ’ ’ : o : !
| Pespemy1uce 101 - 0N A | bagbbaheads VA - HOD AVE, } . il & e i

i Pl A, B i
{aibdsan g : el Rt S48 380 [sedANV: .
| biteariens 8- 8 c o tedy -, - C oo wemamie e b
+ G Disct - b i} (st i : . . - i i
H ngr. A . g ; ] 11/11/)?7(
L eisten{t ot 04r owaltuy 4P wdembtindm Elocer  Shutehe bt Meshods 1132018 B
{11 UIDSORAVE vmuzzmmtéu Apprakay 1n Process Last 3030 - IV T
| SWAMFILOTI, A RAYEH A WARSU, ST aag)cost Y Ad] Last
‘é : :::Agzﬁ%omr oo , Qe 13
; RO e e a0 T gy
3 : | Mon S
X;,VA;.',eua\-aerc-& R Y ) X B i - '.%1;56,)9@ .
LA nsed i BN : bt SOLR, sV
IS ‘ kiR e S
{ I 442 vl (4190, 300 AT
; ‘ ; T AT C e,
: . ; B X ,
! ! tand: 004,700 e
i { pating W16 e

et e Bomt s e i R

‘ . Tl AR, e

unud ot S

b Larived Tankar 402k

Rucord Lof1 -
[istan4es
!

Report Viewer

The proposed solution includes close to 1,000 reports to support RE as well as
specific state required reports that address all Department of Taxes and legislative
requirements in their state jurisdictions. The Report Viewer is organized in a
manner and includes search techniques that enable users to quickly find CAMA
reports by Category or State Reports by State or code.

All Vermont required reports are maturely developed and included. Reports are
generated in the Crystal Report viewer which has its own export capabilities.
Custom filter outputs can be created that have output capability directly to print in
a grid output or one-click to Microsoft Excel, where further manipulation can take
place. These unique outputs, based on filter criteria and user-defined output fields
are considered custom reports. Patriot includes a Crystal Reports license that will
enables the Town of Plymouth to optionally generate their own reports, you can
use these customized outputs to generate your own reports.

In addition to the reports that are available and can be created in the system,
Patriot will create the extracts of data that will be required for output to either other
modules or to reporting agencies. If statutory changes are enacted, we will modify
or update current reports and extracts to comply with the enacted changes.

12



Reappraisal Proposal - Town of Plymouth Town, Vermont

This graphic shows the Report Viewer Module, with some of the categories of Real
Estate Module reports that are available as part of every standard AP5 installation.

E"J"%'.* IReal Estate |
@77 | Analysis Reports

A;apeal Reports

‘A’ssessment Reponrt?s' o

; Bﬂilciihg Pérmit? Mls'cellan'eoﬁrsi -

Building Type and Residential /Condo
Calc Tables T 7
Checking/ Revisions
Depreciation
é'e'hérai‘j Counter ,r' 'E‘xerinpiicr‘n RéyiJ‘ortsw ‘
GIS Reports B S
 {Income Aipproach Reports '
| Inspection Information

i

( Land Section [ Spedial Uégla?'.e‘;;;l:t‘sw—‘
'Marshall Swift Tables T
Other Assessments /Betterments
 Ownership /Mailng Information
| Parcel Identification _ -

iP{lor;’Other ‘Z‘(t:.iénﬁﬁcaﬁt;ﬁr

Property Factors / District

séales ;

3eady
Each State and each Jurisdiction within that State has their own report listings, as
applicable.

¥ [‘a {2t North Carolina Reports
£} |77 Oklahoma Reports

§7=y Pennsylvania Reports’
[+ Rhode Island Reports

i+ South Carolina Reports

* k) Tennessee Reports L
~ . 7! VermontReports =
¥t Virginia Reports
"= Wisconsin Reports
Filter Utility

The Patriot Filter utility provides your staff the ability find data based on complex
criteria requests of your data, but it also enables batch update and insert abilities
that will save your staff time and ensure consistency in your data.

13




Reappraisal Proposal - Town of Plymouth Town, Vermont

AP5 has a robust query/filter builder that can search and return records, on any
criteria that resides in the system. Once built, queries are easily saved and run
dynamically against the dataset. AP5 is built on the .NET platform and there are
a lot of benefits and dynamics in the grid presentation of data, but the Filter Utility
is a function of the program that is critical in controlling the parcel sets that are
used to navigate, edit, and report. We identify all the users of the system who will
need to employ this utility and we do detailed training on the use of the Filter Utility.

The Filter Utility has also been outfitted to be a Batch Processing tool. Patriot has
always offered a Batch Calc process, but that process was limited to a designated
subset of tables and fields. This new feature opens up the entire CAMA schema,
within limits of course, to the update capability. Called “Batch Mode” it turns your
selection filter from one that can select updateable fields (defined and presented
as updateable to user through clear marking) and input a value that will update the
fields for all the records that have been defined by the filter criteria.

In short recap, the user can define a set a parcel set using simple or complex
criteria, drilling down through the dataset to get just the records they want to affect.
The user can then choose one or more fields from any updateable table in the
database and set update values to be batch executed. Only one table can be
updated at a time, but within that one table, you can affect more than one field.

:;‘7 (B
T, Batch Dl -+ { Expressiont Selact Value fromListt | criteria Flelds:
2B T T T | <l Lo = :
i Filter Fleld st o @’Ba!rh tode ‘ loﬁ EnteravVae: ' xd !( !TabieName FleldNama ‘E)q) Where ’Display Name Text Value
|sseeh. o 15 e PIEREEENo I SR
R A [T e
) ¥ @ Activities *l #)0R Add(l‘ ]
@ Analysls'ra.b!; . : 5 AMND ‘Add) I‘ !
@ Appeal Actions ! I e e U E
1o App-al s Year: wis - ;
ppeals !
8 Assodated Properties . ] Add to Criteria >> l Closed: & !
. @ Buld Permits B ! Add to Lst »> ) Parsonal Proparty H
@ eudngracer | Wiy || BRedle ;
@ Buildings Condo/Features § i - .
X - : !T\,m & nzama for vour blter J T S

@ Buildings Depredaticn
@ 8uldings Exterlorfinterior

“Felds List:_ i Fiter Resuits

) 78;1‘d!;;{s’[ﬁvhgi)nits Cateﬁory ¢ Fl"?ﬁ'ﬁ: !9..4__%__
@ Buidings Sketched Areas Properties R kg
) Buildings Sketched Areas. N Properties 1 2
@ Business Details Spacial Features/Ya... | ] ) T 31000 3-GARAGE
N @ Common Hements ‘ 4] 11010 XA~ TRAF AV 3- GARAGE
B Comparable Sales ‘ ' 5{1-102-0 lXA -TRAF AV
I l® condo complex 1k 6 1-103.0 | XA -TRAF AY 3 - GARAGE
@ Contacts Al T T S ese " T{cv-commve o

B Currentvs Previous

W@ Distictvaiues
@ Districts

7@ Documentinks

14404 Record 10F 25 1hb

; . |
;QUEI’V Whera Full SQL Stat b . I Save Filter ” Load Fiter Ir

[ Propetiesl ParceiD ¥ || WHERE Prop-nactiveFiag.. | |SELECT DISTINGT Frop Properiy, Prop Parce, Propapus -|[ ok || corcel [

In the above graphic the data tree is listed alphabetically by table category on the
left side of the module. The options on this data tree follow very closely to the data
entry form logic of the program. If you choose the plus sign to the left of appeals,
for instance, you will see the fields present in the Appeals entry form, and you can

14



Reappraisal Proposal - Town of Plymouth Town, Vermont

select any of those fields to either express criteria for in the selection of parcels or '

add the field to the field list for output inclusion.

At the top of the data tree is a search tool, enabling the user to search for tables
and fields they need. The graphic below shows the result of searching for the word

“built’. The graphic demonstrates how easy itwillbe to = -=oee o mo e
locate fields in this manner and to use this methodology
to acclimate to how the data tree is structured. Above |
the search tool is the button that will enable the Batch i

Mode capability of the filter utility.

Clicking that will do a couple of things, it will make
visible .an icon that when clicked offers a short tutorial

{
i
}
I

| Fields sty B Exeaute Batch |||
1 |category | Field o lBatch Ve }f !
Properti 11D ] ﬁ

MV-MOD ., v [

on working with the Batch Mode feature, it will add two columns into the Fields List
panel of the filter, one for checking that this field is to be updated and one to enter
the value. Any value entry that is table driven will offer the valid selections for that
field from a dropdown list, exactly as it would in the entry of the information in the

form that it gets originally entered.

The filter module also offers the user the
ability to create a robust saving structure for
those filters that will be used over and over
again. In the bottom right-hand side of the
Filter module, shown in the first Filter
illustration, you can see the options for Save,
Load, OK and Cancel.

Users can create their own Folders when
saving custom built filters and save their filters
together by Folder designation.

The ability to criteria records will drive many
different areas of the program. Reports,
Parcel Review, Download to MobilePro, Show
on Map, Use in Task Management logic and
Designate for Batch Update are all areas of
the program that would logically use SOME of
the parcels, and not ALL of the parcels. This
utility controls that selection methodology in
all these diverse areas, and typically has a link
to the utility right inside the individual function

v faer Bepiid

Fiber Name Create User [ Create Date
¥ B :Appea!s . o

0y iapt i “IN7{013

8- lbedy ~apro 7172013
'“ e%@ c o mms
e o apro {7117/2013
"lf?-[fj ‘&R 310 717/2013
Cle-py o T e ghepBn
3 l#){*@ PatiotPopertesDefauls | a0 O pms

£ [HAS[HASS apo ~ afefant3
e e {apr0 e |0
o &M Eesttho!der o ‘,apro‘ 7[9}50;3 o
e | sarest 2prg D13
ey e {20 Spomn
C|eEy e japvo o imi
@ lrene2 [apro 272014
ey o apro 2f11j2014
ey m {apro Lafispon
B i-ﬁj | NewiTestsam - apror ‘3—/2-57/2401‘4
Ty gew oo

B8 lew 0 s b
[ Create Fiter J! Edit Fiter H - Delete Filles JI Load Fiter |
[ cemcrode || Edthader [ oeeterok |[  swe |
|~ Overite Selected ] l Close l

creation screen, facilitating the process even more.

15




Reappraisal Proposal - Town of Plymouth Town, Vermont

SketchPro

Our sketching application is acknowledged as one of the best in the industry and
is fully integrated into the AP5 system as a graphical data entry tool like no other.
All sketches are referenced to a unique property. Each building of a property has
its own sketch, and the sub-areas will be written and calculated upon saving
changes to the sketch.

SketchPro, working in conjunction with the multi-year logic of AP5, will enable the
user to save changes that will only apply to the particular year in use at the time,
should a special situation arise, that would require that. Otherwise, the saving of
the sketch will act the same as all CAMA data; it will be saved for the current year
and all years going forward.

Building Form — Sub Areas Detail Tab

The Stfb Areas tab of the building form is automatically updated whenever the
sketch for a parcel is opened for editing in SketchPro. When the user closes the
sketch, they are prompted to Save the changes or cancel and leave the information
as it was. This tab will be tied to the information in SketchPro and will update

automatically upon save.

‘Bulldings 15¢]|

B

¢ Skatched Areas

SE@CdNEﬂD!ﬂ“ e B v;f{xesw -

[ Tsketched Area
: Bld! . Skatch ;
! Seq Code| SkArea| ~AdjArea 1D Year
R EY Y -

1 70.0 1 0.0 1.00 ] i 24094 1,30000; 1120}
4 1{BMT -BASEME..| 1,3120 tare T s[ oo Y ; | ! 2408} 1.30000, 11201
: _1]EFP -ENCLP,.. 204.0 2040 9 0.0 [ 100 i ! 41641 1,30000¢ 11.20
AT il istron. | z00]  200] 12 240.0 | 100 i {9835,  1.30000: 11.20]
|| imimmen! ol smel o wms sl [ fvec v
A 1 PR - 1STRL 1,312.0] 1,312.0] 4l 13120 i w0 i 1,30000¢ 11.20
o et v svov e s ! - P :
; l | 79 ] 7,262\ [ 3,892|

(51,41 4. Record 10F20 . b b Mi.rA.om
i show All ”7 summary

| Alternate Areas

v‘f J' Bla_S;qA“l Sketch 1D l T Code [ Type | Area Percent | #OfTenants | Quality _‘!“ % Usable

SketchPro Features

Sketch from blueprints — open blueprint, trace over a line, set the scale from

that line and continue to trace.

£l Sketch smaller pieces separately, copy and rotate them as needed and
attach to other buildings.

& Add notes to sketch ,

Easy to draw or keyboard enter exact angles.

@ Stylus capability in Sketch on Mobile Device

&

16




Reappraisal Proposal - Town of Plymouth Town, Vermont

Security Module

Logins and Passwords
Integrated Security with Active Directory

AP5 enables the client to choose a single sign-on option for their users. This is
done by setting up an active directory group and adding it to the SQL Security
manager. If this method is chosen you will need to check the box for integrated
security in the Configuration Preferences for the database.

! configuration Preferences
— S— - " - — o

e e

' batnéqb}éé Inf:)

\b‘r ]Cannecﬂon i o {Se;’er

NS O e.ssSO.,-*\
1 [ Tabl Assess50stiudenay
t }Analysis : L patsqio2\devi0 H assess50analysis

Roles have actions and permissions attached to them that determine the user
rights for hundreds of entry forms and system actions. By creating specific roles,
it simplifies the ability to assign a number of similar users to the same role, at once
giving them the same rights and system capabilities. Patriot has a 100% record of
providing security with absolutely no breaches to any of their installs throughout
the history of the company.

Manage Security .

4 Sunpay, bleduie - Weknine opie ; : : IaE e
Cadd ) Moy, Delle ins e Seln) Cumomer | Town of Svampscen B Nelect ayoar 201 e
Famige ety A { pacegwupers | Menage Rotes % |
mi\ngu Vs ot i i
Manege Roles B e
Asugn \(ﬁnrn te nolos o ‘Bua'lw gﬂl :mﬂl i At LRI
| o [fehy Y |sRima i} aeorimiene
Adeun Eyz Admin ¥ Kl 0 Acsourt Berall -
é« Aposle Parmis O ERy | % 2 o peeur el t RS
Appravier_cument ! - i i mv.mnm
Appracer_isory * a e A -
= BHs i A Dasrigtve Tablas
- i Mtarnats Typs
fw anas
Ni{i0 Appedis y . 1oor b 7i
19 Archived Recond Cards i
ot Assets .
3 s Asicts Lossad Dutalf -
[ Tardags - Reel Cover W A " Assign dsers o rates e
asdings - Koot Structute L e Any i Bawch Cale &
“1autdings + Secondary Floars o Any s pateh updetesmoent I :
| | Bedngs - Secondary Frt o %a Wi Ay 6 aid Cat Bedrooms ’ W ] & Il
| aundings - Secondary Hast Type T hey 5 st Cat Factors a . 4 i,
Huitidings - Sezandary Int Y/al W Any " i vid catvaluax 7 R i -
! quitdenas - Eecondary it Walt & [P V) L) pid Priang R W . PR
“) Butings - tharex W A Tl wivex Adgustmants . i ot o4 i
7| Burdungs - sotar Hor watee s Lo A i wwtd qual suo Dep i o - v
et BNyoed 3 of 708 (b s amoeone 0 4 | {i¥ Butding Delad Gnd i i s <
o c.»gamis od ate amisied = R |8 Butding Frsme Quatty . iv: i ot '
= SR 5 S -~ [0 Buddings B 58 Xl B A
[N €atetory e en | isRned omly B f e guunes Delad i i & b
b Buunsts Models ) i B4 Bl i
i Calc pistery % & o k3
1 Common Resequenes Form i - i -
| comp gatan i [ts i i
il on 5 ReCOTd © OF O 1. 39.b w m it & ; ' b Condo Detad A s ¥ -
PP S sl gy e Contmals e e AL i w hd

17




Reappraisal Proposal - Town of Plymouth Town, Vermont

MobilePro

Using our Mobile tools incorporatedin your
AssessPRO product suite allows for |
comprehensive field data collection using a §
mobile collection device -that can be
customized to your requirements, including
controlling what the field personnel can view
and/or edit.

Utilizing mobile data collectors increase both the efficiency of gathering data
directly while in the field and prepopulating some pertinent CAMA data (including
valuation).

Patriot has developed the ability to download a filtered set of data parcels to a
windows-based tablet device. These parcels are still available for access in the
office database, even while a field appraiser has them on the tablet for work in the
field. ‘A continuous internet connection is not required. The utility has a cache and
synchronization feature that will store the data and sync it to the office database
when a direct connection is available. The Services that control the Sync
functionality have been designed in a manner that enables a secure transfer of the
information but does not expose the database server during the transactions.

Users can use either a windows-based tablet or a laptop PC, depending on your
device preferences. These devices can be efficient dual solutions for full
functionality both in the field and in the office for select personnel.

Patriot Application Programming Interface - API

Patriot's API offers a secure and flexible means of enabling third party developers
to retrieve and enter data into the AP5 CAMA database. The AP also offers the
AP5 client very controllable security and permission capability, enabling each AP5
client the ability to tightly control the data that is passed to their CAMA database.
Patriot accomplishes this by working with each 3 party developer to have their
own login credentials and then working with that 31 party developer to develop a
unique set of permissions based on the specific requirements of that developer.

Patriot's AP| uses an industry standard authentication system to keep your CAMA
data secure and unexposed to anyone without credentials. The services are
secured using token based and IP address-based authentication.

18




Reappraisal Proposal - Town of Plymouth Town, Vermont

DESCRIPTION OF QUALITY CONTROL AND TESTING
OF RESULTS

The primary approach to quality control is management of personnel on the
ground. Everyone assigned to the project is highly trained and experienced in their
specific task. The project supervisor provides substantial quality control through
the appointment phase. By personally reviewing all property already inspected
ensures data quality issues are rectified immediately. Patriot will meet with the
Assessor and/or her representatives to establish proper listing techniques.

Field review of the full Town is the secondary quality control method. Patriot will
externally review each parcel and return any problems for re-listing. The final result
will rest with the analysis and application of parameters set through analysis.
Inconsistent value changes within the neighborhood generally point to poor data
either before or after collection. We use our GIS symbology tool to thematically
render CAMA data to spot inconsistencies in a visual review. Ongoing analysis of
all of these methods helps to find issues early in the process.

AssessPro provides numerous avenues for quality control procedures. Table
structure provides for only allowed entries. As an example, locations (street
names) must be selected from a table list. This controls misspelling and non-
existent streets from being entered. The software also provides defaults, high entry
warnings and complete auditing lists. Security can control what fields an individual
is allowed to change, add or delete. At the projects’ completion, we will have
developed numerous related data tests. These tests are set to look for inconsistent
or unlikely data combinations.

oy e

Attachments

—

. Sample Property Record Cards

N

Sample Reports

@

Full client list
4. NEMC informational packet

5. Resume of William J. Krajeski

19




| pue 3BUBYD 0}399[4NS S1IN( 1931100 84 0} PAASS] S| UORBULIO] St JOWIEPSIG

005°CL} -9NJeA possassy 0 -anjeA ssn 0 :[ejol 1By 005°Z1] :posteiddy [ejo) 82701 ‘ealy [EJOL
o 00l 000'vL 00'L L SS¥BS'L Q0SS o0t 3 ov ogg 0L OX3zasdad Lz T
-0 001 005°E 00k L O000S'E  00S'E 00l d s3 000°L 0071 zasm b L
0 o0l 000'S6 001 L 000000'S6 000'S6 0L d Vs 000L 001 zas3d 1L 1
“ " SSON_ONEA . weq4. sunf puel: SNjEN % mdaﬂ BT % T L BUIT PO T Nyl U6IdBN [10%} Bid ETTEN NS o X BT Y G LY T < T [T RS 101X UORAIDSa( "os Ul
i o5 oodg - pestelddy ybieN ybeN wun oseg 175 pue - uup -ont ;
(sauy| L 3s}) e3RQ PUET
I ored ainjeubis
T SoloN[eIeUss  smelSs | 9JedpesolD  8jedJISIA junouy uonduasag JequinN ayeq
; uonewIojUf JIUIad bulpjing 7 :
: *Ealy PHIN oyel]
‘ , ze0e Lea) ,ﬂ,
_EmmZ_m m Qo LITVUSYIN _1202/92/80 | 3510 [eASY Jeans
o wu_-..wmw_ ajeq! 2ZSID 3 ..Oﬁo._.
_._o;mE._oE_ ToJuj AJIAIDY L SID ONVT 8 ISH. ZeH pooid
i L | mewussy|[ uonduosag [ebe o10z-0z2L | snsusp |
N peals mEoI‘ r ¢ L
! i -asad 3pon
| oV, 0008101 ¢
“pue pasoirg EETH [T sliojoeq Ajledold
ogqgHoUd
aeqauoud , N 00SZELl _ ¥S GITVYA 1202/50/20 ¥2-/56 W dIMIHd ¥F1HVO
 sojoNjelaulS  JUSA A 9dldlleg 1eN 2jegeles adfL . J9d [eba] houcw._w i o, taseq apon % % =asaQ spog¥
eeanoud . uoljeuwlioju] wm_ﬂw N“—ND UC_:ON eleq joulsiqg.
dzapoud { : W
nw qlioud {008'0¢6 008'0€6 ooy'zLe 8.0l 0 00¥'819 A8 19 8L0Z ,
e |0 008°0£6 00¥°21E 8201 0 00¥'819 1l 1 6loz ey ; ‘
#NVdS 1A 10 008°0£6 oov'zLe 8701 0 00¥'819 1L 19 o020e GENIVINIVIN TEMA *LNOHONOUHL
 GpOOL-9LL-G/E , 0 . 008'0£6 00v'zLE 8L°0L 0 00’8l . 1L 1O 1202 IV ANIHH NOIS3A 3 LSNOD ._<:o
00L'8'L 002°28%') 007'105 8.0l 0 00£°9€6 L 19 720z mouoz _Emcmw :
QidVAIOLINOD ! jeApssy  leAI=OL [eA puE] aziS pue] piEA T [eADpig eSn 3eD JAXel| d
! uoijelllioju] anjeA SnolAaid HELMYD Y dMHd
aldvn !
ob9cocel | .
_umu _ww_n_muwws 008°9LE°L  009'9LE‘L 0 005°Z4L 00s°} 009202} 8L'0L viOL  0000-L000L AN SRMOA M3N ‘LS AVIONWVE 00}
| seiscold 000'¥L 000'¥} 0 00071 0 0 8.8 1z YNV ZLIMOMH3E
joLjed _09z08h 009'20€'L 0 00s'86 00§’k 009'20C') 00 b0 TEVHOIN ZLIMOMY3E
Tpessassy T anjeA [ejol anjep"iby Sh{eA pue  suigy) piey” enjeA bulpling ozis pUaey = " epoIy oSN Jue 210 d P Sum 0 JueLNg
:O_“—NE._OhE_ wB_N> JualLng
009°91¢° L enjea jejol oide:Ag papuud YILSTHONVIN GvOY THANIM Lye:U0REBIOT svaieared
.vm —‘_\ -.E:Boouq S¥00 _‘lwrrlmNm nNOOC\NOW: ..—|> n-_onvmm—‘—o:“s_ NNON\W_‘\QO



1 pue abueys 03109[gns S11Nq 1091109 3 0} PIASIS] S UORBLLIOJ] SIY L JISWIEPRSIA

005‘L :@nfep passassy [ejoL : 005‘} :pesteiddy [ejoL 005°L SWa] pieA [ejoL :seanjea "dg [ejoL
009 009 008 00t 00'L L 001 Ll 62 0 0522 00°81L €66l AV 3 oy 000L 00F L N V ddO 20
006 006 s9z'L 00°L 00'L L 001 L 62 0 V501 00'LE £66L AV ) 0zL  00°0L 00ZL L N Q ¥4/a3HS z

[enieA PSSy onfeA psiddy enjeadepun JoBJT SUNC JPed'N -GN Jed™] onT %ded s/d dn oY @oudjun Jeop UOD [enD 9215 UIPIM U1 ADS/A YV 9S2QIA4S 9pog
: (poAejdsig soul 9 IS1) SWal| pieA [ S3injead [eroadg

00°009'202'L €101 [euld

: 166°202°L @0l deq
INTFWISVYE  1Wg

Ls9'eL - e gLo‘e 0 £16'v91 newaideq

998'LL L8°CL [444 0 MOAAINOLS  Xds g9¥'L9g'lL  Ieol fpy 5
686°0L Zrve osy 0 HOYOdNHOS  dSO 00" 01E4 ON oo A % oo wwwﬂwmmww
sz0'e - 561 sl 0 HONOdNIdO  dd0 00000000°L U] GHEN | 3AS 120K £
£S0VL - 8968 vz8 vz8 AHOLS 4TvH  LSH . S9'L de49PeID oo 1£) 1 098
5e8°L6L 8868 veL'z veL'z AMOLS v/€  SoL L08'EvL 1894 JoWmO WHQIoWos  eedhliesH
990'LE€ 0r'L6 osv'e 0sv'e ¥OOl41SL  14d 56926 OSSPV Sv5 ¢ endieen
[EAIdo@un _ojed  ealy ealyd - 9sed opog [% SdANV 9%  eelydng o0 Iy s asawl
pake|dsiq saul 6 15| - [le3ed Baly gng [Ie}oQ ealy ojeulaly AN AL e
I uoljejnojes | 0 leojuwsg
1003ans
JITYONOD 2l 0old jwsg
%08 DAVIAOSY 651004 99
JOOMQ¥VH € Id9uwud
TVOIdAL L uonned
: %0z QOOMAIOS ¥ 1ieM99S
TIVMAHG L IBM Suilid

00°8 14AH bAvy
| uonjeuJojuy Jouajuf |

0 un _m_m._mEEoo

ywngdwn
O AISucD

00°L 084 psune

%0 oNMuY

19 1A 83 €661 UGIBOA

(+)aoon +4 apeis

I , uoljeuwloU] jeJauas) |

sweN pig

JAPOOMBIN

INOLS /azd 10j03

3LVIS Zano) jooy

I19vD 1 onangjooy

0 X4 IYI0%0S ayvoddvio r4 2iem

9021 :de@% [eloL sweN 0 [uppy INOLS 6 em

AO 0 UMO% v Z wedgell aoom 1 swel

oads v 1 OndSMm (00} WnN A z 1uppy J1IHONOD L onepuno4

uos3 ov £ sidi4 2487 J00[d A 1 wegy/e 1 Suun Al

ouny 0 mipy suun 101 0 uppy 11 HAas

- N ¥ L 1 I pooyuodsAyd A 1 suayouy uoneso \4 L yiegind AHYHOJWNILNOD & adAy pig

[ 'adA1 suj Ay 10014 eguiy uun - ondussad[% {Bunew) Sedmjea 18410 UONEUIoju] OPUGH|[ (busey) Seanjesd yed | UONjeuLio}u] JOa1Xg

SHuU [epuapIssY /Slz al [edded L 101 bes bpig v61) #1300V




61 = adALxT Bupiingeleq)
ANy (1661 > igiea A Buipingered) ANV (0261 =< ligres A" Buipingere) ANV (.0L. = ONTAuadoidered) ANy (gd. = DaNAusdoidereq :pasn 18}ld

WV62:02:8
1202/10/2)
uonedIOT Aq 18} UoNBIYNId)

1A ‘Angsuyor s

seiyadoid jouyed




00'L %YZT OV O 96l L ZEC'L L 8L L gloz/oz/Ll 000'0EL  OOL'LSL 00L'LSE ooz'velL 008’92 Gy 9€0 ol HA HIWEYL 1T veoeLe
00’k %lE AV O sl L 98L'L L 6L 1L SL02/8L/90 000'LYl ooL'sel 001'6EL 008'044 oow.ww gy 9E0 oL O YINWYVS  88L sToele
0oL %OL%OE W 0 186l L 96L'L L 6l 009'zeE 009'zzL 006'66 00.°'9¢2 Sy ¥ED oL O HIWYEYd €91 SL0Z1T
00'L %EE AV O o6l b $05°L b 6L L 1lZoZ/LZie0 000'BCC  00L'TSL 0oLzt ool'esl 00¥'8T Sy LE0 [s]2 AU HINWNVYL S 9T0ELT
00l %le AV O el L zs9'L I 6L L 600T/90/€0 000'69L  005'89L 005891 oororl ooL'sz sy vE0 oL HQ YIWYYL 1oL [oVisra¥A
[oleg %9 OV O L6k b zes'L ! 6l 61 SL0ZwLvo O 009'20C 009'20Z 008'LLL 008‘0¢ sy 090 oL qQ UINYVYL V6 ZEOELT
oot %0E AV 0 6L L oor'L i 6L 6L ¥102/90/60 O 000'95} 000951 008421 00z'se sy se0 oL HO¥IWYYS L 690212
0oL %9T AY 3 086L 1 8Tl ! 6L L ZlOT/B0/L0 00O'L9L  00S'¥SL 008'P5L 00£'921 00zZ's2 Sy SEO oL U AINAYS  6F 890212

e e ) I — — - _HAITAAVA  -noneso]

001 *1SNOLAILJ SA JUIWSSISSY € uno) [Pvieg © 00°08T°E  reRaV paystuly 006°78E IUAUSSISSY SNOIAIXY
€CO°LTY -IUBWUSSISSY aZeIAy 00°00S°8€T 91 deS : 117 SV elo], 006°78€ ‘lv10] 3ud.0In)

a VNNOJ :10¥ s[eyoqng

518 L 8002/92/30 00S'/EL 006091 006°09L 000'62L 006°'Le gy 040 oL HMAVNNOQ st sLoLee

8/6L L ose’L

%I AV ) 1
00'L ©%O0E AV -0 vi6L k 096 L 8L L BLOZLLZO 000LOL  00S'E0L 005'€01 oos'ol  00%'ze sy L0 oL HaVNNOQ 62 £10L62
oot o %LE AY 0 el b 096 L 6L Bl ETLOZLLSO O 00s'8LL 00s'8LL 00g'L8 00Z'Le sy ¥90 oL YA YNNOQ 22 zL0L6Z
) o . - e MQ <ZZOQ Eos«u,w_.m
00°T  :STOIAILJ SA JUIWISSISSY I uno) poteg . 00°88T 1By poysturg Q0F'SST  :JURISSISSY SNOLAdLY
00P°EST -:IUAMSSISSY SFBIIAY 00°000°0pT I dES . 96’y 1S3IDV.IEI0], 00%°SST  :I¥10] Judan)
I THH L1IAVIITHD -10F sfeaeaqng
00} %0E AV o 8L L 88z’ L 6L L vl0Z/EWS0 000'syl  00p'ESk 00v'€st 008'90% 009'st sy 96y oL QM TIH LINV3dR0 921 820050
111111 3 e o o @1 T LINVIIEID ..:E«uoﬂ
00°]  :SNOIAIIJ SA JUIWSSISSY I suno) parey 00°9S0°Y  :®dXV paystuiy 00Z7°6E]  IUAISSISSY SNOLAdLY
00Z°6EY - IUIWSSISSY 3TeI0AY 00°0 9IRS ; 0T°S SV eI 00T°6ET [0 JueLIn)
I MOTIOH QTALXAALSHHD *10) S[6303qnS
00'L L %08 ¥d 0 861 950°L L 6L BL [O0ZROLL O oozee.  o0zeeh . 009'G8 00g'se oL'e ol JTIOH QI3I4¥31S3HO  6V0L 6002.0

00T - :SMOIAJIJ SA JUIWSSISSY $  uno) paiey < Q00°TIS'Y  “BIIVY pavystuLy 006°TPS IUIWSSISSY SNOIAdLY
GTL'SET : SJUIWSSISSY ATeIRAY 00°000°TTY  :9dLIZ 2SS : 90’y  :SIDVIEIOL 006°ZbS  Te101 Jus.LIm)

I TTH AZTTYG 103 s1s1e3qns

oLoz/ee/LL o 00Y'LLL oov'LLL oog'ovi 006'0€ 52 - S [+]3 Q TIH >Nmmmm mmv_.

ool %l %8¢ Vi 800°L 005°€ZL 0o0s'egt ooe'ss ooz'se SY 8oL oL QY THH AZ33E S5
00°L %6e AY 800°L 0gae/ve/ss o 005524 005'szL 001’08 ooL'se s Lot [+% ad TIH AZ3348  6le vLoLeT
0oL %l %6 AV 096 LL0Z/E0/L0 00022 00s'zeL 00s'zzL 00L'¢6 008'8Z Sy Lo 413 QY TIH AZ33¥e €11 Lsolez

DM AE ?Nmmﬁﬁm— 1aogeI0Y

WA OS T 4 W W I g W v womg | omes  oues  enma  enps | OEN S0V spogiy wonesoT @ Pomg
—uogenaxdog— . . . ontd
Ix ey oeS  o[es A21g juermy)  -xdwgy pueg
ASS PUFT x uonedo| Aq e3P :o-««oﬁﬂuaU w 2 . . NVeZ0ZS

940 | obed : 1A ‘Ringsuyor s LZ0e/LIZL




001 :SNOIAAAJ SA JUITUSSISSY L 3uno) [adaed 00°06<° 8;4 paysiuty 00TPOT']  IUSWSSISSY STOIAdAT
CPLLST IUSWSSISSY EY1AETN 00°0 $3L1J IS €€°8 SV IO 007F0T°T  :Tw10] 3wsain)

AAV AAISTTH 10§ s{eroiqng
oL ‘ o} 3 'L L 6l 006'€9} 006'€9) 00€'LEL ‘ omwnwm sy Lo oL anv mo_wj_x oge £2016¢
00’} %YT AV O s86L L 88Z'L L 61 008'081 008'084 oov'ZyL oov'se gy Is8® oL IAVIAISTIH  62€ 9yoL6T
0ok %8T V4 o €86l L L 1 33 ooL'Leh 0ot'lTh 005'56 009'1e sy 880 oL AV IAISTIIH Vi 20162
00l YT AV O £86L L zee't l 61 000291 000°291 006821 ool'se gy 280 ol IAVIAISTIH 662 SYOL6T
00'L %YT AV 0 e86l L Ly 1 6L 6L 2ZL0ZMO/O O 00L'¥S1L 001751 006121 [olsrara sy £L0 oL AV IAISTIH Y62 ST0L62
00} %ET AV 0 v8sL L Ll L 6l 006°L¥L 00671 008'SHL ooL'ze gy TLo oL IAVIAISTIH  2L2 9Z0L6T
0oL YT AV O 86l 1 12233 L 6L Sl 1e0T/ELs0 O oov'sol oor'sglL ooL'eel 0o0g'ze S¥  ¥Lo oL IAVIAISTUH LT yp0L6T
R I e — o R HAV HASTIH _uoneso]

00T :SNOIAALY SA JUITUSSASSY 1 suno) IRy 00°PPS'T  s®eAV paystalg 008°9ST :IUIWSSISSY SNOIAILY
008°9S] :IUSWISSISSY ITLIIAY 0070 29911 J 2[BS S0 SV I[EI0L 008°9ST  :[®I0L JUALIRD
@ TIIH SNIDODIH :10f s[eroqng
ST ST LT - T TR T L e R gor TR e T A T NI LT T AT e T LT T T A e e ST N IR L T T N I T e Pt et T RSTT AT S SRONCEES SR
00l %S RIE AV o zsel L prs'L L 6L 1l 0202/E0/60 O 008'95L 008'951 00L'szL 00.'Le L6y SO oL Q¥ THH mz_ow_: 192 ozl
, IS X AAE mZHUUE saoneso
00°1 :SNOIARIJ SA JUIWSSISSY 1 :uno) paied 00°P9S'T  :BAAY paysimig 000°6ST :IUSWISSISSY SNOIASIY
000°6ET  :IUQUSSISSY EY: 137N 00°000°9% 19911 J 9eS 870 SOV [EIOL 000°6ST  ‘[®10] jwaaan)
AAV NVIA'TID :10¥ s[e303qns
00'L BOL%BEE AV 0 o6b L yes'L L 6L L 6L0Z/90/90 000's¥L  000'6EL 000'6€L 009'LLL 0ob'/z ‘ s 8T0 oL m>< NVINTID 28T £EOVLT
, e e e _HAVNVITID  0oBeoT
00°1 ISNOIAAIT SA JUIMUSSISSY € 3muno)) paIe] 007TLY°C  ®IaV poysiuLy 00S°LSP FUIWSSISSY SNOIAILY
CCPTIST  JUIWSSISSY ITLIAY 00°0 29911 J J[BS SCT SV [¥I0] 00€°LSy “T®i0] jwoan)
1D AAONTA :10¥ sferoyqng
00'L §N AV -0 661 1 ¥oL'L 1 6l 00L'€zL 00L'€ZL 00%'06 ooL'ee sy 80 oL O 440N3 Lol 0LOE0S
00’4 %6Z AV D 66l L 800°L 1 6L 6l /L0800 O 009'zel 009'zel 006'.6 00.'%¢ ;Y 180 oL WD J4ON3d oVl 900708
0ot %LT AY 0 86l L 095°L 1 6l 009'10Z 009'10Z 00801 00808 sy 090 oL MO 440N 19 SL0E0S
.EE«ucA
00°1 ISNOIAJLT SA JUITUSSISSY ¢ uno) [EdIed 00°S8I‘TT  :®daV paysturg 00S°S8E"T JUSWISSISSY SNOIAIJ
QLIPS JUOWSSISSY IBEIBAY 00°000°0<8 :9L1J IS IPE :SDVIEIOL 00S°88S‘T  :[®I0], Judmn)
A AANIV A 0¥ sjeronqng
L sl ooo.NQ 000'zel 00g'soL 8\. 9z - mm ‘Vm, 0 oL a mo mms_m_«m_ &N «,BN&
oney O\Mnm _w.uan.wnumldo 5 ng ﬂED vory I d M« e oouyg aneA anfeA aneA anfep Omz mouo< mvoo\o dcd&ooﬂ Q:ooudm
o a 1x wg IS N ofes  ores “A91g jwormy  xduwy pue ont
eS pue] (T ‘ s o
’ uonedo] 4q [ UONEIYNI) : o INV62:02:8
0 zZ obe ¢ - ] ;
940 ¢ Sbed 1A ‘Aangsuyor 1s LZ0Z/LIZL




. e o YA MTHAVIAL  108E20]
00°T  :SNOIAJLJ SA JUSLUSSISSY © 9 puno) Pareg CQ0LLY'6  :veIV peysiurg 006°C60°Y  IUSISSISSY SNOIARLY
LISZ8] IUSWISSISSY ITLIIAY 00°000°787 9914 3eS 00°F :SeIIV [EI0L, 006°C60°T  :1¥I0] Jud.LXn)
IO TONTAMVT H0F S[erorqus
004 S (WohN ov v06'L X 6l. sl MroN\mr\:“ o} o0ov'LLZ oov'Lie 00Z'8LL OON.wW HIO IONIHUMMVT 2L £hoeie
00'L %9 OV el 1 6L 00L'LLL 00L°2LL ooyl 008'/2 G  S¥0 [+ HIO IONTIMVT 98t VoeLe
00t - %Ce AV 08Tl i 6L 8 6L0TeLTL O 006'€LlL 006'¢L} oog'evl 008'0e B . G§Y 080 ol IO IONTIMYT vEL oboELT
001 . %CE AV orv'L L 6L 6l §GLOTmee/S0 0 002's9L 002'sol 00L'ZEL 0018g Gy ¥90 [+13 IO FJONIHMYT T6 B8EQELT
004 - %6C AY 0sZ'C L 6l L 0Z0Z/LL/60 000°T8Z oov'gee oov'9ee 005'v6L 006°LE gy 00 4] HI0 IONIIMYT 1L 820ELT
oot %Le AY 09L'L L 6l 0os'sel [aleloy=i 008'LLL 0oL'sz S¥  8ro 0l IO IONIHMYT 8t LEOELe
N e R e . e e . YID HONHIMVT  onwoT
007  <SNOIA3IJ SA JUSHSSISSY L1 5uno) pIseg L 00°9TT T Iesdy peysiuiy 006°TL] :IUSWISSISSY SHOIAIIZ
QQQ-.NN\.H JJUITUSSISSY Qwﬁhﬁnfdﬂ QQuccmhth SN IS . NQ.N 1820V [¥)0] QQQaNﬁH [ejol judxandy
WA TIAOVT 40F Ser0iqns
00'L o\nm‘N‘ AY i O 66 L. ‘ L Zl0zZ/62I60 00S°ELL o.om ‘gLl 006" NN.F. , 00g'sel Qom.hmw 4 mm , 20T ‘ Ow . o ¥a AMMD& vel . 600262
— N . e e O _ . 4aTIaAvI  Ronese
00°]  :STOIASIY SA JUIUISSISSY 7 3uno) pdreg © 00°8TET ¥RV poystuig 00V°LLT :IUSWISSISSY SNOIADIJ
00L°SST :IUDWSSISSY ITEIAY 00°000°08 LI 3eS , L8'S S210V [€I0L 00V°LLT CITI0 JuaLIn)
@I TIH ATIDVT 10) S[erorqns
0074 %6C AV Q0 Si6L L~ vOL'L 1 6l 8 120T/L0/80 O 005'LSL 00s'151 000°GLL 005'9¢ LLT [+13 ad TiiH mxos 0801 0Z0ZL0
oot . %Ie AV o /1-1 N v2T'L |13 6l 6L SLOZ/LE/BO 000'08 006'52L 006'621L ' 00e'es 009°6E Sy ole 0L Q¥ TIH A0V lee TYoLL0
) e  @ATHHADIOVT wenwoT
00°]  ISTOIAS1J SA JUDWSSISSY © 1 nunoe) PIxeg 00°961°T oIV paystmy 008°LP] :IUQWSSISSY SMOTARILJ
OQWmN\V,—” IJUIUWSSISSY Gwﬂh0>< QQ-GQCrQNH VLY IeS i OQc,H IS0V [el0], Qawab.—uﬁ B0, juaIn))
: @I NOSNHOL 19 S[e103ans
%S %6T AV QJ s61 L 951'L L 8l 3 w_‘ON\m::. 000621 Oom.h¢r 00821 ‘ 008'zLL @Oo.mm 4 Gy o0t B ol QX NOSNHOIN +8 480004
. e i I e . o GYNOSNHOf :uone0]
00°]  SNOIASLY SA JUITISSISSY 1 uno) pareg . 00°TI6 eedV pIysIug 00T'TIT :)UOWISSISSY SNOIARIJ
00T°TIT IUISSISSY ITCIAY 00°000°STY LI 9BS 17 SV [EI0], 00T°TIL  :I®l0) judiin)
VA MTIA MOTIOH =10 S[E103qns
oot %6Z AV O el L 2i8 3 6l L 020emRILe 000'SsLE 00L'gLL ‘ ooL'ZLL . 002'vL Dom.Nm 344 . ¥a >>m_>>>0'jOI SL - 100080
| MaMTA MOTIOH uone0]
om o\m.m awnw ml ™ o, pg D ey oy M ema eomg  owma enpa empA ompy JENWOV o epeon wopeo0] - @ pord
wepaideq 13 wg IS N FS ems  caug  wemp  udwp  puey oI

3[eS P «  uoped0T Aq Te)R( UONEIYUID : o . NVeZ0ZE

9jogebed - 1A ‘Anqgsuyor i1s

Lcoc/Lic)




00’ %8 %6C AV QO &6 ) 9g5°L } [:1% L 6L0T/9T/E0 000'8TL ooe'vl 00E' Pl 00L'bLL 00z'0e GY 50 ol ¥Q GOOM3DAE S8 £P0ELT
007 %9C OV o sl ) 98 L 6L L SLOZ/RZLL 000'SYL 00S‘ovE 005'0¥1 006'¥HL 009'sT Sy €20 oL ¥ AOOM3DAN 28 £L0€LT
0oL %6C AV 0 66l | 260} |2 6l 61 02T0T/EL/90 O 006'8Z} 006'8¢L oov'00L 005'8T gy 8e0 ol YA qooMIOa ST orosLz "
00’} %6T AV O 86L L YLt i 1% 000'lel 000'LEL 006'201 00l'se sy 0 ol JYaqoomIoan L 8E0e.T
_ B . o R o o ) o ad QOO%@UE& Fuonesoy
00'T  :SNOIAdLJ SA JUDUISSISSY 7 9une) pdreg 00°9Sp'T ¥V paysuLy 00S°C8T UAMISSISSY SNOTAALY
0SO'TP] :IURMSSISSY IFVIOAY 00°0 LI IYES oSy SV IEI0L 00C°€8T  :lvI0) JWALIND
@3 NOISO4 AMHAN 10} Sfepoiqns
%8 AV O L6V L 8Ll 1 6l 00E'2ZLL 00e'LL) 004281 009'6E S ol oL Q¥ NOLSOgM3IN 0lee S000E0
%€ V4 +0 T6L L zie'y A 6L 8 8L0T/L0/SO O 000°90% 000°90% 00€'ZL 00.L'¢e o 0T} oL Q¥ NOLSOgM3N  L¥6 920180
- e e S i . _GANOLSOIMAN Ho8esT
00°T  :SMOIAIJ SA JUIWSSISSY 7 5uno) paieg 00°961°T oAV paysmuLy 00E'ELT IUDWISSISSY SMOLADI
0S99  :)UAWSSISSY ASEIIAY 00°0 oL 3es 9Lp SOV [EIN] 00S°CLT  :[e30) JUOLIN)
QI HVOSId LA 10§ s[eoiqns
001 %EE AV -0 o081 L Qo8 L 61 00L's0L 004'60L 008G oog'se gy 00'b oL QY HYDSId LN €921 1€01L0
0oL %6C AY O 661 L 968’1 L 61 LI leoe/sL/es O 00Z'yoL [sleaz:1% ooL'ezl 00L'LY Sy ele. ol QY HYOSIdIN ovL 60120
R e . e QI HVOSId LN *7oBe97T
00"  :SMOIADLJ SA JUDWISSISSY 7 sune) Paxeg : 00°8¥0°C  edxV paysiuiy 00V9LE JUSTUSSISSY SROLAILY
007°88T ULWSSISSY ATeIoAY 00°000°STL  OLLI 3TES 60°L SOV IEIOL 00b°9LE  :leIo) JudLIm)
@I AIANOOIA :10F sfeaoiqus
ool %S %8¢ vd D es6l ) vev'L i 6L 6l 9L0Z/0E/L0 000'8TL 008'G.L 006'SLL oov'eel 005°9¢€ 15 A 44 oL QY ASNOOW /88 0E0L0G
00'L %S %0 AV O 686 L pT9'L L 6L 6L Y002/6L/80 O 005'002 005'002 00Z'651 00E'L¥ gy eY oL Q¥ AINOOW  ¥29 8¥0L0%
. . R i U e QI AINOOW o80T
QQ-H SNOIARL] SA JUIAUUASSISS _ .H uno)) [Praeg . OQ.N&MTH tBAUY paysiarg chanH 2JUIUWISSISSY SNOTAJLJ
00778 :IUAWISSISSY ASTIAY 00°000°9LY  99MJ9ES T’ :SeMV [®I0), 00TZ8T  ‘T®I0L IudLIDD
Ud V TAAON 0¥ S[03qny
o0t %ET AV O s86lL L 28¢e'L L 61 I GLOZ/OL/S0 000'9L1 00Z'z8L 002'z8L 005'054 002'1¢ sy ol ot HOVI3AOW 8L £¥0L0S
S i e+ e i e i N ... ¥QVTIAOW TOBTOT
00'T  :SDOIAILJ SA JUDUISSISSY 1 umo) pareg : 00°00F°] T2V paystury 009°6P] IUAUISSISSY SNOIAdLY
009°6bT uImSSISSY 95E10AY 9917 9o 067 SOPVIEOL 009%HT  “IEI0L Juorm)
Jd MTHAVIA -10¥ s[e303qns
o\omN >< 20 sl L oor'L L m—. 009's¥L 008'sPL Oov.mo_‘ 00Z'o¥ ol mWONom
uumm o5s m Mnnm ﬁU D g M eory mﬁH “w sle@ oeoug — OM[EA  SU[BA anfep anep 06N mouo< 2p00/0 Toyes0] QH Boumm
—uonendrdaq— 1 g 18 X oS a[es ‘A%1d JUSIIND) - .HQHQHH puey oNn1
J[eS PUE] o

uonedo Aq ejRq nc_wﬁmmtvu e :

o - , ‘ NV6Z:02:8
9o ¥ 9bed e e : 1A ‘Aingsuyor 3}s

L2oc/iich




BTl |

00°1 ISNOIAIAJ SA JUITUSSISSY y  uno) paxey 00018y :¥dAV paystuLg 007°69S :IUSLISSISSY SNOIAILT
00STH]  IUIWSSISSY 9TBIAY 00°000°S¥1 19911 J J[eS YT SV [El0] 007°69S :I¥10] jwsaan)
QI ONIQ'IAVIS -10) s[esoiqng
00} %LE AV O €61 L 890't L 6L L OLOZ/ELSO 000'syl  00§'LvL 00S'LYL 008'L6 ool'sy sy 8T oL QY ONICINYdS 8951 0v0ZL0
[ss %0E ¥d +J /86 L 080°'t L sl 009'L6 009'L6 00529 ool'6T -2 B oo} ol QY ONIQINVYLS 5921 Y0TLO
00t %S %.LT AY O 8/8L L yLE'L L L 8 8LOZILLLO O oor'zel 00v'28L 00Z'6elL 00Z'sy Sy os's’ oL QY ONITINYLS L6 £00LLL
00°L %EE AV O 06 L 88Z'L 8 6L 6L vLOZ/LLE0 O 00L°€5Y 004'€51 008'GLL 006°/¢ sy 09t oL QY ONIIINYLS 856 $00LLL
e . I N . s . QYDONIAILVAS :nones]
001 :SNOIAJLJ SA JUITUSSISSY J  3uno) prreg 00°06T°T Ay paystury 00L°CET  :IUIUISSISSY SMOIAALJ
00LCST  UQUISSISSY IBEIIAY 00°STI°0L RS E 14 Sp°Q0 SV EI0] 00L°CET  :Tv10] ju21an)
YHL MATAAJS -10J s[e303qng
00°1 %.E V4 O sl L 06Z'L L 6l 6L €L0Z/02/80 €2L'0L 00L'eel 00L'eeL 006'50L 008'22 sy S0 oL mmw>>m_>§m zoL 810262
.EES?H
00°1 ISNOIAALT SA JUITUSSISSY S uno) PIIey 00°TST'T 24V paystulyg 007°07T :)IUQTHSSISSY SNOIAdLJ
007071 IUIMISSISSY aderaAy 00°000°0C1 5188 E1 14N ITT sV IEIN), 007071 :Ie10] ywarIn)
@ A0V =193 sjepoiqng
00t %EE AV 0 oL L L 6L | SLOZ/ZO/LO 000'0ZL  00Z'0TL 002'0Z4 005'88 00.'Le AN oy a¥aaocy L L00LEL
. @I 4oy _monwot
00°'T ISNOIAJIJ SA JUITUSSISSY € 1unoe) Poxeg 00°€9S°S  ®dxy paysiayy 00S°L8Y IUSISSISSY SnolAdlg
00S°79] IUSWSSISSY ITTIIAY 00°00S*y9y 5148 E1 12N . €€°9 SV IEI0], 00S°L8Y :[w101 3WaLIn)
4 TOAIA 100y 103 sjepesqng
00'4 %LE AY Q £i6L ) Ll L 6l | LZOZWLEO 000'BZE 006l 008'v8L 00e'LSL 0o0g'ee sy 9bL oL Q¥ 390l 00y 19T Z00€LE
oot %EE. AV D 064 T [FARA 3 6L L €LOZ/ELB0 00S'SEL  OOL'EVL 00L'evL 006°LL1 008'se gy sZo oL QY IOAR AHO0Y 901 LL02LT
[ilep %iIE AV D e6L L 8hz'L 1 6l 006'851 006'8G1 00E'sLE 009'et sy Y oL Q¥ FOal D00 S LE0T6Z
S Q1 IO AMDO0Y _ “Honedo]
001 ISTIOIAQIJ SA JUISSISSY L Huno) [Edaeg 00°P6E°g  “®IIY paystuly 006‘PL6 IUIUISSISSY STOIAdLY
TLT6ET  -IUITUSSISTY ABLIIAY 00°000°78Y 1ILL] dfeS . 99°7  sanvIEeL 006°VL6 ‘1®I0] 3udLIn]
Ud dOOAIDAIY 195 S[ep0qns
[ols 8 %LlZ AV 0 886l L 'L L 6L L 1L0Z/E0/L0 000'0SL  00L'S8L ooL'ssL 00.'651 00%'sZ gy SE0 oL ¥a OOMIDAR  22L 080822
0L %0l %SE V4 O vi6L L VA L 6L € 0ZOZ/LEILO 000'6S ooe'szh 00e'sZL 00z'se ool'os gy €50 oL 0 OOM3SCR! €11 yh0gle
0oL %8C AV O 48l L 800'L r mr 6L .L0Z/9Z/0L O 00822t 008'zeL 009'96 ccm 74 S 820 oL ¥a aoom3nad  vol 1e0eLe
oney o\mgm oo ﬂ_mml WD g W oy oy dup m aEQ somg  SWEA  OMEA  OWEA DN SV apooyo apord
ks a ix wy S NI A0ly juwommy  xduy ont
eSS PUTTY »
: :cﬂ«ood_ Aq req :oﬂ«umﬁtonu INV6Z:02:8
oG obe ¢ ;
'9j0 g obed 1A ‘Aingsuyor s L20Z/LIZL




110day fo pusy

00°]  :SNOIAQ1J SA JUIWSSISSY 1L :umo) [edaey 00°889°68  :voIV paysimig 00L°9SS°0] :IUDLISSISSY SMOIAILY
989°Qp]  UIUWSSISSY IZLIAY £79°69Ty P IeS 687001 SV EIOY 00L°9SS‘01  -[¥J0L juo.am)
SIDIO] PUDAD
00°]  :SNOLAdLJ SA JUITUSSISSY 1 3uno) pareg 00°SPS‘T  teody poystmiy 00S‘LST :IUIMSSISSY SMOIASAJ
00S°LSY :}UAMISSISSY ISEIIAY 00°000°LST 9911 dfe§ 00°S S0V [BI0], 00S°LST  :[€)0) 3uaLIn)
A ISHAVAVZ -19) sjepoaqug
WL us ﬁorw\,vm,&4 et L wmEL L 6L L 61071280 000'ISL 0025 - mmmnm.r{i foom iz oov'es s ot ob N mm Qisuvavz oy , 020290
o o , A XISHVEVZ  “uonesor]
00T  :SNOIASLJ SA JUSWISSISSY 1 Juno) Pareg 00°9SQ‘T  :¥aIy poysiuiy : 00S‘9L :JUDUISSISSY SNOIALY
00S'9L :IUITUSSISSY IBLIIAY 00°0 eI dLES 0L°C SOV [EI0L 00S°9L :[¥I0] JUdLIN)

QI THH 1STAM ~103 S[eao3qng
w0 %0 Dy o el L 950' L 6L 6 Swaome0 0 coge.  coses  oovse 0080y o ore o QuTIH SN o6Y Noo‘.mmoomr
00  :SROLASIJ SA JUSLUSSISSY 7 3une) [oxeg 00°1S9°7 vV paysmuig 00L°00€ :IUQUISSISSY SNOIAIT

0SS'0ST IUPSSISSY IZLIOAY 00°000°197 99117 o[eS 97 SV (B0 00L°00€ 1¥10] 3uwaaamn)
WID NVINTALVA 103 s[esoaqng
- !.,.,..,&Nm.><!:: o st b e L el L | ciozedes oozl oov  owesh  ooZsol  o0Zse sd €80 o » < wp z<§mm:.<>» 6zL ziovie
00'L %L NY 2 86l | osv'L I 8L L OLOZIZEL OOO'SEL  OOE'SSL  00E'sSh ooe'szL 000'6Z sd  ero o 3 MIONVWNILYM ZTL Leovie
e . . . s e : s _ . WD NVINUALVAS  uonso]
00T  :SNOIAAAJ SA JUOWISSISSY 7 une)) [edreg 00°b78‘]  :®edV paysmuly - 00V°C0T IUSUISSISSY STOIALY
00L°T0] IUSISSISSY ISEIOAY 9911 J ?[eS 09°C S9NV [EJ0) 001°€07  GI¥I0L JmALIN)y
¥ LOTYLSIA JAVLS 193 S[e301qng
00"t %S %ie AV +Q LBl L yoe L 6l ez 003'82 ooo'sy oo'sz 5y oL QY LOMLSIAMYYLS 095l ZL0190
00’ %ge v o ot L 086 L el oog'ses  00S'SEh 00z'g8 00L'6g s o 0¥ LORLSIOMAVS 0Zel 680490
uumm O\m T maam w D g ‘s vy IH duay m sle eoug  om[EA  ONIEA an[eA onjep JdN seIy #p0/0 moumooA 1 190r8g
~—uonenrdsq-— 1x g 18 N o[eg  9leS ARIJ JUSIMY) - HQ&H pue T oN1
9ES puEy N
| SPHEY « :oﬂ«ocd Aq __Soﬁ aonevIgrIR) - NV62:0Z:8
jo g abe £
940 9 Sbed 1A ‘Aangsuyor 35 1202/L/2)




61 = odA 13 Buipiingereq)
anv (1661 > ngesx-Bupingeleq) aNY (0261 =< ygies A Buipingereq) ANY (.0}, = anTAuedoideieq) ANV (S¥. = OGN Apedoldeleq :pasn 1934

NVY90:¥2:8
L2oe/Loret

apeis) Aq [1e)9( UoNBIYNId)D

1A ‘Aingsuyor 1S

seipadold jouied




007t %ET AV

861

pri'L 6l

006'L¥1 006'LrL

008'sHL ool'ze

o 3 1 sy 7o ot IAVIAISTIH 22 920167
00'L %YT AV o gesl L el L 6l 000'Z9L  000°ZSL 008'82L ooL'se Sy Z80 o IAVIQISTIH  66¢ SHOLET
00t %HT AV 0 es6l L g8zt L 61 oog'osl  008'08k aor'zrL oov'se sy is% ol IAVIAISTHH 628 sroLez
00t %82 v 0 es6l L Wit L 61 ooLzzL ookl 005'56 009°'L€ Sy 890 oL IAVIAISTIH ¥ie 20162
00’k %YT AV o €86l L w1 6L Sl LTOZELED O oov'ssl  ooY'ssl oot'sel o0g'ze Sy ¥10 o IAVIAISTIH LT 10162
00k %vT AV I it L 6L 00s'€9L 0069l 008" 1€l 009'ze gy 100 ol IAVIAISTIH 08 £20L6Z
00°L %pT AV D €86l L w1 6L 6L TLOZWONO O 00L¥SL  0OLPSE 006124 00z'ze sy ££0 o 3AVIAISTIH  ¥62 20162
00t %l %BT AV 5 56l L 096 1 6L 6L ZLOZEONO 000'ZTh  00G'TEL  00S'ZTEL 00266 008'82 sy o ol QY TIH AZ3Z¥a €1l 150162
00t %8 V4 o zeL L 08z L 6L 6L €L02/02/80 £2L'0L  O0L'SEL  OOL'EEl 006'S0L 008"2Z s4  sv0 o HILMIADIS 201 810262
00t %L %se v o 1.l L 800t L 61 00s'€zL  00§'eel oos'es 00Z'se sy 8ol oL Q¥ TIH AZ33NE SV Z00162
o0t %6T AV 5 8.l L g00't L 6L Sl 0202260 O 00s'szL  00§'ZL 00t'06 ool'se sy 10l oL Oy TIH AZ33¥E 61 710162
ool %6Z AV o 56l L azL L 6L L LL0Z/6e/60 O0S'ELL  006'ZZL 00624l og'sel 00¢'Le sy 20T oL ANV bEL 600267
00’k %iT NY o 86l L osg't L 6L L 8002/9Z/80 OOS'ZSL  006'0SL  006'SL 000'6Z1 006'Le Sy 00 ol YAVYNNOA S 10167
00"t %OE AV o b6l L ezl L 6L © L ¥LOZ/ELI90 0C0'S¥L  0OY'SSl  OOv'esl 008'g0L 009'9% gy o6¥ oL 0¥ TIH LINVAJIN0 2921 820050
00’k %ie AV ozl L - o9kl L 6l ¢ 006'6EL  006'8El 008'LLL 001’82 ) ol IO IONTFUMYT 81 1E0ELZ
! %6l OV o v86L L [N 61 coo'zEL  000°ZEL 008'504 00.'92 sd  ¥E0 ol QIS 12T £L021Z
o0t T OV o 96t L A 6L L SLOZOZ/LL 000'0EL  OOMISL  0OL'iSH Azt 006'9T ) o A YINNVS LT y208LZ
0oL %O0L%0E Vi o issl L sel'y L 6L 0og'zzl  00S'TTh 006°G6 00.'9Z 4 pE0 oL O AWV €9L SL0TLT
00"} %ie AV 9 z6l L sl L 6L L SLOZBLSO 000'MYL  OOL'BEL  OOL'6EH 0080k 00£'82 Sy 980 oL 0 ¥INNVE 88L ST0ELT
00t %EE AV 0 oL L s0s's L 6L L lZ0TNeE0 000'6CZ  00L'ZOL  00LZeL 00L'g8l 00%'8Z sy  I£0 ol HQ ¥IWNYE 5L 9T0E1Z
o0’} %ie AV o e6l L L L 6L L 600Z/90/60 000'SSL  0OS'8SL  00S'Sel oov'ovl o0l'se s¥  ¥ED o O NINEVE 101 020217
oot %9z OV o el L wst L 6L 6L SLOZTWLAO O 009202 008'20T 008'LLL 008'08 sy 090 ol Ha IV 6 ze0elz
00't %oE AV 2 vel L oo¥'t L 6L 6L PLOZSO/ED O 000'sSL  000'SSL 008'22) 002°8Z sy sg0 oL QO uINNVE 1L 690217
00t %9z AV 2 086l L 'L L 6L . /l0Z/80/0 000'LSL  OOS'¥SL  00S¥SL oos'9zL 00Z'82 sy $£0 ol O uIMRIYE 6P 890212
3 apean)
00'L  :SNOIASIJ SA JUIUISSISSY une)) pParey 895°¢  veIy poysImL] 005°GE0°T  IUQISSISSY SMOIAIJ
6RCSTT CIUPUISSISSY ISLIOAY 000°9TF  :9dLLI o[eS IE°8T SOV B0, 00S°8S0°T  ‘[e30], JusLIn)

: -0 10 S[E0IqNS
00"t %T AV O 66l L Y 6L ool'ezL  ooL'ETt 00+'06 002°ze s¥  8L0 o HIO 44ON3d  18L - 010808
00°L  %0S %0¥ ¥4 -0 961 L 950'L i 6l 6L SLOZ/OE/E0 O 005'9Z 005'9L 009°se 006‘0Y Gy oLt ol QY TUH 1S3Mm 967 200°6500€L
00’k %sT AV O 9l6L | zL6 L 6L L OT0ZMZAO Q00'SLL  OOLZLL  QOLeLl 00272 00628 sy ez ol YAMIAMOTION L 00080
00’k %ee AV O 061 L 008 1 6l coL'soL 00’80} 00852 oos'ee sy o0t o Q¥ HVYOSId LN £92h LEOLIO
0oL %EE AV D 081 L L 6L L SLOZLOAO 000°0Z4  00Z'0ZL  00T'0TL 005'g8 00'Le sy L oL ¥ aaoy v £00LLL
00'L %ie AV D el L veL L 6L 6L SLOZIE/0 00008  00G'SEL  Q06'STL oos'os 009'68 sy okt ol QY THH ADIOVT  leg Zv0LI0
oot %8z AV O 6L L oov't L 6l cog'svL  00S'EYL 00¥'60L 002'0% sd  06¥ oL YAMIHAVI 09 $50208
00’k %ie AV O €6l L 096 L 6L 6L ZLOZLLSO O 00s'8lL  00S'8Ll oos'z8 00Z'18 sy v90 ol HAVNNOO 22 ZL0L6Z
00’1 %0e AV 0 w6l L 098 L 6L L SLOZALLLO 000'LOL  00S'€OL  00§'€OL 008'0L 00928 sy L0 o HAVNNOQ 62 L0162
) :apeIs)
: S — R — e U ————
e 0/ST 4 W W I yg WM gy g 9 T oeq somg  eneA empa on[eA uoneso] (I [20md

—uogepaidaq— Ix g 1S M oS oeS -ARIg yuormyy  -aduay 20T
J[eS puE
ISl apeLs) £q el uoneIYnId)y V90478
¢
¢ Jo | abed 1A ‘Aingqsuyor i ‘ 120Z/L/2L




%TE AV +0 161 L

0se'L

L 6L 8 6L0TRLTL O 006’} 006'€L) oog'svl cog'oe S¥ 060 43 IO IONFIMYT ¥EL opoele
+D 3pern)
00°1 :SNOIARIJ SA JUIUASSISSY ;uno)) PAeg 908°CL eIV pIysluLy 00T°IT6°g :IUQWISSISSY SNOIAM]
GCE'9CT  IUIMISSISSY IBLIIAY €79°769°€ Q0L ITeS 67°9L <SPV IEIOL 001°T16°8 ‘Ie103 3u01an))
D =10y sjgjoyqng
%6Z AV LL02/80/20 O 009'zeL 009'zel 006'L6 002'%€ 25 0] oL IO J40N3d  ovl 900¥05
%ET AV 6L L Sloz/og/e0 000'9LL  00ZEsl 00z'z8l 005°051 oon..rm Y w.mr oL VAVIEAON 8Ll £Y0L0S
00'L %S %9T V4 6L 6L OLOZ/OL/L0 000'8CL  O0B'SLE 006'SL4 oov'sel 005'9¢ sy T oL QY AINOOW /88 0E01L05
ool %L AV 61 009'102 009'102 008'0L1L 008‘0e Gy 090 oL IO 44ON3d L9 §10€08
00°} %S %8Z AV 6L 6L 9QLOTEILL O oov'LLL cov'LLE 00s'ovl 006'0€ sy 99t ol Q¥ TIH AZ33489  SS¥i 910£08
ool %lT AV 6L L 0LOZ/Le/eL 0oO'sel  DDE'SSL ooe'sst ooe'szh 000°6Z 525 I > 4] o3 IO NVINRFLYM  22h Leovie
00’} © %TE AV 6L | €lL0T/STIE0 000'9CL  OOv'eYL oor'zrl 00Z'60L ooz'se sy €80 oL MO NYWHILIVM 621 zZIovie
00'L %0V %EE AV 5L | 6lL0Z/90/80 00O'9FL  O0C'6EL 000’68} 009'LLL 00¥'L2 Sy 820 oL AV NVWIID 28T £EOPLT
00l %9C OV 6l 00}'2L1 001'LL ooe'syl 008'L2 Gy svo oL 1D IONTEMYT 991 THOELT
.00} %TE .>< 61 61 §H0C/6Z/SO O 00Z's91L 00Z's9k 00L'LEL 0oL'sZ Sy ¥90 [s]3 : IO SONFUMY I 26 8E0ELT
‘o0l %.LT OV 6L 6L €L0Z6LLL O oov'Lie 0o¥'11e 00Z'8.L 00zZ'ee 6y €80 oL “ €O IONFIMVT 2L EVOELT
oo %6T AV 6L L 0ZOZ/LLIEO 00028  0OY'9TT oov'eze 00S'v6L 006'LE sy 0.0 oL : IO IONSUMY T LL 8Z0ELT
0ol %L AV 6L L 1LOZ/EO/LO 000'0SL  0OL'SBL 004’581 00L'651 0o¥'se gy SE0 oL : 63 GOOMIDARN  Zeh 0E0ELE
00’ %8 %6 AV 6l L -6L02/92/€0 000'8ZL  OOE'LbL 00g'LYL 00L'LiL 00z2'0¢ [ ] oL . G QOOMIDAN © §8 £V0ELT
0oL %8C AV 61 6L ZloE/eol o 008'22L 0os'eeh 009'96 ooz'ee sy 620 ol ¥ AOOMIDAN YOl LE0ELT
00l %6C AV 6l 000'LEL ooo'Lel 006'20L 00L'8z gy ¥E0 oL ¥3 aOOM3DaN 1L 8E0ELC
[slex} %ET AV 6L 6L 020e/Ee/90 O 006'82L 00682l aop'o0L 00s5'82 Sy 8g0 oL ¥A QOOMIDAN  §2 sl
00'L %9T OV 6L L OL0ZZe/Ll 000'SYL  00S'OVL oog'ovL 006'vLL 009'se 6y €20 oL ¥a qooMIoard 29 £60€.2
00 %0l %SE Vd 6L € OCOT/LE/LO 000'6S 00£'sTH 00€'sTL 00T's6 ooL'oe sy €50 oL ¥Q AOOMIOARS €11 Y0eLT
004 %S %iE AV 61 LI 0COZ/E0/60 O oog'gst 008'95L 001'szZL 00.°Le sy 507 oL Q¥ TUH SNIODIH 182 yyoTLL
0oL %S %6T AV 5L L 8loZBLLL 00062 [ols:: 9220 008'L 008'ZLL 000'se gy 001 ol Q¥ NOSNHOT  v8 290001
0oL %8T AV 61 o0€'2L) ooe'ZLL 002’28l 009'6¢ sy oie ol QY NOLSOEMAN 0LeZ 50000
oo} %0€ ¥d 6l 6L LOOZRO/LL O 00Z'sel [slorat:ii 009'66 009'6€ (=S I TA oL MOTIOH Q131443183HO  6¥0L 6002.0
00'L %6Z AY 6L 8 1T0Z/L0/90 O 005'LG1 00§'LS) 000'5LL 005°9¢ sy LT oL Q¥ THH ADIOV1 0801 02020
[sleg} %6C AY 61 L1 1202/9L/E0 O 00Z'voL 00Z'volL ool'szh 0oL’y sy oLt oL QY HVOSId LN OVL 6£01L20
00} %8¢ Vd 6l 00€'52) ooe'szl 00Z'98 00L'se gy 887 oL 0¥ LORLISIONNVLS 0ZElL 60190
007} %EE AV 6L 6L ¥L0C/LHE0 O 00L'€5L 00L'€S1 008's1LL 006'.8 sy 09t ol Y ONITINVIS - 856 $00LLL
00’} %LE AV 6L L 0LOZ/ELISO 000'SYL  00S'LPL 00§'L¥L 008°26 0ol'ey sy 81T o4 Q¥ ONIINYES 8951 0vaTL0
00l %S %LT AV 6L 8 8LOTLLIO O oot'z8l oov'zel 002'6EL 002y 6y 08'S oL Q¥ ONIQINVdS L6 £0041L
0oL %ie AV 6, 1 L20TWLE0 000'6ZE  006'¥BL 006'v8L oog'LsL 009'ee sy 9l oL Ty 39018 D00 192 200ELT
oo'L %EE AV 6L 1 €£L0Z/ELB0 00S'SEL  00L'ewl ooL'svl 006'ZLL 008'sT gy STO oL ay 3908 D00 901 [$%:r4%4
0oL %LE AV 6l 006851 006'85) 00g'sLL 009'eh [ B A: a4 oL ay I35 D00 §F LE0262
00't %S %0Z AY 6l 6L ¥002Z/6L/80 O 005'002 005°002 00z'esL 00g'L¥ s 9% ol 8v0108
ey 0/sd 4 T g eoug onfep an[eA anfeA anfep DEN sV 8poo/0
—uoyenardog— 1x my IS M SES  ofes “AR1g juormyy  ~xdug pue oNT
IeS PUE Yy
. mE opelD Aq [repQ WOBEIYRIY NV90:+T:8
€ Jo g obed LA ‘Aingsuyor 1S LZ0Z/LIZL




1oday fo pusg

00"}  :SROIARLJ SA JUIWSSISSY 3unoe)) [Edley 889°68 ¥RV paysIuLy 00L°0SS*0T :IUDMISSISSY SNOLAdLJ
089°gH] IUIWSSISSY ITELIIAY €79°SOTp LT S 68°00T ISPV IEIOL 00L°9SS0T  :1¥30, 3WoLn)
SIDIO] pUD.AE)
00'L  SMOIABIJ SA JUIWUSSISSY Juno)) [#aIe] $90°S  vIXY PIYSIULY Q0TSSP TIUOMISSISSY SNOIAL]
00C°80T :IURWISSISSY IBLIIAY 000°LST 9oL o[ES 65°S BV [EIL 00T°SSH  IEI0] 3WdLIL)
+( :19f sjezoIqng
T kv e v @z L e s swomase o oooso  owoso - ooez.  ooree sy 02 0 QM NoLSOBMEN 76 s
oot %G %le AV +Q E6h L ve8 L 6l ooL'8L oov'aL o00'sY ooL'sz s¥  8L0 oL C¥ LORLSIOYUVLS 099k ZLo1e0
00t %0e ¥4 +Q Le6b L o0t L 6L 009’16 009’16 00529 00162 sy o o Q¥ ONITINVdS  S9EL 02L0
00t %S UOLUPT V4 +Q 688l | sv8'h 1 6L | Gl0ZLZ/80 000'/SL  00G'SL  00SUSL  00S'kZL 000'9e 5y 0% o Q¥ DISUVavZ ov 020Z90
e e - L . . . Lo
00°L -SMOIADAJ SA JUIWISSISSY 3uno)) (93 0STT  :vedV poystary 006°CLT :IUQMISSISSY SNOIAdA
006°CL] :IUSWSSISSY 9SLIdAY 0  PILIOTES 06°0 SO0V [EI0L 006°CLT  TEIOL 3UdLIND)
oney O/ 4 mnam w1 ng RIS e ooug anfep anfep snfep onjep OdaN m@h%««UDA 9poa/0 [rutizelugy
—uenERAtq— 1x ofes  o[eg "ae1g jwermy  xdurg pue
QAes puey ‘ i
. -IpeI) Aq [IejeQ UOnBIFDI) NV90FT8
o ¢ abe LT & g
¢ Jo ¢ obed LA ‘Mngsuyor is L20e/LieL




Lcod/Licl

09N Aq padnois
Joday sisAleuy

1A ‘Aingsuyor s

soladold jolied

01, = sESsieonTalqe  sisAreuvered

:pasn 1)1




0Zl pue g Usamjaqy, 0§ . 060°L :qud VS0 :AeQ piepuels . 88L'L  :ueipsiy

0Ll pue 06 usamjaqy, 0 o S . ¢ge’ee Ao 060°L :ueapy pajybiopp S08°0 oney Ui
G0) pue. g6 usamyaqy, 0 €C9°Sh :A0D ¢ unod 88L°L :uesp , LLS'L oney Xeny
e :5gN 404 Arewiuing
LISy 000'68 oog'sel  OZoT/ETE L O T4 z %0 %S %T %S vd O sssl o6L's  YO¥'ZT  OOLLINW 890 € 0l L4¥IINIO QIO LT 200620004
5080 000'051 00,0ZL ®lOZZZS L O T L %0 %0 %0 %0 ov 0 g6l 0167  SrS'L  INIANOD  ¥8¢ €4 0L L4¥3INTOQIOS08 820001
oney aold 2es anjeAjuaung  9leg YN syieg suyieg sig  suun  JIAQ oadg ound UODY °puoy speIS  JNg BANY SSOIO Baly uld  odAL 321 9poD  NZ D8N 2N spiD uogeso] #AUNo22Y Jo gjedied
sales zn lind vofeioaldad Jesp Buipjing puetr  AID jo#
‘ 94N Aq padnoug [ ozozioeis | L | BLoZ/eY | “Woxd
JUBOEA SE PIOS. S3]Edipu| S oy Hodoay sisAjeuy S aBuey 2)eq WVED:9Z:8
vLjopebed I e e LA ‘AIngsuyor1s . , : L2Z02/L0RL




0Zl pue og usameq?, 00} : S00°L :aud 2.0°0 :AsQ piepuejg 986°0  :uelpsiy

OLL pue gg Usomaqy, o8 . . €8L°S 00D 100’ :ueoly pajyblom 2060  oned UIN

G0l pue ge ueamieqy, 0§ 299°L - IAOD yL uno) S00°L  :ueoly : 9L loned Xew

21| :0¢N 103 Arewwng
.60 000°L8C 00£'0€2 6ioc/ieeis L 1A < b4 L %0 %0 %0 %0 AV o Lest 8/T's ove'T VINOTIOO 80 yd 0O L QY TIH 10430 €L 100°Se0108
stoL 000kl 00zZ'124 eLoz/eeis ) o 1 € I %0 %0 %0L %0 AY D Ss6l 0og'e [T % HONVY o ¥4 0L L ¥Q 13SNNS 80T ¢ 290082
£.6'0 goo'szL o009’z gLoenLy 1 o] L € L %0 %0 %0 %0 \'4 0 0861 ¥Ze'T ozL'L HONVYY vo'L vd oL b WA SNvavy s £50082
2060 000'sTL [ssTArAAN &L0C/9CL L 0 3 Z L %0 %0 %0 %0 ov Fo T -3+1513 8Le'T 618 HONYY €20 vd 0l 1 M¥Q13ISNNs g5t oy008Z
gel’l 000°'zZ0L o[+]-194 gLogives L 4] i YA L %0 %0 %0 %0 AV o §%6L 0552 #60°L ° HONVY 20 yd 0L 1 ¥g13IsSNNsoct - 8E008T
8L 00Z'801 00g£'9ZL 0zoc/leIs L 0 3 A L %0 %0 %0 %0 V4 fo NV 1:14 s0l'e gL't HONVY 080 vd ol L YO 13ISNNS el 9£008C
18670 000'c8 oor'Le 6LociBI0L L 0 3 € 1 %0 %0 %0 %0 V4 2 ossl 005°'C 290°1 © HONYY 6270 vd 0l I 3AVVYISOO ist 4+ ¥10082
0e60 Q00'egL 009’151 gLozgioelL, L [} z 14 L %0 %0 %0 %0 oV o S¥6l zsL'e $06'L L Ad¥O 990 ¥4 O L AV UDRIV 6L v 9¥0eLT
$66°0 000°'s6 00L'v6 sLog/BZ/I 4 0 L € L %0 %0 %0 %0 i\ o svel 85Y'T iz . VYO L0 ¥y 0Ol Il v QYOONOD L0ZL 1 BEOTLT
€r6°0 0oo'ovL 000'zel ggoefoe/s b 0 P e I %0 %0 %0 %0 AY o SS6L 162’ 808'L N 34V 620 4 0l I ¥ QYOONQOD sSLL o [eoele
0101 000°0S1 00g'LEL sLog/isLe L 0 Z € %0 %0 %0 %0 oY O oist ogg'e L66'L AALS Q10 ge'L vy 0O} L QYOONCD Q0SS 1007120021
81071 000°'08¢ 00.'98¢ 8L0TISL/LL L 0 z 14 T %0 %0 %0 %0 AY 3 isel S65°01 2L HONVY s8°1 4 0 Z QY NId:H00 €2 3 Ploleo
6E6°0 000'09L 00£'051 8L0TBLLL L 0 < Zz 1 %0 %0 %0 %0 AY O Zssl 2.8'C 90e't  -INIANOD sl 1 2- B I O7TI0H 8S09 96T + 8P00S0
69071 000°0SL Q0e091L gLocisLe L 0 Z € L %0 %0 %0 %0 AY -0 00T vol'e FA%-2" HONYY 850 vy 01 1 IMI3U0UIIA SY L£0°870720
oney  @UdSES  onjeAeLn) S YN Syled Suleg sig SN JAQ0 29d§ oung  uedF Puo) epeiD - Jing  BAlVSsoip Ealvuld 9dAL °21§ 9pos NZ DSNOMISPK ' uogedo] #HuNooY Jo gjledsed
soes r443 find uopetoaideq Jes A Buipling puer A0 o#
94N Aq padnois oeozioers | 0L [ :

¥1 Jo z 9bed

JUEOBA SE PIOS SSJEOIpUl

poday sisAjeuy

1A ‘Aingsuyoris

8L0z/6/¥ _ ‘wol4

abuey ajeq

NVE0:92:8
120Z/L0/Z}




0T} pue gg usamiaqy, - 96 €L0°L aud 160’0 :Ae( plepuels §.6°0 ‘ueipaiN
011 pue p6 Uaamiaqy, 0L 99’9 ~dod 61760 :uesly pajybiapn €CL0 oney uliN
G0 pue g6 Usamyaqy, - 99 6SY6  :AOD LZ unoj 296°0 “:ueapy arL’L -ogey Xel
L] :9gN 404 Arewiwing
€960 00024 006'201 ozoe/LLy L 0 3 z L %0 %0 %0 %0 AV 0 g6l o'T 98 HONYY 180 Sy Ol L TIIH AZ334d ¢e0) 0£0¥0s
§L0°L 000°04) 009'CTLL  6L02/02/3 L 0 4 € L %0 %0 %0 %0 ao O gs6l 0€5'€ 96E'L HONVA gg8e gy 0b 1 d0V3IAOW et 200°620105
¥€6°0 000°'s82 008’2 0202/92/9 L -0 4 € L %0 %0 %0 %0 AY 3 OloT aiv'y gs6'L 3dVD 0872 Sy ol L ¥dVI3aOn ss 1£0L0s
8€0°L 0os'sSh 008'PYL gLozZ/iviie L 9] } € L %0 %0 %0 %0 AY O 6961 zol'e oee'L HONVY ieo 4 0 L ¥3LAMIIADIS 8€ jorasrATA
S¥6°0 0o0'sel 005’8zt gLogisiiL b 0 |3 Z L %0 %0 %l %0 AY O 996l 200° 8zl HONVY 62°0 sy 0O L UILMIINDIS 85 ¥2026T
6080 000'sLL 008'LyL [rav4iis] 1 0 3 € L %0 %0 %0 %0 AY 3 6%6l Lo0'e 002t HONWY LE0 Sy 0 L HILMIINAS LOL 610262
16670 006651 oov'egL L0211 3 0 Z 14 L %0 %0 %0 %0 AV O 0861 6LT e0‘L N3 1dS ob'L gy Ol L ¥aTEEnv1 g L1L0T6T
1EG7L 000'05C 0oe'ese elozie/ol L 0 € € L %0 %0 %0 %0 Y O s00T ovo's frANA HONW Yo'l sy oL L4 T7IH AZ334d 8le 200°€0026C
5201 0oo'Lot 005°'e0L sLoziiLiL L o L z b %0 %0 %0 %0 AY 0 vi6l ze6'L 096 HONVY L0 sd 0L L VA YNNOQJ 62 €lolee
$oL°L 000'8ZL 00E'L¥L eloz/igzre L 0 L € L %0 %8 %0 %0 AY Q2 Si6L olz'e 9e5') HONVY 50 gy 0L I G QO0OMIDAN S8 £Phoele
Zi870 osy'est 009'89L gLoz/eg/ioL L o] I € b %0 %0 %0 %0 ao O 0961 or8'eT ooe'L N3 LNds ¥e0 Sd Ob L G QOOM3DURIvL S04
$66°0 006'041 00€'0LE elozeely L 0 13 € L %0 %0 % %0 AY o 088l 08T L6e’L 3dVD 80 Sy 0L L ¥ TIH SNIODIH 6 ye0elZ
8160 000’09t 008'grL 8Loz/iLziL L o Z 14 L %0 %0 %0 %0 AY 2 006l viL'e 2¥9'L  IN3ANOD €80 sd Ob L IAVY NVATID ££2 seovie
5670 000’ .000'sst 6102/9/9 3 T L 14 L %0 %0 %01 %0 AY O 0461 oLg'e es‘L HONYY 820 g4 0L L 3AY NYWIID 482 £eorie
95670 ooo'syL ooy'zyl 8Loz/iergs L 0 b € L %0 %0 %0 %0 V4 Fo 7113 : 008'T oov'y NI 1dS 20 Sy 0l I O NYAEILVM 681 600¥1Z
$68°0 006'68L oos'sgl  8LOZ/STIS L o] Z € L %0 %0 %0 %0 oV O ossl yeLT yee't N3 10dS g0 S¥ 0L L ONVIARELYM 60T 80071
960 ooo'esl oov'est 6102/ L 0 < 14 L %0 %0 %e %0 AY 0 996t oLL's 821’ HONVY €L0 sy 0l L O NVNEILVM EVT 00T
$6870 000'6LZ oo0'sel  6LOZISTIS L 0 k4 £ L %0 %0 %0 %0 ov jo TN <111 986t Si8'L 3dVO 190 gy oL L [0 IONIuMYTvE 0£0ELe
€TL0 005'89C ooT'ysL ozoziee/e L 0 4 Z L %0 %0 %0L %0 AY 0 6002 234 960°C 3dvO 0L0 gy 0 L 10 SONFUIMYT 85 100°8Z0€1C
£08°0 000282 ‘pov'gze ocoziiie L 3 < v L %0 %0 %0 %0 AV o 88l 902'e 0sZ'e HONVY 0.0 gy Ol LIO IONIUMYT L j:rdv ¥4
2860 00029} 009'09L  ozoELIB b 0 Z 14 L %0 %0 %0 %0 AY J issl 18T $£0'L N3 11dS 9€0 S 0L 1 HQu3Ndvd eeT prAusr4
sri'l 000'62} 008'2vL gLoz/eL/LL L 0 3 € L %0 %0 %S %0 A\ 4 O &i6L ocT'e 961t HONYY Q0L sy Ob 1 QY NOSNHOr #9 £9000L
S/l6°0 000'SLL ooL'gLL ozozwvei 1 o] 3 < L %0 %0 %0 %0 AY 0 elsi yoL'e i HONVY 2%4 gy 0 L IMIIAMOTIOH §2 00080
£00°L 000'4SL 00S°25L 6l0z/icie L 0 i € L %0 %0 %04 %S Yd +J 6861 6.0'V 8ye’l HONYY 00'e gy Ob L QY DISYvavZ Iy 020290
80071 00s°LeL ooe'sel 6log/eeil L 0 3 € L %0 %0 %0 %0 AY D 8g6L 98T 89E'L HONWVY 80 sy 0Ol L ¥ HVYOSId 1A 09 480180
§80°L 000's9T 00L'6iC  0ZOZ/9ER L o] I € L %0 %0 %0 %0 ov o ss86l 20y ZEO'ZT  ATTLNdS 90 gy 0L I ¥HVOSId LW SeS £90180
8160 000's0Z 00¥'00T 6L0T/8lY [ Q 4 € L %0 %0 %0 %0 AY 0 8is6l zz9'e 4%-a% N3 LI1dS 19 sy 0l 13 AT NOTUA 601 Ly00€0
oney 20Ud a[eS SneAuUsuNg  sleg VYN Syieg suyeg sig  siun  IAQ sedg ound uody Cpuod speld  Jng  BalyYSS0ID) Balyuld  edAy 3zIg  9po) Nz 28N D11 spid UuoREso #AUNCIoY Jo Qi[eaied
sajes 4 nd uogeioaidag 1BRA Bupjing puel  AID Jo#
e 99N Aq padnoin oeozioes | oL | 8L0z6/y | Hwoid

JUBOBA SE PIOS. S9jEolpy| . tOQmm sis >_m=< abuey 238 INVE0:-9¢:8

1 ¥} 40 ¢ sbed o 1A ‘Aanqsuyoris S 00 s ¢ L20z/L0/eL




02} PUE 08 USIMIEqY,

900°L " :qud

001 280°0  :A9Q piepuels i - $66°0 . :ueipoiN .
0LL pue 06 Usam)aq% G/ 291’9 :d0d 656°0 :uesi pajybiapm ST -§08°0.  oned Ul
S0l pue 66 Uaamiaqy, €9 9058 :AOD g8 ;unod $96°0 :ueopy - : i LEO'L - toney Xel
)3 194N 40} Arewuing
1oL 000’66} 00zZ'L0T  8lOZLLL L 19 4 14 L %0 %0 %0 %0 AV O 6L fArA4 22T VINOTOD 520 - 94 0O L 3AV 3AISTIIH G2 2p0L6T
$08°0 ooo.omw 00Z'L0C  0ToT/E/e L L A 14 L %0 %0 %0 %0 AY [ R Vi3 4144 ziee VINOIOD j=>4] ° 94 0oL I 3AY 3AISTIH S22 cpoL6T
18071 005’61 00922z 0ZO2/0T/S L o} € € b %0 %0 %ST %0 AY O 9i8l v82's 265°L N3 1I"dsS 6.2 : 9y 0 L FAV SCAISTIH L4 LyoL6T
1160 000'9€2 oog'oez  6LOC/LE i 13 4 € L %0 %0 %0 %0 AY Fo I 1 9EY'Y 8082 YINCTI02D Vo N gy Ol L IO NVOMOW L4 8Loele
£z0°L 00s'0Le oop'sic  elog/Blis L o 4 14 b %0 %0 %0 %0 ov O 86l SS0'Y $59'L HONVY st'e Sd 0b L ¥Qu3IWNVd Z8e H L0¢ie
62071 005'091 002°s9L sLoz/seL ) 13 Z 4 L %0 %0 %01 %0 v -0 6.6l ose'y 881’z YINOI0O 180 . g ol L MO ¥3INNVL eeY syozie
0680 000'261 00g'sLE ozoeveis b 0 [ € L %0 %0 %01 %0 AV -0 00T ovg's 095°} * HONWY 870 gy 0L L Y10 IDHANO0D v¥ 640111
8860 000°€se oov'lEC  6L0TIYR/OL L L L 14 L %0 %0 %0 %0 ov 2  el6) 8TL'Yy YZE'T 3dvD S6C . 94 Ob L 3901 00 868 9ZoLLL
ogey Viid Bfes anjeAjuaun)d  91eg YN suyeg s\peg sug  siun AQ omnw aund uodg pued 2peID nng Baly SSOIQ) BaSy Uld m%._. 8zIg  9pod NZ 28N 2Nn1 spig uopeooT] #AUNnod0Y 10 gjedled
ssjes o nd Jofje1p3Ida Jes A Buipjing pue AD 0#
29N Aq padnols [ oeezmeie | oL | BL0z/E/ | FWold
JUBOBA SE PIOS Sejedlpul , u._On_wN_ w_w>_mr_< abuey ajeq NVED-92:8
1 Jo ¥ abed 1A ‘Aanqgsuyor 1S 120e/L0/2L




0Z1 Pue 0g UsaMaq% 08 eSL°L qud- 661°0 :aaqg piepuels 100’k  :ueipepy

0Ll Pue 06 USaMI2q% 09 . 806’S¢ :AOD L10°L :uespy pajybiapy 788°0  :oney UIN
| s0L pue G usamieqy,  OF ovsey  :A0D § unop €LL'L  :uespy 090°C - :oney Xel

A :0gN 10} Alewiwing
080°C 000'02 00Z'Ly gzogole L 0 € [} € %0 %0% %0 %0 Hd 2 008l FAS A Z66'y  OOLLINW - L0 A 0L L AV NORVIN €412 jeistelo A
100°L 000'8L 00L'8L 6L0Z/8/8 3 0 € 9 £ %0 %S %S %0 p-E] O 988l 8Ze's 80€'S oo 1IN o¥'0 N Ob i Q3N 1oL 8e0evT
L06°0 000'08 ooL'zL gcoe/eere b 0 C 14 T %0 %0 %0 %0 V4 3 oosl PAZA yOL'L OO~ 11NN 600 A 0L L ay ¥3aAN LLL LEOEYT
120°1 000°051 0oL'est slog/iozy L 0 14 3 ¥ %0. %0 %C %0 AV o oost Yr5'g sez'e  IWLAVAY 8C0 A 01 I 1S AMVW 1S g8l SeoLye
2880 006'6L 008§'0L eLozreie L 4] Zz 8 Z %0 %0 %T %0 pE| 2 vesl 580'S 85T O LI 0Z0 ZA Ob L 1S Qvodvy LSS 8/0EET
ogey 22Ud sies anEAueLnN)  eled YN swieg suieg sig  siun JAQ osdg oung UODJ pUC) BpRID NG  BANYSSOID earyuwld  adAL 92IS  9pos  NZ 98N 2N1 spi0 uopes0] #AUNooSY Jo Glisvted
s9es o 1nd uopenaldad 1BIA Buipiing: puel A Jo#
24N Aq padnolso [ oeozmeis | ol | Blozier | “Wold

JUEOBA SE PIOS SB1EDIpU|
140 g obed -

Hodoy sisAjeuy

- 1A ‘Mngsuyoris

abuey ajeq

WvE0:92:8
1202/10/2L




0Z) PUE 0 USOMIEqY, 18
011 PUE 06 U99aM}3q%

181°0 :Aas(Q plepuels

POl :qud

,Nwm.o :uelpapy

LS rad%rA% Halole] §16°0- :uesiy pajybiopm G0 oney uln
SOL Pue 66 UsdMIaqy,  6C ¥Zy'8l- AOD L2 unod SL0°L: :uealy . 129’1 :oney Xep
cA 194N {0} Arewwung
1¥6°0 . $8/°26 00€'28 giogiLeL L 3 1 € I %0 %0 %0 %0 AY D 8s8l 6.6'C 8vs°L AALS 10 8y 0 EAn 0L 1 TiH AZ33x8 518} 1e020s
SvL0 052°92L ooL¥e  0ZoZSZE L O Lot L %0 %0 %0 %0 ov 0 o0sel 29T esvl 3dv0 020 $SA 0L L SVINOGIIVOSIE 610082
106°0 000°€0L [als; 45 sLoT/sLLL b 0 3 € L %0 %0 %0 %0 AY 0 g6l 9/6'C 165'L 3dY0 p4dil EA Ol L 1S NOLAYIO 6% LLOELT
670 000'sst 006'S¥7} (32074729 " o L € L %0 %0 %0 %0 AY Q3 198l pes'e poe'l HONYY 6671 EA Ob 1 IS NOLAVIO0S 800ELC
7860 000'eL 00L'LL 6102/52/0L L 0 13 14 1 %0 %0 %C %0 £ ] O .ooslb 90T eyL'L  INIANOD 880 en 0L |3 AV AQavivy lo0eLe
£50°L 005'LS 008'09 gLoZ/8e/s L i T 14 L %0 %02 %S %0 Hd o 0Zsl 60LY oP9'T  TALS Q0 8¥o €A 0} 1 LS NOLAVIO 8¢ £00e12
£86°0 [slele)erAN 006°2LL 6L02/92/L L 0 L 14 L %0 %0 %0 %S A4 O ogsl [er4:34 1T’ IALS aio L0 en 0L 1 1spingol 120122
=74 % 000's8 009's6 gLoz/oLe b 4 < 9 T %0 %01 %0 %0 V4 O 888l vZL's geo's OO-1LINN €0 en 0L L S3LIFAVIVT06E YZosve
8veL Q00's.L 009'c6 sloz/e/itl ) 0 € s £ %0 %0 %l %0 vd 3 oost LL0'G6 soe'z Ooinnn 850 en O 1 S3113AvVdvigle £205v2
[ FANY 000'8T oov'sy Qcoeelie 22 o 0 z L %0 %05 %01 %0 p=E|} -0 0i6L 29T 691'L AdVO z80 en Ol 1 S3LISAVAV108Z glLosve
16670 000°04 00169 8102/0£/0 1 0 } € L %0 %0 %L %0 AY Q0 oesl 986’} 980°t OTVONNE LE0 €A 0l i 1S SINVT st ety g4
o0gz’L 000°2L 00026 slogmey b 0 £ 8 £ %0 %0 %0 %0 \£] O 006l 068t osL'z Ooo-ILLINW ££°0 en 0L 3 10310088 0solve
6580 000'sel 008'sLY 8L0T/8LI0L L b 3 4 L %0 %0 %0 %0 ov O 006l gLy'e 968°'L  INIANOD 120 €N O L AV Q¥OONOJ Zvl €101V
L1860 000'68 009°L8 slozelie L a b g L %0 %0 %0 %S AY 3 6sel $99°'L 89L HONYY 890 €A Ob 1 1sTvy3g3ad st B8Y0LE2
142" 005'SS 00g'ss oozl L 0 T 9 T %0 %0 %L %0L p=E] O 006l 865 y2'T Oo- 1NN LL0 en 0L 1 IONITVE SY0LET
$E8°0 000'001 ooy'es sloziviol L 0 3 >3 L %0 %0 %0 %S ov 3 0061 862'C e’ JALS G0 60°0 €A 0L i 18 31dVIN 98 PLOSET
2880 00or'80t oor'ee gzoz/iieis b o] j € L %0 %0 %0 %S ov O oosl '882'C ¥8E'L  TTALS 0 800 en O 1 1S 31dvin 98 pL0seZ
£l 00001 008’5t ococwie A 0 S ol S %0 %01 %0 %0 vd 0 006 1e9'e §/9'C INLMVAY 8C°0 en Ol 2 1S AFova 88 690€€T
1860 005152 ooLobz  BLOZIOS/E L L z v L %0 %0 %0 %0 AV O 886l 20  TET  VINOIOO LD SA 0L L IAVNYWIO LY 200°LL0V4T
£58°0 . 000'%0L 00.'88 glog/LliL L 0 3 £ L %0 %0 %0 %0 AY O oosl 0€9'C 122'L  INIANOD SL0 en Ol 3 1SXv0o L8 0.0i1C
20071 000'sL 005'SL 6L02/52/1 o] L £ L %0 %01 %04 %0 V4 0  so8l 8.5'c 119'L  JALS QIO 2o €N 0L 1 i1SHMvoell 90L1T
oney 20Ud sles sneAlusun) eed YN Suyleg Suleg sig spun JAO sedg ound Uoog ‘puo)y opesn  Jing BANYSSCID eanyuld  @dAg 9218  8pon NZ 98N 2N spIo uogeso #UnoooYy 1o gliedied
s9fes </ ind Jofjealded jes\ Buiping pue Ao JLY:
249N Aq pednois Geozioee | ‘oL | BL0Z/6/y | Swoid
JUBOBA SE pjoS sojedlpul, - f_OQmﬂ_ 55 >_N=< abuey] ajeq : INVE0:92:8
%1 10 g abed LA ‘Aanqsuyor 1S 1Z02/L0/Z)




0Z} pue pg usamiaqy, 08 A 0L iqud 291°0. :A9Q piepuels 186°0  :ueipaiy

0Ll pue pg usemjaqy, g/ . U i 96’6 40D - TL6'0 :uespy pajyBiopn 8970 -oey Uiy

S0l pue g6:usamyaqs, - S€ LL0°LLIAOD QcC unoj: - 6¥6°0.: :uesy 98yl -oney Xel

YA :ngN 10} Arewuuing
YE60 000°08) 00zZ'83L 120197 R 1 L 4 L %0 %0 %0 %0 ov PO I *14°12 zig'e 000'C  LINIANOD €80 A 0L i O ddNnM v SE0P0S
L5074 000"yt ooy'ssl gLogreie L 13 i 14 L %0 %0 %1 %0 Fa\'2 +0 0e6l 188's 1S2'T  IN3ANOD &¥°0 YA 0L L 3AVVYLISOO L8t £1008C
1960 006'¥0L 008°00} gLog/se/t L 0 3 € L %0 %0 %0 %0 ov -0 8s6L [e]R-rA 0oLl HONVY 820 YA 0L 1 FIAVVISOO gel 210082
ov8'0 000°L0L 008'00L 6L0Z/9ZYy L } [ € L %0 %0 %0 %0 AY O oesl 6Y5°C oyl TALS T10 <80 YA O L 1S 3LTAVAVICY ovovye
2160 0000t 00.'22L 8L02/0L/0L L 0 3 € b %0 %0 %0 %0 ov 0 Zest ¥8L'T ose HONYY £T0 YA O 1 AV NOSRHYVH L2 LI02vT
€16°0 0se'viL 000's0L gLoc/ge/el L 0 L z L %0 %0 %0 %0 AY O  sgsl VLT £50'L HONYY 2570 YA Ol L AV QJOONOD L2¥ syoTve
0£60 005'SL 00Z'0L sLog/e/oL L o} 3 kA b %0 %0 %0 %0 AV o ovelL el ¥ig JINIANOD 1451 YA 0L L AV NOSRIMVH PLL 1e0e¥e
ostL 000'08 00e'v.L L0252/ L 0 z rA < %0 . %0 %0 %0 V4 O 006k 6v.L'T iV Oo-1INN 8’0 YA OL 3 1S NINOYA v 9e02Ve
1071 000's6 00E'96 QZoZ/6/9 b o] € L € %0 %S %S %0 V4 2 006l fA%:34 wZ'e OO~ LN prad YA O i 1S3 0zt 6202¥C
8y9°0 005'vZZ oov'sit ocoe/eeie L L z g T %0 %0 %0 %0 AY +3 0061 $90'S 898’ Oo- LN 8L0 YA 0L I LSTVHINID 6ZL S009¢€T
9880 00086 008'98 ocozlely L 0 3 € L %0 : %0 %G %S Y4 3 8bel $68'C vel'L OTVONNE w0t A Ol L SNONM3ALANYEL £€6002C
oL 000's8 009'88 6Loc/iee b 0 14 14 ¥ %0 %S %t %S vd O 0061 6L’ 89L'7  INIMVIY  ¥L0 YA OL 1 1S NONY3A LW 85 S¥00TC
296°0 000'ELL 004'801 slog/ee/e L 0 i Z L %0 : %0 %0 %0 ov O 006b 085'T 6s¥'L IALS 0 .6L0 YA O L 1S NONYM3A LW ZL £yooze
52670 000'8LL 001601 8LoTee/e L 1 i 14 L %0 %0 %L %0 AY O o088l cev'e 1681 JALS Q10 8€0 YA Ol 1 LS .INVSVYId 85 §sovLe
06670 000'soL 006’0l gLoziveiolL L 0 i k4 L %0 %0 %0 %0 ov D 0g8L 265'T 6e’L TJALS 10 0Z0 A OL L 1S INVYSVI1d 951 0sovie
0540 000°L¥L 002'0LL ocoz/oee b 0 3 € L %0 %0 %0 %0 A\ 0§96l 088'e 6L HONYY ZLo A 0L i 1S 00HOs 82 Yo
ol 000'2L 001'8L gzozivell L 0 z g b %0 %0 %0 %0 Y QO 0061 6LL'E 809'L INIANOCD ¥Z0 YA O 3 1S TOOMOS SL obovic
0960 006°'L8 00v'6S ozog/oLe L 0 L Z L %0 %0 %0 %0 V4 fo I 7312 068'L 2.6 AdVO S0°0 yA 0Ol I 1S INVSVIld L2 gloLie
9160 000'651 00l'stL 6L0ZNE/L L 0 < > L %0 %0 %0 %0 ao O Tesl o' 166'L INIANCD ¥Z0 YA Ob L 1S INVSY3d 601 650LLT
8v.L0 000°08! 009'61L gzoziLie L 0 Zz € L %0 %0 %0 %0 oY QO vi8l 956' 6451 AALS A0 ¥ A OL I 1S NOSH3IN3 221 SEOLLT
ogey 3ol 3 BNEAIUALND  sled YN Ssuleg suieg sig  SHun  JAQ osdg oOun4 uoD3 Cpucs epRIS  WNG  BANYSSOID BaNfuld  SdAL 2z apon NZ D8N JN1spid uoneso #8Uno20Y Jo Qijeaied
soes zn nd uoneisaldad FESIN Bupjing puel A %
. 24N Aq padnous [ oeoziosis | oL | §roz/ey | “wod
JUBOBA SE PIOS SSJEOIPY[ , . Hodoay sisAjeuy abuey sjeq WVED:9Z8
pljoresbed T - 1A ‘Anqsuyor 1S e 1Z02/10/ZL




8v.°0 005'sEL 00£'L0L 0ZoTLIL |9 0 3 T L %0 %0 %0 %0 AV O o6l 86’ 98 HONVY 0z0 SA 0 b 18 4470 26 [ei402 %4
Sig’t 000'L¥L oov'syl  8L0TH/S L 0 b € L %0 %0 %0 %0 ov +J 056} 28T 09¥'L  INIANOD 610 SA 0L L 1844110 9k £horeT
S00°L 000'sSt 008'651 gloeneil L L |3 € b %0 %0 %l %0 ao +0 0061 1.0' LLS'L IALS Q10 oLo SA Ob |3 18440 vil BEOYET
€10 000'€0} 00e'v0L 8LOCIE/S L 2 8 4 L %0 %0 %L %0 V4 QO 88l ozey pre'L VYINOI0D (XA SA O 4 1S ONNJIS LLL Ze0veT
626°0 QoL'ggt [s[+]AVARA sLoziels L [¢] 4 14 L %0 %E %0 %0 v4 O 0s8i asl's 05z’ TALS Q0 10 SA 0L L IS HIWNNS LEY L2ovee
¥zl 000'02L 002151 6logmLL | a v ot ¥ %0 %0 %0 %0 vd 0 008 Z6L°L 9/0't  IN.LUVIVY $Z°0 SA Ob 3 1834170 2e 200PET
we'o 000°LEL 006'82L ocog/eeie L 0 2 9 2 %0 %0 %L %0 A\ Q0 ossl o'y 080T OO-1LINN 820 SA O L JAVSHHVIO S8 9G0EET
058°0 0o00'let oov'LLE gLozize/s L 0 3 € L %0 %0 %0 %0 ov Qo g6l eve'e 8.1 3dvO 800 SA 0L L 3l qoom3tal ez £50£€T
#96°0 000'52} 005°0Z} 6102/8/S L 0 € g € %0 %0 %0 %S vd O 0osL 282 Z8E'T [olag i ai] 10 SA O L 1S ONIYJS 98T 8/02€C
ise’t 000's8L 00¥'SST gzozoeis b 3 S ot S %0 %0 %0 %0 AY +0 008l 9082 mm,N.v ms:;%m< ~ oMo SA 01 13 1S ONMdS Y0E 8G0ZET
G160 000°08T oog'ese  slozCTIS L 0 € 9 T %0 %0 % %0 AY +O 0.8} 585'0) $06'e OO._.SD_)_ wmm..o SA 0L 1 1ISUIWANS €LY £50ZET
6L6°0 000'08L ooy'sel eLoc/ozis L L 3 € L %0 %0 %0 %0 NY o ovel 81e's 628'C  IALS Q10 1€0 SA 0L L 1S HUINNNS 845 SH0eeT
6¥8°0 000's6L 000°'s8} 8Loz/sLIe L1 L } € b %0 %0 %0 %0 as +0 006l L00'Y $86°L VINOT0D Lo SA OF I IAVNOINIO 8L [sierA>4
S$80°L 000°'€6 008'L0} ozoz/eeis L o] kA € Z %0 %0 %0 %0 Y4 D 0Z6L €168’ 616'L OO~ 1NN 810 SA 0L 1 INVSVYIld LW 8SL | FATAXA
9860 000'sLt 0o0s'gLl 8L0Tvie 1 0 z g L %0 %0 %0 %0 AV o sssl 6159 $66'T  TALS Q10 jerA) SA O} 1 1S ONIMJS 201 110z€c
¥60°L 00528l 006'vPL gL0C/OL/LL L 0 4 6 £ %0 %01 %01 %0 Y4 2 sl flora] 0.8y OO vL0 SA Cb 13 1S 441170 00y £00ZeT
£e0L [elo[sx¢74) 000'v2L 8Loe/8ee L 0 € 8 v %0 %0 %0 %0 o4 O oosh 866°L ler'e INIMvdY g0 SA Ol 13 1844110 e8¢ K 2o0ze
6980 000281 00529} oNON\NN\m L 3 b € L %0 %0 %1 %0 AY +0 188l ovL'y 18P’z JALS Q10 1z SA 0Ol L 1S 4410 442 H 620L€C
P60 000'08t 006'051 6L02/s/8 |3 13 3 € L %0 %0 %0 %0 oV Fo I o T4-14 £5E'y 080’  TALSQTI0 0Z0 SA 0L 3 1S 4400 L2v 1 8LOLET
7860 o0s'zeh oog'yLL 8loTiLLe L 0 3 € L %0 %0 %0 %0 ov fo I -1 411 2TTT 950'L HONVY S0 SA 0Ol 1 3L QOOMNAT 08 g9l0leT
1660 000°'9Z1 008's21 6loZ/LLiL L 0 } € L %0 %0 %0 %0 ov D ssel 6¥'C 950'L HONYY S0 SA 0L 1 ¥31 JOOMNATSE £101€2
25071 000°10L 00g'90L gLogivey 13 L € L %0 %0 %0 %0 AV fo o T 1R oL’ el INIANOD 650 SA 0L L 1S IN3RIO €5 830vie
1T0°) 0o0'cLl ooL'stl .mrow\vr\m L 0 T 14 Z %0 %0 %0 %0 AV O 006k gel'e 8zZL'} Oo-ILINN £6°0 SA oL ) 1S IN3ANO L2 z 980¥Le
890°L 000'8E} ooy'LPL sLoz/ie0L L i 2 S b} %0 %0 %0 %0 AV . O o006} 'y 165'CT  IALS QIO 1Z0 SA O 1 1S 700MOS ¥EL B vie
SeL’L 000'00} 00g'eLl ozgoe/sLis b 0 i 14 b %0 %0 %0 %0 AV O 008L £29'e 2551 IALS Q0 20 SA O L 1S700HOS €Ll 030¥iC
6660 005'L6 oov'.6 sLoeHeI8 1 o i 14 L %0 %0 %0 %0 NV -0 o008l 628°C sye't INIANOD 20 SA O} 1 1ST00HOSZLE 850V1T
+80°L 000'8ZL oog'sel gLoeieLilL L L A € L %0 %0 %0 %0 ov O 008l 9T 168'L  INIANOD 610 SA 0oL 1 1S100HOS 881 isovie
L00°) ooo'syh ooZ'syl ozocozis b 0 4 € L %0 %0 %T %0 . ov 0 oosl 080"t 116t 3dv0o $€0 SA O 1 1ST0O0HOS /81 gsovie
6.6°C 005201 002's0} 8ioz/ELeL | 0 o] € L %0 %0 %0 %0 AV 3  oosi 8€6'T S8L'L IALS Q10 €170 SA 0L 1 1S INVSVYId 89¢€ siovie
1680 005'TrE 000°221 020T/L/8 |8 0 z € L %0 %0 %0 %0 ov D oosl 690' ey’ IALS a0 4% SA 0L } 1S INVSY3Ild 08¢ yioric
0L 000'8S1 000'cot 6l0c¢/LLe L 4 b i4 L %0 %0 %0 %0 AY +Q  8¥6l ££6'c Sv0'e YINCI0O Pe0 SA 0L i 1S 33anNng ov £00¥1LT
YAZ NN ooo'ell 008211 gLog/oe/tl L I |9 € L %0 %0 %0 %0 ov O sesl 802°C 26¢'L INSANCD ~ 800 SA 0L 1L 3AVY TIESSNY 92 te0zZie
prAns 000's8 008's6 ozoT/LLL L 3 i 14 L %0 %0 %0 %0 V4 o o008l we'e $56'L AALS A0 0g0 SA Ob 1 1S NOSHIW3 8 9c021T
10071 006'6vL 000'0SL QzozieLie L 0 4 € Z %0 %0 %0 %0 AY J 656l vze'e 6LL'1L HONVY sZ0 SA Ob L 1S INVSVAd LiE |S=1erA% 4
980 000'v8L 000'651 geoz/oLe b 0 T S L %0 %0 %S %0 AV Qo ls6l 9697 80T HONVY 870 SA 0l .1 LM3IIAY3IINIO 9L 100212
LELL 000°'SLE 008'0EL 610z/82/9 L 0 } 14 L %0 %0 %0 %0 AV o svel 62T’ L'l Idvd or'o SA oL 1 31 NOLIONIMHV 8L oloLiZ
§86°0 005'861 008661 slozEly L [ 3 € L %0 %0 %0 %0 AV fo I 4 %014 25L'e o'y HONVY 8.0 SN 0L I SLNOLONIMYY S7 100°600L1C
1860 052'€Z) 006°'0Z1 gioz/ole L 0 [ € L %0 %0 %0 %0 AY O ¢ssl 2T 2L0'L HONVY 610 SA 0L L ASTIENNM8 v £00L1C
86L°L 005'LL oop'sel slLoz/LeiLL L y Z 14 L %0 %0 %0 %0 AY O 9%l ¥8€'T 800°L HONVY 810 SA Ob |9 HIL ODVHE 92 910202
8Ll ool'seL oog'sel  gloT/oE/lL L o} 1 € L %0 %0 %0 %0 AY -0 8002 6L 9£6 HONVY 190 SA 0L -} IS AIAMVHEZL 6£010C
9960 000'ee 004'9E ozozriet L 0 Z 14 Z %0 %09 %0 %0 Hd 0 0061 612'c 998'L OO0 LN ZL0 SA 0L 1 1S NIIHO €91 - e€ioLoz
ogey  °oUdOES  SNEAJUSLND  oled TN Sweg syeg sig  swun Ao oedg oung Uoog -PUOD epRIO  Jing BANYSSOID Earyud  adAL sz 9po)  NZ D8N DM SpiD ucHes0 #unoooy Jo gijedsed
sajes L find uopepsideq lea) Buipping puel  AID 0%

JUEDEA SE P|OS SSIEdIpU|
71 Jo 8 9bed ,

~ 24N Aq padnoig
poday sisAjeuy
1A ‘Aingsuyor 1S

ﬂ 0202/0¢/6 _uo._, 7

gLoz/ely | wold

abuey ajeq

NVE0:92:8
1202/L0/21




0ZLpueQgguasmiaqy, 6 - 500°L :Qud S0L°0 :AsQ piepuels 6660  :ueipay
OLL PUB 06 USOMIaqY, 9/ . 6SL°. oo 100°L :uespy payybrom : 8.0  :oney UIN
S0L pue Ge UsaMIaqy, 67 G20l :AOD 6 3unop ZL0’L  :uespy i 18¢°L  :opey Xxep

SA 199N Joj Alewwng

69670 7 000°002 002’6l siogiolls L 0 R L %0 %0 %0 %0 ov - O 661 LT 5Tl HONWY SvT SN\ 01 L FAVY SSOHO 062 B8LOV0S
16670 - 0008yl 00S'2¥1 12074 A% B o] T € L %0 %0 %0 %0 AY - O 0%sl vil'e ase't HONWY 0zo SA 0L 1L 1ISY3IWWNSSOL £509€T
90071 © 000'e8T 00L'v8C  6lOZ/IBTR b 0 € v L %0 %0 %0 %0 ao -8 el SLL'Y 1S9 INJANOD | FAY] SA OF L AV ONVIHDIH $PL SY0SET
19670 [oslsrA4Y 005'9eL slog/si/iol L o] € € L %0 % %0 %0 ov O3 006l ov6'e 959'L VINOT0D 8L0 SA 0L L 3AV 1S3¥04 6L BE09ET
080°L 006'6.L 00L'¥8 0Z0z/eT/L 0 L >3 L %0 %0 %0 %0 vd O 0061 519'C €11 IALS Q0 8L0 SA Ol L ISU3WNNS £5T 8009€C
860 000°2¥L ooL'evl 6LOT/LLCL L o] Z € L %0 %0 %0 %0 AY QJ Lost YLy 0ov'e IdVO SLo SA 0L L AV SVIO8E £005€2
95074 000'60C oog'oze  oeozREil b 9] I S T %0 %0 %0 %0 AV +0  lgel §69°L Lov'e  OO-ILINN Y20 SA Ob L ISHOY¥NHOELL 650vET
1670 000'sel 00S'LeL 6102128 [ 0 L 4 L %0 %0 %0 %0 ov O 0s6b 09T vozT'L HONVY 6L°0 SA 0L L 18 44110 204 LYOveET
oney  @dUdeES  eneABLN) Sled YN Syled syieg sig swun  JAQ oedg oung uodJ °pucH epeld  Jng BANYSSOID ANy Ul 2dAL 821  2pos  NZ D8N D1 spid uogeoo] 4BUNOODY JO gieIed
sales e nd uogepaidag YN BuIplng puel  AND o#
o , 9€N Aq padnolig [ ocozers | oL | groc/ery | Fwodd
JUEOBA SE PlOS SBYEDIPY] e - Hoday sisAjeuy abuey sjeq ; WVED:9Z:8
¥1 Jo 5 abed " E R e S : LA na_‘._ﬂwc_c—o_a 1S : S : : 120Z/10/2)




0Zl pue pg usamiaqy, /19 €50°L qud . LET0 :1A3Q piepuels €560  :ueipspy

0L) pue pg usamyaqy, 19 0091 :dOD - ©.918°0 ruesiy ‘_uoEm_Es 685°0 oy UIN

G0l pue g6 uaamjaqy, - 19 ‘065°L2 :AOD g UNoY 6980 iuealy GEO'L - oneyXel

9A 109N 1o} Arewuing
SE0°L 000'02e ooz'iee gLogreLs L Z € 9 Z %0 %0 %0 %0 ov: -8 0Z8L 1¥8's oLl'y OO 1IN 070 (=74 ] . 4 LS NiviA 0251 670EET
6850 00052y oov'ose ozozioLs L 3 € S L %0 %0 %0 %0 AV-  +O L0861 oye'e 665’ YINOI0D 60 A 0L - 1} 1S NIVIN egFL T60ZET
£56'0 000'06) ooo'L8l 8102/6/y 3 0 k4 S L %0 %0 %L %0 ov +0 868l 985y 0e0'T YINOTOD eL'o 9A O} 1 IOVId AYVO LY L602€2
ogey 20U 8les sneAjueund ojed TYN Syieg suleg sig SWun AQ oedg ound U0OT puUc) 9dpeln  Jing  BANY SSOIH EBANY Ul adAL ozIg  9pon NZ O8N OVl splD uopesoT] 45UnoodY Jo Qlie2ed
saes a1 g uogeaidaC Jes A Buiping pueq Ao jo#
949N Aq padnois [ oeodee | oL [_ewocew | fwedd

JuEdBA SE PlOS S9jERIpU] .
110 | 9bed

Hoday sisAjeuy
1A ‘Angsuyor 3§

abuey a3eq :

NVED:9Z:8

1202/10/¢ct




021 Pue 0g usamjaqy, 0ol : : 6660 :add €20°0 :AaQg piepuels 186°0 tuelipasiy

0Ll PUE 06 USaMI3qY%, 001 o 895°L :d0D 68670 :ueajy psybrom 0.6'0  omey Ul

G0l pue gg usamiaqy, - 00L 8Z2¢C  AOD ¥ uno) 886°0  :ueopy (XA rofjey Xe|

LA :0gN 404 Arewwung
986°0 005'/2Z oor'yee elozreeil b i < 14 1 %0 %0 %0 %0 ov +0  /[egsl Lov'9 65'Z YINOTOO 820 IN 0L 1 I44AT0YIANN L9 vL0LET
120t 000°00E 00z's0e sLogreL/LL L i 4 14 L %0 %0 %0 %0 a9 -g 088i 00Z's g8’z TALS 10 PA 4] N O L AV NOINAOS LEL 0e0L0Z
0.60 000'082 ooL'eze gLog/e/LL b o} 3 e L %0 %0 %0 %0 as -9 306l gze's $90'C  TALS Q10 o N O} 1 3AV NOLINACH 88 820102
9/6°0 0oo'eve 009'vee sLoZne/is L 0 Zz g L %0 %0 %0 %0 as g8 6064 gor's #6'T YINOTOO $9°0 N O) I AV NOINAOS 81 10402
ogey @old aleS  SNEAIUSLNG  eeg YN Ssuieg Suied sig  siun  JAQ 2edg  ound ucOl CpuO) epRlS  JIng BaNySSOI9 Baiyuid  adAL °z18 9poly  NZ D8N 2N SpiD uoyeosoT| #8Unos2y Jo qjisdied
sojeg z iind jofjevaldad Jeap Bupping: puetl A jo#
24N Aq padnols [ ozoeies | oL | TLoziery | “wold

| wueoeA se plog sejeoipyl Hodoy sisAjeuy  abuey sjeq INYED:9Z:8

7140 L1 9bed 1A ‘Angsuyor 1S ‘ 1z0z/10e}.




0ZI pue g Usamjeqy, 00} 000°} :Q¥d: 000°0 :Ae°Q piepuels 806’0  :uelpapy
OLL PUE 06 USOMI3G% 00} - ‘ 00070 :00D. 806°0 :uespy pajybrapn 80670  toney uN
501 PUE g6 USaMEqY, O 0000 :AOD } - 3unop 8060 ueoy 8060 :onex Xew )
X 199N 1oj Aewiwing
8060 000°SL ooL'es sLozieLiL b 0 3 € L %0 %0 %0 %0 ¥d 0 0061 zel'e 98l AdV0 88°L X 0l L S ONV1L¥Od ¥8/2 100211
oneY a0l aes aneAuaLNg eleg YN suleg suieg sig spun Jno oadg ound uod3 °puo) opein Wwng ealyssup eaiyuld  adAL az1IS 9pos  NZ O8N JM71 spid uofedoT] #AUnoody Jo (ligdied
ssfes E4i8 N4 logelaldaC EEDN Bupjing: puel A jo#

289N Ag 8%06

ﬁ 0202/0¢/6 _"o.r T

JUESBA SE P|OS SSJedIpUl
1 Joz| obed

Hoday sisAjeuy abuey sjed

1A ‘Anqsuyoris

810Z/8/v _ ~Wol 4

INVE0:9¢-8
1202/10/21L




021 pue 08 usamaqy, er

L0S’L :qud 6¥7.°0 :AeQ piepuels v8L'L  :ueipopy

0Ll PuUe p6 Usamiaqey, vL | ¥0£'Sy -Ad0D . 166°0 :uealy pajybrapy €L 0. -oney Ul
GOl pue gg usemiaqy, 0 018G :AOD L uno) . 68C°L  :uesp : 062'¢C soney XeN
X :9gN 40} Arewwung
5080 000’782 00L'87¢  0Z0THEE L O € g v %0 %0 %0 %0 AY D gesl  08M.  8E9'E  OOWINW 650 £X 0 2 OTVRION3W Z2vh 90808
ziEL 00549 o008 ozowiskie b L T, L %0 %0 %0 %0 vd O o0sel  806C  S68L CIALSCIO S0 X ob L 1S TIH 6L 650805
¥80'L 000'06 oog'se  6LOZZLLL L O z ¢ L %0 %0 %0 %0 AY O oveL L7 988t ALSOIO 410 eX oL L QTVIHOW3W ssyi 850805
yaLL 000'0Z o06'Z8  0Z0ZML L 0 z v z %0 %0 %0 %0 AY O 006l  009T  O00EL OOILINW 6L €X 0L L QIYRIOW3N 869} £20205
€110 005'LL oov'el  6lozEWL L O 0 %0 %0 %0 %0 0 0 120 eX 0L L d VRMOW3W o8st 120208
%6LT 000'5Z o06'vs  0ZoTvE)e L O z v T %0  %0L %0 %0L ¥4 O 008k 2o o8t  OOLNW 20 X oL L MZILNSN8s 620022
062T 00s'se oos'le  0zoZgT8 L b A L %0 %0L %0 %0 vd D [0BL  tZ8'Y  €0ST IWWWOD  Z90 . eX 0L L 3TILYSNYI0L 250021
oney 8dUd afes aneAusuny  Seg YN SWied syeg sig  sWun  JAQ oadg ound uoOF puOD PRI NG  BANYSSOID Baly Ul  9dAL 8zZIS  #pod  NZ 98N DN shID uogeso #AUNCOOY Jo (lje2ied
saes k418 g uogetaidag RO Buipiing puey A o#
249N Aq padnolio [ ozozioers | oL | 810zl | “Wold
JUBOBA SE P|OS ST]B2IpUl, “_.._On_wm sis >_N:< - abuey sjeq WVYE0:92-8
vijogLobed ; G k 1202/L0CL

1A ‘Aingsuyoris




0Z) Pue og usamaqy, 00l LLO°L - aud 660°0 :A9Q piepuels - 166°0  :ueipsiy
0L} pue ggusamiaqy, - gl S L 2SY L Ao 81670 :uealy pajubloan 6280 oney Uy 4
S0l pue gg-udamiaqy, Sl S QLZOL  tA0D $unon 960 :uespy o'l ‘oney xe
i - -
’ X :9gN Joj Arewwng
OE0’L 000'90L - 00260} 8LoZYLIS | 3 3 € I %0 %0 %T ° %01 AV Q  pesl zio'e o'l HONYY SE0 X OF L TTIH SONILSVYH o¥ 100eeT
16670 000'6vT 006'9€C ogoeiieie L 4 Z 14 L %0 %0 %01 %0k AV Q0 686 0€T's gep'e  dINILNOD LVL X 0L L g¢ 3LH SN Log 80001
628°0 000'65} - oog'lel QzoeiLLiL b 0 I € L %0 %0 %0 %0 ov 0 §s6l 5L 6Z¥'L  INIANOD 00'e ¥X Ol | gzIldsnecil 90001
ob0'L 005'v6 00886 6L0Z/9L6 L 0 1 A 1 %0 %0 %0 %S AV 0 061 zig' 9E8 HONYY £0°L X 0 1 O IWI-HOW3NW 0892 1£0220
oney aoUd 2ES * SREAJUSLND  dled TYN Suleg suieg sig  SIun  JAQ cadg  oung . UODJ °PuO) opRID  Jng BAIYSSOID) EBON UL dAL 2218 9pos 'NZ 28N DM SpID * UoneooT #8Unoooy 1o qljeoied
sojes 2N ind uoneaida( Jeaj Bupjing puel A0 Jo#

JUBJBA SB P[OoS SSledipu] «
1 jo ¢ abed

29N Aq padnois

Tomo.&om\m L 0L _

8L02/6/ _ ‘wol4

_Hoday sisAjeuy
1A ‘Aingsuyor s

abuey ajeq

WVE0:9Z:8
1202/L0/Z)




61 = 2dALxg Buipingeleq)
anv (1661 > Nares A BupIngelea) ANY (0261 =< ligsea A Buipingered) anv (0L, = onTAuedoidereq) ANV (5. = DgNAuedoldereq  pasn 183id

[1e39( UONEBIYILId)) Wv.2:Ze8
L20z/10/2L

1A ‘AMangsuyor s

seladold joued




00'L . %IE AV [ I Y11 i 1ez't 8 8L L £10T/52/60 000°9TL oov'zrl oor'zyl 0oz's0L 00z'ss sy €870 oL HIO NYIWEILIYM 621 ziovie
0oL - %l OV 3 08 L p0s'L I 8l 6L glozeUiL 0 o0ov'LIT oor'LiT o0z'8LL 0oz'ee Sy €80 oL IO FONIFIMYT 2L £VOELT
0oL %9ZT OY O L8l L e 4 6l . 0oL LLL 0oL 00€'svL 008’/ gy SYo oL IO IONIHMYT 98t TYoeLe
[slen% %I AV +D LI6) L 0sTL L 43 8 6LoZELZL . 0 008°c/L 006'€L} [ole]2>4% oog'oe gy 080 oL IO IONTHMYT  VEL OboELT
00'L : %ZE AV e Wi:14 L oprL 8 6L 6l SLOZ/EZ/S0 - O 00Z's9L o0z'ssl ooL'zel 0ol'se sy v970 ol IO IONSUMYT 26 . 8E0€1T
ool %92 OV o 16l L oeZes L 6L Bl SLOZWLYO O 009202 00g'goe 008°LLL 008°0¢ Sy 090 ot AQ YIWAYS  ¥6 2e0ELT
00'L %LE AV O 26l A< TA 4 L 6l 006'6EL 006'6¢L 008'LLL il]%:74 sy 8¥0 oL IO IONIUMYT 9L LE0ELZ
0oL R4 %6 AV 9 9l6l L 0822 L 12 L 0ZOZ/LLB0 . 000282 00V'97Z oov'9ze Cos'v6L 006°LE 2 oﬁw ot HIO IONIFIMVT LL 820€LT
ool K %EE AV o 06l L s0s'L 4 [-18 L LZ0Z/LT/E0 : 000'BZZ  00L'Z8l 001291 0oL'eet 00+'82 s g0 oL WA WINEYL 5L 9Z0£LZ
00'L B %LE AV 0 u6l L oesil 1 6l L §L0Z/8L/S0 © 000'LPL  OOL'BEL ook'sel 008'0LL 00g‘sT sY  9g0 oL dA HINYYL 881 SZ0ELT
0o'L A %¥Z OV o 9lsl Loeeet 2 6L L §L0Z/0Z/LL ¢ 000'0EL 00L'l5L 001151 00T'veL 006°9T Sy 980 ol AUAYIWEYS  ¥iZ . $20ELT
(sl 2 %IE AV O el8L [ A% L 6l L LZOTHLE0 ¢ 000'6CE  O0B'YBL 006'v8L 00e'15EL 00g'se SH 8L, oL Q¥ 39018 A00Y 19T : 200€LT
[ole? %0L %0E V4 0 186l L 9sLY 2 6L 5 009'2ZL 009z 006'56 00292 gy vE0” o1 HQ ¥INEYL €91 sL0zLT
0o'L %6l OV o 86l L 2T 1 6L 3 000'ZEL 000'ZEL 00£'s0L 00.°9C Sy ¥E0 oL ¥ YIWNVS  LeT £40Z1T
00’k R %LE AV 9 el6b L2891 1 61 L B00Z/90/E0 ¢ 000'69L 005'89L 00s'8sL oov'ovl [[e] 74 sy ve0° ot ¥ HIWNYL  Lob 00212
0oL t %0E AY 3 vi6t Looor'L 1 6L 6L PLOZ/SOME0 4 0 000°951 000951 008’22 [o]sr:74 Sy SE0. ol U UINWNVL 2L 69021
0oL . %9Z AV O 086l [ -1 ¢4 1 13 L ZLOZ/80/L0 « 000°'LSL 005'vSL 008'¥SL 00£'9ZL 00z'sz Sy se0 oL HA YINYYL ¥ 890212
oo'L . %EE AV O 0/6L [N AN L 61 L €L0Z/ELs0 1 00S'SEL 00L'erL 00L'evL 006'2LE 008'sZ gy §T0 ol QY IDAR AI00Y 90t ) [A%crakA
00'F  %0S %0v ¥d D 961 L 950l A 6L 6L SLOZ/OS/ED ~ O 005'9L 005'9L 009'se 008'0¥ - sy oLt oL QY THH 1S3 96Y Z00°6500€1
0oL L %S %LE AY O zi8L [ 2 L 6L Ll 0202/E0/60 - O 008'9GL 008'951 ool'szl 00L'LE sy S0t ot Q¥ THH SNIDDIH 19T ozl
[sley® . %EE AV O 0461 [ A=) AN A 4 1% L SLOZ/ZO/LO - 000'0ZL  00T'0ZL 002'0ZL 005'88 00l'Le sy Ut oL ay aaod vz 200LLL
ool . %EE AV 0 061 L 88Tt L 6L 6L ¥LOZ/LLEO O 00L'e5L 00L'eSL 008'sLL 00628 g¥  ost oL QY ONIQINYIS 856 $00LLL
00°L %S %LT AY O 8.6l [ A 7191 L 6L 8 BLOZILLILO © oov'zel oov'zsL 00Z'seL 002'et sy 05§ oL ay ONIGINVdS L6 £00LLL
0oL %S %BZ AV O 66l L g8l L 6l L 8LOZ/BL/LL  000'6ZL  008'LpL 008'2pL 008'ZLL 000°se gy 001 oL Qu NOSNHOr ¥8 /80004
0oL H %BT AV O 961 i zi6 i 6l L 0ZOZWZILO ~ 000'SEL [ole] Ar4 AR [s]Ar4R) 002'vL 006°.€ =25 I x4 oL HA MIIAMOTIOH mn, ) 00080
sl %0E ¥Wd  +0 /86l 8 0so't 1 [ E 008'L6 009'L6 00529 ooL'sz sd  v¥o. ok ad ONIgINVYdS 5921 9¥0TL0
[slo R . %le AY O Ei6L L 8%0'L L 13 L 0L0Z/EL/S0 & 000'SYL 00§'L¥L 00s'1YL 008'26 o0L'sy gy 8LT’ ol Q¥ ONIQINVdS  8gst R 0v0TL0
0ot : %8BT AV 0 66l [ 1% 3 6l 8 1Z0Z/0/30 ¢ O 008'151 00§°L51 000'SLL 00s°9¢ s¥  UT oL QY TIH ADIOV1 0801 : 020220
0oL z %0 ¥d D 851 1 gs0'L 4 6L 61 [OOZ/ZO/LL 7 O ooZ'sEl ooT'est 00968 009°6€ sy ObE: 0L QY MOTIOH (T3 LSIHO 6001 ’ 60020
00'L 3 %le AV O 26l [T <4 e 6L 61 SLOZ/LE/80 » 000'08 006'52L 006'6ZL 00€'98 009'6¢ S oLE. oL QY TUH ADIOVT 188 TYoLL0
00'L B %6T AV O SL61 L esg’ 3 6L LL LZOZ/OL/E0 - O 00Z'yol 00Z'v9L ooL'eel ooL'Ly sd  ele- oL QY HYOSId LN OVL . BE0LL0
[slag% %EE AV O 0461 L 008 L 543 00}'601 00L'601 008'sL cog'ee S¥ 007 oL QY HVOSId 1IN €921 LE0LLO
00t %G %0l %¥Z v4  +0 686l Losps'L L Bl L 6L0Z/.Z/80 000'/SL  00§'LSL 005°25L 00g'LTL 000'9e sy 0ot oL ay ADisyvavz v 020290
00t %8E Vd 3 o6l L 096 i [ 00g'sTL 00€'sZL 00z'e8 00l'6e gy 68T oL g LONLSIQ VLIS ozZEL 6E01L90
00’} %le v4  +Q Ti6L Lz L 61 8 B8LOZ/LO/SO O 000'901L 000°901 00£'CL 00l'ee sy 0T ot Q¥ NOLSOEM3N  I¥6 9Z0L90
0oL %SG %LE AV +Q €461 1 88 3 (1% ool'sL ooL'sL 000'6% 001°6T 2 -7 A] ol Q¥ LORILSIAMNYLS 089t Z10L90
00l %0E AV O visL L 88Tl L 514 L $LOZ/EL90 - 000'SYL oov'est oot'est 008'90L 009'9y 5Y 96V oL Q¥ TIH LINV3d3IN0  L92h 820050
00'L %8¢ AV D 8L [ I 3 61 00€'LLL 00€'2LL 00.'LEL 009'6€ sy ot oL ¥ NOLSOEM3N 0122 S000€0

mey 0/SH 4 ud w ip NE suun TV .y dug

aed  ooug

oiw >,

1 A an[EA SUTEA JEN se1Y OO uoneso] QI 13oreg
 coprmeidag— 1% g v JES  oes AR1g jmormy  Idua pue]
. N
JeS PUL] «

| | | [re19( uonedyn.Id)) ; , : . Wwzees
€ 40 | obed e e , LA ‘Ainqsuyor is o s :  LZ0z/LEL




00t %62 ANV O Si6 L 800t L 6L 6l ZlOT/80/Z0 O 009'2EL 009'2eL 006°26 00.'%¢ Gy 160 oL HID 44ON34 ovL 900505
00'L %S %8 AV O L6 Looees't L 8L 6L Sloz/EEL O 0oF'LLL ooy'LLL cos'ovl 006'0E gy 95l oL Q¥ THH AZ3348  ssvl 910€05
0ot %iT AV O 8i6l L 095l L 6l 009°10Z 009°102 008°0LL 008'0¢ sy 090 oL IO J4ON3d L9 §10808
00°L %lZ ANV O Bl6L S 1 64 00L'sZL coL'ezt 00v'06 00.'ze sy 8L ol IO 44ON34 Lol 010£05
00k %8 AV O 6L [ 4 S 6L 009's¥L 009’54 oov'soL 00Z'oy gy 08Y oL HAMIHAYN 09 650205
0o'L %S %0Z AV O 685l Lovest b 6L 6L YOOT/ELI80 O 005002 005'002 0oz'sst 008°'LY [ Aok 4 oL ¥ ASNOOW  v29 8¥0L05
0oL %eZ AV O S86L Loeset L 6l L SL0Z/0E/90  000'9LL  00Z'Z8L ooz'est 00S'051L 00.'1LE sy 9L oL ¥aVI3AON 8Lt £50108
0oL %S %oz V4 2 9881 [ 4% L 6L 6L 9L0Z/0L/LO 000'8TL 006's2) 006'6.) oov'sel 00S'9¢ sy 4T ol ay AINOOW /88 0£0L0S
00t %Ee AV O Ei6 [ A L 6l 006'85 4 006851 00€'GHL oog'sy sy Y oL gy 3O0R D00 S7 LEO0Z6T
00"t %LE Vd 9 sl Lot L 6L 6L £L0T/02/80 E£ZL'OL coL'cel 00L'€EL 006'504 008'22 sy §¥0 ol HILMIIAMIS 2oL 8L026C
00"} %6 AV O, 66 [ & S A 6l L Ll0Z/6T/60 00S'€LL  006'ZTLL 006'zLL 00g'sEL 00¢'Le gy 20T oL Plafut R In\"a Tl <4 % 600Z6C
oo'L %L %6Z AV O.Si6L 8 096 L 6L 6l /JLOZ/EO/LO 00O'TZL  00S'Zh 00s'zzL 002’6 008'8C sy o oL QY TUH AZ33¥8 €L L50L62
0oL %YZ AV O E861 L ossgl L 6l 008'084 008’08 oov'erl 00¥'es gy /8¢ oL IAVIAISTHH 628 9voL6T
00t %YZ AV O €86L LoTeet 6L 000'294 000'zoL 006'8ZL ooL'ss sy 280 oL SAV ACISTIH 66T SYOLET
00'L »vZ AV O €86} [ LT’ 6L Gl 1ZOZ/ELBO O 00p'894 oob'sol ooL'gEL 00g'2e =SB ZA oL IAV IAISTIH LT 0162
00l %EZ AV O ¥86L [ S 2 A A # 6l 006'LYL 006'2¥L 008'6LL ogol'ee sy ZLo oL IAV IAISTHH 222 9ZOLET
00't %yZ AV O €86l [ 2% S 8L 6L TLOZWOND O 00L'vS1 00L'ysL 00s'leL 00Z'2¢ gy  €L0 oL IAV IAISTHH  ¥62 $20L6T
0oL %8C V4 O £86L Lol L 6L ooL'zey ooL'22L 00566 009'LE sy 890 oL SAVIAISTIH ¥le $20L62
00'L %ye AV O €86l [ 6l 006°€9L 006's9L coe'Lel 009'ze sy L0 oL IAYICAISTIH  0ge £20L6C
00t %l AV O 8.6l Lot L 6L L 800Z/9Z/80 00S'/€L  006'0SL 006'09L 000'62L 006°'Le sY  0L0 oL YA YNNOQ S¥ 510162
00't %EC AV O 98k ! 800'} L 6L Sl 0T0ZWE/S0 O 005'sTL 005'sZ1 00’08 ooL'se sy [Re8 oL Q¥ THH AZ33d8 6l viLoLez
00't %0S AV D ¥i6L 3 096 L 61 L 8L0Z/LL/L0  000'LOL  00S'€0) 005'€0} 008'0L 009°ze sy 470 ol HAVNNOG 62 £10L62
0o't %iE AV O €61 3 096 3 6L 61 TLOT/LLSO O 00g'8}L [elelcx:{ A0 00g'28 oge'ie sy v90 oL ¥AVNNOQ 2 z10L62
0oL %L %8E Vd 0 sl L s00'L 4 6l 00s'€2L 005'€ZL 00€'88 002'se sy - 8071 oL QY TiIH AZ33¥E  6vS Z00L62
004 %0l %SE v 0 V6l L8l L 6l € 0Z0Z/LE/0  000'6S 00€'s2) ooe'szh 00Z'56 ool'oe gy €80 oL ¥J qOooOM3odl €L yoeLe
00 %8 %6 AV O Si6L T S A 3 L 610T/9g/e0  000'8TL  OOE'LyL 00€'L¥L 004'bLL 002'0¢ gy  ¥50 oL ¥O OOMIDAN S8 £Y0ELT
[soy %62 AV O §/61 L 280 2 6L 61 0TOZ/EZ/20 O 006'82L 006'8Z} oov'ooL 005°82 g 8E0 oL ¥a qoom3asald sT oyoele
004 %6Z AV O 9.6l [ 4 %5 T # 6l 000t 000'LE} 006'204 00182 Sy VED oL ¥ gooMaoAN Ll 8E0ELT
00'L %9 OV O TL6) 1 798 L 6L L SLo0TTY/LL  coo'shL  00S'ovt 0os'orL 006'vLL 008's2 gy €20 oL ¥A QOOMIDARY 79 £€0€/C
ook %8 AV O L6l L 800t 6L 61 LlOZ/9ZIOL O 008'2Z} 008'zZL 009'96 002'9Z -6y 620 oL ¥Q qOOM3OAN  ¥0L LE0ELT
[tlog? %lT AV O 886l LT 6l L 1L02Z/50/10  000°0SL  00L'S8l 00l's8l 00.L'6S4 00+'s2 gy S€0 oL uJ AOOM3OA 2T 0£0€.2
00°L %0L %EE AY 3 0461 L pesL L 6L L 6l0Z/90/90 000'9PL  000'6EL 000'6€1 009'LLL oov'le sy 820 oL IAVNVNTHD 2182 £EOVLT
ook %iT NV O 86 | A 6l L oloZ/iT/EL  ooo'sel  ooe'ssl 00£'85L ooe'sel 000'62 5y E¥0 oL HIO NVINYZLIYM 22l Lzovie
opey O/S A g UL w0 10 M€ s WV gy dwg T omEA - rIEA son0y DN uopeoo] Q1 1901eg
— woyTpadog— ix W g v S orEsS “A91g ey  xduwy pue]
N
Ies pue
IS PUeT - [1e33({ UoneINILId)) WV.zZ:2e8
€ jo z ebed . LA ‘Aingsuyor 1S 120Z/LIeL




1i0d2y] Jo pusy

00°]  :SNOIAALJ SA JUSWISSISSY : 1L unoe)) [Pduey 00°889°68 - 1BV paysiuly 00L°9SS0T :IURMUSSISSY SNOIAILY
989°8p JUAWSSISSY ISTIAY . €T9°S9T Y A dreS 68001 @ SV [B10], 00L°9SS0T  “I¥I0] JudIn)
SIDIO] puUviL)

00°L  :SNOIAYXJ SA JUIWUSSISSY L. uno) paasyg 00788968 :®axy paysiuy 00.°9GG°01l :ImomsSsIsSSY Snomaxg

989°8Y] IWIWSSISSY 93vIIAY €29'G9C'y LTS 68700} :sapVIEIOL 00.°955°0) :[®0) ymoLim)
240 Apiung
U.U.NMH O\m m m Hﬂm dHU .Hmv Hhm MHED .ND.HJN nWAHHH NH OHNQ OQMHAH 0H~ﬂa®> Dmﬂﬁﬂ\/r . DH.:,N>. N I»@nﬁﬂw&y o o o l  oneson f .
—uogensadsg-— 1x ULy ,Mwmm v oS  oeS Ad1g juormy  -xduwg pue O8N SRV ONT uoneoo] 1 [901eg
N
,_ S PueY . : : : [T uonednId)) , Wv.Z:Te:8

Elogobed - . IA‘Nngsuyoris o , _ izoEel




9202 0idSsassy 059 6¥v¥-+28-208 slejsl jo pieog 1A ‘UcISSpA

jueynsuod 2202 ‘7102 ‘9002 01dssassy 00L 02¢2Z-£95-208 sl9)si Jo pieog 1A "usplepm
lossassy 2102 ‘5002 014SSOSSY 00L°L S8.¥-886-¢08 OWIN - SO SJ0Ssassy 1A RoiL
10ss9ssyY 020¢ 0ldssassy oog'e 2.L2v-8¥.-208 DNEN - 9240 S,J0SSISSY 1A “Aingsuyoris
2202 ‘6102 01gssossy 000'% $012-588-208 JBIUY] BJOJIN - 99U SJOSSISSY 1A ‘pleubunds

§20T ‘20T '500¢C 0idSsassyY 008 8CCy¢5e-208 weyBuuung W) - SI8iSr 10 precg 1A “fngsies

i) aremMyog 0ldssassy 005’9 008L-€4/-208 0NYO SJ0SS3SSY 1A ‘pueiny

fAAVA 0I1SSassy 009 018.-681-208 si9)si] Jo pieog 1A ‘Aingxoy

A CAVA 0lfSsassy Syl £EV¥5-82/-208 901J0 $,10SSBSSY 1A ‘udiopuey

9102 ‘€102 0lJssassy 00L'L 61¥1-6¥9-208 Ia0d Jesuads - 80U SJ0SSIssY 1A “USIMION

jugjnsucy) 920z *£102 'L00Z 2002 0iJssassy 00¥'L 2111-G9¢-208 [8)uoaU) sUo( - SI9jsl Jo pieoy 1A suemeN
€202 ‘0102 01dSsassy 000'c 2056-£22 208 Ajquiol] aA8)g - 80O $,J0SSassY 1A ‘elediuop

fAAVA 0lJdssassy 008 G0EE-9¢y208 S$19JsiT JO pieog 1A ‘pleuUsIeN

£20C 0liSsassy 0s8c £1€1-29¢-¢08 yoelg UoploS - J0SSISSY 1A ‘18iseysueiy

jueynsuod 9z0¢ ‘2102 ‘1102 ‘002 0idSsassy 00z'c §815-929-208 Aol Alret - s19s1 JO preog| 1A “uopui
lossassy 1202 ‘2102'1 102 ‘'900T 0idSsassy 009 90¢2.-8¢c-¢08 DINN - OO SI0SSISSY 1A ‘mofpny
juejnsuod $102 '800C 0igssassy 006 5196-886-208 peqy SUsly - S18)sI] Jo pieod 1N ‘Rer
810¢ 014Ssassy 000°L 806¥-¥.8-¢08 sJojsi Jo pieog JIA ‘edewer

jugynsuod $Z0Z ‘9102 ‘9002 oidssassy yev'lL 0219-¢L-208 O33N - 92O §,J08SISSY 1A SPwmpreH
1202 ‘6002 ‘¥00Z 01dssassy 058 9ZyC-£¥8-208 fiuseN AoueN - S18]SIT J0 pieog 1A ‘uoyeln

gcoe 0ldssossy clv'e UBULIBYS BpuUlT] - 80UJO S,J0SSesSsY 1A ‘Jenoqg

§20C 01S$assyY S LLS1-29e-208 0WYO $,10SSISSY 1A esioq

020z 'L00T 0igssessy 005 210¢-99.-208 SlesiT Jo pieog 1A ‘Agiag

Jossassy 120¢ 0idssossy 004 ¥6€5-89¥-208 SWAN - 300 S J0SSISSY 1A Auano
10ssassy 6102 ‘zl0c ‘5002 0lJSsassy 00l 022e-569-¢08 DWNIN - S04JO S J0SSISSY 1A ‘paoouod
$102 ‘9002 002 0issassy 0052 99¢22-+5.-208 J0)@3] [N - 80O S,J0SSassy 1A ‘uoyeised

juelD alemyos 0ldssassy 0002 ¥11.-G98 208 AIDOIA UYO[ - SO SJ0SSISSY 1A ‘ucjbuiung

Jossassy €202 'S102 ‘2102 '900C 0idssassy Syl LLLE-19%-208 DNZN - 90O SJ0SSISSY 1A ‘oqng
Jossassy 9202 oidssessy| - ¥50°L SOv-€2/-208 3OO §,J0SSISSY 1A ‘uojybug
2102 ‘900¢ 014SsSassy 009°L 2CC9-925-208 uoAT uosHjy - SJ9}si Jo preod 1A ‘uoneg

e rAv4 0JdssSassy 099'c 0O $,J0SSISSY 1A ‘A1 sueqg

JOSSassY 6102 0.JSSOSsY 006 L.96-¥E€C-208 DWAN - SO $,10SS8sSY 1A ‘pieuwreg
JUBJNSU0D/I0SSaSSY (S)3LvAaTVSIVEddVYIY | TAVMLE0S ANOHd3aT3L = 1OVINOD INJIND AT IVAIDINON

$)oeajuo, buiobuQg

CRERELVE

sjuejjnsuo) edidiunpy puejbuz maN

1SIT JUSBI|D OIJSSISSY JUOWLIDA




New England Municipal Consultants, Litd

/t”’v‘
ﬁﬁfﬁﬁ Serving New England!s Town Government

New England Municipal Consultants’ Scope of Services

L]

We specialize in small and mid-sized communities with a desire to maintain
compliance with State regulators. Our experience in such communities is that
the need for information, the fiscal constraints and expertise required is no
less than in larger metropolitan areas.

With the impending changes in Vermont's Grand List process and property
valuation, good tools are critical to moving forward. Valuation, reporting, public
records, listing itself, are all undergoing change. Robust CAMA that changes
with the times is critical. From early DOS systems, to Windows systems to the
newest dot.net technology, Patriot's AssessPro is the industry leader. Our
CAMA software is AssessPro. AssessPro software is fully compliant with all
Vermont statutes. Current use, homestead, SPAN ID’s and various other
features are included. The software can provide you with internet public
access, GIS interfaces, Marshall-Swift cost models and many other valuable
tools. Patriots newest CAMA software, AP 5, is internet ready and is
scheduled to go to the cloud soon

Specific reports are easily constructed to provide you and your community
with the information needed and the format needed.

We provide highly qualified field listers and appraisers for each contract. We
feel strongly that providing consistent and quality data collection is the key to
compliance and fair taxation.

Each Vermont client is provided with a full interface with the VTPIE and
NEMRC billing and collection system. We maintain a good business
relationship with Axiomatic and NEMRC to help provide our clients with the
best transition from appraisal to grand list.

With over 30 Vermont clients signed in the last 22 years, New England
Municipal Consultants has made a commitment to Vermont.

Available Services

1. Database setups — we convert your CAMA files to create the base
record in AssessPro.

2. Data conversion — we use your records to create a “field ready” listing
card,

3. Analysis — we will create a market model for your properties using
sales in the community.

P.O. Box 372 Lyndon Center, VT 05850
603 475-9991
E-mail bill@nemcvt.net




® Page 2

September 21, 2022

_ Model creation — we can construct residential and commercial

valuation models utilizing the cost, market and income approaches.

Data collection — we use experienced people to collect all possible

. data. We use good public notification and relation plans to get people

aware and as comfortable with the process as possible.

Informal public or grievance hearings —we can participate directly or as
a resource for your office.

. Ongoing maintenance programs — we do annual pickups, cyclical

inspection programs, annual analysis to assist you in decision making
and projection analysis for large projects. We are the contracted
Assessor in 8 towns and actively consult in another 6 towns. Our
services are available through an annual contract or a per diem/per
need basis.




.2 NewEngland Municipal Consultants, Ltd
ﬁm’ﬁ! Serving New Englancls Town Government

William J. Krajeski
Business/Assessment Experience

2001 to Present

New England Municipal Consultants, Ltd
Lyndon Center, Vermont

Title: President/Owner

New England Municipal Consultants, Ltd was formed to provide services to small New
England towns. The initial focus of the company has been to provide property reappraisal and
contract assessing services. Working in partnership with Patriot Properties, Inc., NEMC
provides all valuation field services for new CAMA installations projects in Vermont, New
Hampshire and Maine. Patriot supplies CAMA software and technical support to all clients.
NEMC provides ongoing assessment and valuation support.

1980 to Present
Appraisal Consultant
Town of Groveland, Massachusetts

1999-2002

Patriot Properties, Inc

Lynn, Massachusetts

Title:  Vice President
» National Client Installations/Consulting
¢ Customer Service and Support
o Contract Administration

Patriot Properties, Inc. is a developer and seller of CAMA software. My primary function was
training and installation of software systems nationally. | supervised the successful installation
of the assessment software in Davidson County (Nashville), Tennessee and Mecklenburg
County (Charlotte), North Carolina. The tasks included the training of staffs exceeding fifty
employees in all functions of the software, solving complex interface issues with legacy
computer systems and providing analytical training and advise on the achievement of
statutory and equitable assessment levels.

1989-1999
Town of Andover
Andover, MA
Title:  Chief Assessor
« Responsible of installation of two CAMA systems
o Supervised 4 complete revaluations
« Completed the annual assessment of over 1 billion dollars of commercial property
o Lead appraiser for all appeal work

| served as both Chief Assessor and a member of the Board of Assessors. | was responsible
for the annual completion of a property roll exceeding three billion dollars. | acted as the




® Page 2 October 30, 2019

primary appraiser for all property and was qualified before the Appellate Tax Board to defend
the values. As the Chief Assessor, | was required to develop public relations programs,
present the annual valuation figures to the Board of Selectmen for the classification hearing
process, develop an annual budget and generally act as an advisor to the Town Manager

and other town boards as required.

1986-1989

City of Methuen

Methuen, MA

Title:  Municipal Appraiser
+ Responsible of installation of CAMA system
» Supervised 2 complete revaluations
¢ Lead appraiser for all appeal work

1985-1986
City of Salem
Salem, MA
Title:  Chief Assessor
» Responsible of installation of CAMA system
o Supervised 1 complete revaluation
« Completed the assessment of all commercial property
e lead appraiser for all appeal work

1983-1985

City of Haverhill

Haverhill, MA

Title:  Assessor

Responsible of installation of CAMA system
Supervised 1 complete revaluation

Completed the assessment of all commercial property
Lead appraiser for all appeal work

1980-1983

Town of Danvers

Danvers, MA

Title:  Assistant Assessor :
« Responsible of installation of CAMA system
« Supervised 1 complete revaluation

1976-1980
MMC, Inc (now Vision Appraisal)
Chelmsford, MA
Title:  Project Supervisor
« Supervised over 20 complete revaluations




® Page 3

Appraisal Education

IAAO Courses

Fundamentals of Real Property Appraisal (Course 1)
Income Approach to Valuation (Course 2)

Income Approach to Valuation [l (Course 202)

Industrial Property Appraisal (Course 207)

Mass Appraisal of Residential Property (Course 301)

Mass Appraisal of Income Producing Property (Course 302)
CAMA Valuation Mode! Building (Course 305)

MRA for Real Property Valuation (Course 604)

Valuing Property Affected by Environmental Contamination (Course 628)
Personal Property Valuation (Course 5)

Residential Modeling Concepts (Course 311)

Income Approach to Valuation Il (Course 112 - revised)
Standards of Practice and Professional Ethics (Course 151)

Appraisal Institute Courses

Appraising Manufactured Housing
USPAP (2011)

Professional Accomplishments

Past President of the Massachusetts Chapter of the IAAO (1997-1998)
Past President of the Essex County Assessors Association (1985-1986)

Appraisal Supervisor in Vermont

Professional Affiliations

[AAO
Vermont Assessors and Listers Association

Contact Information

Mail NEMC

P.O. Box 372

Lyndon Center, VT 05852
Cell (603) 475-9991

E-Mail bill@nemcvt.net

October 30, 2019




